
 

 
 
 

A G E N D A 
 

Carlsbad City Council Regular Meeting  
Janell Whitlock Municipal Complex 

 114 S. Halagueno Street 
Carlsbad, New Mexico 

 

May 9, 2023 at 6:00 p.m. 
    
 
Invocation – Pledge of Allegiance 
 

1. Approval of Agenda 
 

2. Consider Approval of Resolution 2023-21, a Resolution making certain Budgetary 
Adjustments to the 2022-23 Fiscal Year Budget 
 

3. Routine and Regular Business 
 
 
 

 
A. Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting held on April 25, 2023 
B. Minutes of the Special City Council Meeting held on April 28, 2023 
C. City Personnel Report 
D. Purchasing 

1) Consider Approval to Advertise Invitation to Bid for the Re-Roofing of the 
Carlsbad Museum and Carlsbad Library 
2) Consider Approval to Advertise Request for Proposal for Professional Aquatic 
Management Services for Carlsbad Municipal Golf Course 
3) Consider Approval to Advertise Request for Proposal for EMS Billing and 
Collection Services for the Carlsbad Fire Department 

E. Contracts and Agreements 
1) Consider Approval of Lease Agreement between the City of Carlsbad and the 
Bureau of Land Management for Airport Ground Space at the Cavern City Air 
Terminal  

F. Monthly Reports 
1) Human Resources Department April 2023  
2) Utilities Department March 2023 

G. Board Appointments 
1) Carlsbad Riverwalk Recreation Center Advisory Board Appoint Cheyenne 
Methola four-year term 
2) Carlsbad Museum and Art Center Advisory Board Appoint Alana Akacki five-
year term 

All matters under this heading are considered routine by the City Council and will be acted upon in one motion.  
 There will be no separate discussion of these items.  If discussion is desired on a particular item, upon request,  

that item may be removed from the Routine and Regular Business and be considered separately. 



Carlsbad City Council 5/9/23 
114 S. Halagueno St. 6:00 p.m. 

 

 

 

 
H. Set the Date: June 13, 2023 

1) Ordinance rezoning part of “C-2” Commercial 2 District to “R-1” Residential 1 
District for an approximately 1.01 acre property located at 2021 West Texas 
Street 
2) Ordinance rezoning part of “R-R” Rural Residential District to “C-2” 
Commercial 2 District for an Approximately 4.1 acre property located at 2003 
Standpipe Road 
3) Ordinance rezoning part of “R-2” Residential 2 District to “C-1” Commercial 1 
District for an approximately 0.34 acre property located at 609 West Fox Street 
 

4. Consider Approval of Recommendation from Essential Air Service Committee for EAS 
Contract to Advanced Air 
 

5. Consider Approval of Donation of City of Carlsbad Fire Department Ambulance 406 to 
the City of Roswell Fire Department  
 

6. Consider Approval of Request for Double Eagle Livestock Water Service from Zach 
Ozborn with Turkey Track Ranch 

 
7. Consider Approval of Request from Milton’s Brewery to serve alcohol (beer and wine) on 

City streets during the Carlsbad MainSteet Third Thursday events 
 

8. Consider Approval of Request from Carlsbad MainStreet to serve alcohol (beer, wine 
and alcohol) on City streets during CavernFest 
 

9. Consider Approval of Ordinance 2023-08, an Ordinance rezoning part of “R-1” 
Residential 1 District to “C-2” Commercial 2 District for an approximately 0.76 acre 
property located at 206 East Rose Street Owner: Iris Ramos 

A. Public Hearing 
B. Approval of Ordinance 

 
10. Consider Approval of Ordinance 2023-09, an Ordinance rezoning part of “R-R” Rural 

Residential District to “C-2” Commercial 2 District for an approximately 2.964 acre 
property located at 2013 San Jose Blvd Owner: Presbyterian Medical Services 

A. Public Hearing 
B. Approval of Ordinance 

 
11. Consider Approval of Resolution 2023-22, a Resolution requiring the removal of the 

ruined, damaged or dilapidated buildings or structure, wreckage and debris at 2311 and 
2313 Jackson Street Owner: Judy Kay Einkauf  
 

12. Consider Approval of Resolution 2023-23, a Resolution requiring the removal of the 
ruined, damaged or dilapidated buildings or structures, wreckage and debris at 806 Irvin 
Street Owners: Liborio Morales and Belia Morales  

 
13. Council Committee Reports 

 
14. Adjourn 

 



Carlsbad City Council 5/9/23 
114 S. Halagueno St. 6:00 p.m. 

 

 

 

 
 
 

 
 

  

 FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

 
Agendas and City Council minutes are available on the City web site: cityofcarlsbadnm.com  

 or may be viewed in the Office of the City Clerk during normal and regular business hours. 
 
 

     CARLSBAD CITY COUNCIL MEETING SCHEDULE 
• Regular Meeting - Tuesday, May 23, 2023 at 6:00 p.m. 
• Regular Meeting – Tuesday, June 13, 2023 at 6:00 p.m 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

If you require hearing interpreter, language interpreters or auxiliary aids in order to attend 
and participate in the above meeting, please contact the City Administrator’s office at 

(575) 887-1191 at least 48 hours prior to the scheduled meeting time. 



 RESOLUTION NO. 2023-21 
 
 A RESOLUTION MAKING CERTAIN BUDGETARY 
 ADJUSTMENTS TO THE 2022-23 FISCAL YEAR BUDGET 
          
  
 
 WHEREAS, it is necessary to amend the 2022-23 fiscal year budget to adjust 
revenues, transfers and expenditures as reflected on the attached pages, and 
incorporated herein by reference. 
 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE 
CITY OF CARLSBAD that the 2022-23 fiscal year budget be amended as attached. 
 
 
 INTRODUCED, PASSED, ADOPTED AND APPROVED this 9th day of May 2023. 
   
         
 
          
    
 
       ______________________________ 
                    Mayor  
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
          City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
       



Page 1 of 6The City of Carlsbad, NM
Budget Adjustments
FY 2022-23

Fund / Department Item Amount R or T Amount L, O, C Budget Com Council DFA

August 2022

Lodgers' Tax - Discretionary Development of miniature golf course at Lake Carlsbad (750,000.00)          C - 9/13/2022 9/19/2022

September 2022

Health Insurance
Transfer Out to General, Municipal Transit, Solid Waste, Sports Complex and Water & 
Sewer Funds for employee health insurance rebate. (1,534,944.53)     T 9/23/2022 10/11/2022 10/18/2022

General Fund Employee health insurance rebate 1,229,445.86       T (1,229,445.86)       L 9/23/2022 10/11/2022 10/18/2022

Sports Complex Employee health insurance rebate 20,295.99            T (20,295.99)             L 9/23/2022 10/11/2022 10/18/2022

Municipal Transit Employee health insurance rebate 38,510.87            T (38,510.87)             L 9/23/2022 10/11/2022 10/18/2022

Water & Sewer Employee health insurance rebate 188,134.28          T (188,134.28)          L 9/23/2022 10/11/2022 10/18/2022

Solid Waste  Employee health insurance rebate 58,557.53            T (58,557.53)             L 9/23/2022 10/11/2022 10/18/2022

General Fund - Parks Increase Annual Park Improvements for donations received for HAP improvements 20,000.00            R (20,000.00)             C 9/23/2022 10/11/2022 10/18/2022

General Fund - Public Safety Shop with a Hero Grant from Walmart 4,000.00               R (4,000.00)               O 9/23/2022 10/11/2022 10/18/2022

General Fund - Public Safety FBI Funds received for local investigation 4,000.00               R (4,000.00)               O 9/23/2022 10/11/2022 10/18/2022

General Fund - Alejandro Ruiz Senior Center
Aging & Long Term Services Grant for replacement of kitchen equipment at the 
Alejandro Ruiz Senior Center 7,811.00               R (7,811.00)               O 9/23/2022 10/11/2022 10/18/2022

General Fund - North Mesa Senior Center Private donations received for refelting of pool tables 1,500.00               R (1,500.00)               O 9/23/2022 10/11/2022 10/18/2022

Street Improvements
Municipal Arterial Program Grant (NMDOT) for rehabilitation of Sixth and Pate 
Street. 25% City match - $20,000 60,000.00            R (80,000.00)             C 9/23/2022 10/11/2022 10/18/2022

Lodgers' Tax - Promotional Walter Gerrells Performing Arts Center Advertising (65,000.00)             O 9/23/2022 10/11/2022 10/18/2022

Lodgers' Tax - Promotional Chamber of Commerce - Advertising Campaign (20,800.00)             O 9/23/2022 10/11/2022 10/18/2022

Lodgers' Tax - Promotional Chamber of Commerce- Green Chile Cheeseburger Cookoff Advertising (5,000.00)               O 9/23/2022 10/11/2022 10/18/2022

Lodgers' Tax - Promotional Cavern City Renaissance Festival Advertising (20,000.00)             O 9/23/2022 10/11/2022 10/18/2022

Lodgers' Tax - Promotional Boys & Girls Club - Gus Macker Basketball Tournament Advertising (70,000.00)             O 9/23/2022 10/11/2022 10/18/2022

Lodgers' Tax - Promotional Carlsbad MainStreet-MainStreet America (9,500.00)               O 9/23/2022 10/11/2022 10/18/2022

Lodgers' Tax - Promotional Milton's Brewing- 2nd Annual Septembeer Fest Advertising (15,000.00)             O 9/23/2022 10/11/2022 10/18/2022

Solid Waste Fund FY22 carryover for 4 ARC trucks (1,800,000.00)       C 9/23/2022 10/11/2022 10/18/2022

Capital Projects Fund Alejandro Ruiz Senior Center Parking Lot (250,000.00)          C 9/23/2022 10/11/2022 10/18/2022

Lodgers' Tax - Discretionary Transfer Out to General Fund for the construction of pickle ball courts (150,000.00)         T - 10/11/2022 10/18/2022

Increase (Decrease) to Fund Increase (Decrease) to Fund Dates

Description Revenues & Transfers Costs Approvals

Labor, Operating, Capital



Page 2 of 6The City of Carlsbad, NM
Budget Adjustments
FY 2022-23

Fund / Department Item Amount R or T Amount L, O, C Budget Com Council DFA

Increase (Decrease) to Fund Increase (Decrease) to Fund Dates

Description Revenues & Transfers Costs Approvals

Labor, Operating, Capital

General Fund Transfer In from Lodgers' Tax - Discretionary for the construction of pickle ball courts 150,000.00          T (150,000.00)          C - 10/11/2022 10/18/2022

October 2022

GRT Capital Outlay Replace the roof at the Alejandro Ruiz Senior Center (375,000.00)          C 10/28/2022 11/8/2022 11/21/2022

Lodgers' Tax - Promotional Carlsbad Community Concert Association - 2023 Concert Season Advertising (47,000.00)             O 10/28/2022 11/8/2022 11/21/2022

General Fund - Museum Art acquisition of Gary Niblett painting (15,000.00)             C 10/28/2022 11/8/2022 11/21/2022

Landfill-Construction FY22 carryover for Sandpoint Landfill construction costs (1,000,000.00)       O 10/28/2022 11/8/2022 11/21/2022

November 2022

Airport Improvements Fund Airport Runway Reconstruction grant came in higher than anticipated 399,406.00          R (361,527.00)          C 11/18/2022 12/13/2022 12/20/2022

Law Enforcement Protection Fund
Law Enforcement Retention Grant funds to be used for salaries and benefits in the 
Police Department 600,000.00          R 11/18/2022 12/13/2022 12/20/2022

General Fund - Fire Surrender Safety Device Grant for the Fire Department for a Safe Haven Baby Box 10,000.00            R (20,000.00)             C 11/18/2022 12/13/2022 12/20/2022

General Fund - North Mesa Senior Center
Aging & Long Term Services Grant for lighting upgrades at the North Mesa Senior 
Center 6,367.00               R (6,367.00)               O 11/18/2022 12/13/2022 12/20/2022

Lodgers' Tax - Promotional Chamber of Commerce- Christmas on the Pecos Advertising (75,000.00)             O 11/18/2022 12/13/2022 12/20/2022

Capital Projects Fund NMDOT Grant for the design of Dark Canyon Bridge 2,850,000.00       R (3,000,000.00)       C 11/18/2022 12/13/2022 12/20/2022

Golf Pro Shop Fund Increase operating due to expenditures coming in higher than anticipated (150,000.00)          O 11/18/2022 12/13/2022 12/20/2022

Fire Protection Fund Increase Metal Shelter project (50'x 55') due to bid coming in higher than budget (193,387.00)          C 11/18/2022 12/13/2022 12/20/2022

December 2022

General Fund - Library Library Grant-In-Aid came in higher than budget 254.72                  R (254.72)                  O 12/16/2022 1/10/2023 1/13/2023

General Fund - Library Library grant to implement the Serving Communities Action Plan Program 1,000.00               R (1,000.00)               O 12/16/2022 1/10/2023 1/13/2023

General Fund - Police/Fire
Donation from Devon Energy for the purchase of supplies for the police department 
and bullet proof vests for the fire department. 6,000.00               R (6,000.00)               O 12/16/2022 1/10/2023 1/13/2023

Cannabis Revenue Fund Budget state imposed administration fees for the cannabis tax (10,000.00)             O 12/16/2022 1/10/2023 1/13/2023

Municipal Transit Fund Additional funds awarded by NMDOT due to increase in price of vehicles 20,924.00            R (20,924.00)             C 12/16/2022 1/10/2023 1/13/2023

Lodgers' Tax - Promotional 4th Annual Boys & Girls Club Fishing Derby Advertising (5,000.00)               O 12/16/2022 1/10/2023 1/13/2023

Insurance Fund Insurance payment for collision into the PFA building 20,070.00            R 1/4/2023 1/10/2023 1/13/2023

General Fund - Fire Reimburse expenses for repair of PFA building caused by collision (20,070.00)             O 1/4/2023 1/10/2023 1/13/2023

General Fund - Cemetery Fencing at Carlsbad Cemetery (230,000.00)          C 1/4/2023 1/10/2023 1/13/2023

Street Improvements Increase annual street improvement project for additional street improvements (1,000,000.00)       C 1/4/2023 1/10/2023 1/13/2023



Page 3 of 6The City of Carlsbad, NM
Budget Adjustments
FY 2022-23

Fund / Department Item Amount R or T Amount L, O, C Budget Com Council DFA

Increase (Decrease) to Fund Increase (Decrease) to Fund Dates

Description Revenues & Transfers Costs Approvals

Labor, Operating, Capital

Lodgers' Tax - Discretionary New pedestrian bridge at Lake Carlsbad Beach area (300,000.00)          C 1/4/2023 1/10/2023 1/13/2023

January 2023

Sports Complex Fund Increase operating due to an increase in utility rates (50,000.00)             O 1/27/2023 2/14/2023 2/24/2023

General Fund - Fire Increase operating due to an increase in utility rates (80,000.00)             O 1/27/2023 2/14/2023 2/24/2023

General Fund - Golf Increase operating due to an increase in utility rates (20,000.00)             O 1/27/2023 2/14/2023 2/24/2023

General Fund - Library Increase operating due to an increase in utility rates (20,000.00)             O 1/27/2023 2/14/2023 2/24/2023

General Fund - Performing Arts Center Increase operating due to an increase in utility rates (30,000.00)             O 1/27/2023 2/14/2023 2/24/2023

General Fund - Alejandro Ruiz Senior Center Increase operating due to an increase in utility rates (30,000.00)             O 1/27/2023 2/14/2023 2/24/2023

General Fund - Parks Increase operating due to an increase in utility rates (70,000.00)             O 1/27/2023 2/14/2023 2/24/2023

General Fund - Golf
Salaries and benefits for 2 part-time pro shop attendants to assist at the miniature 
golf course (43,559.28)             L 1/27/2023 2/14/2023 2/24/2023

General Fund - Police Edward Byrne Grant for the enhancement of the license plate reader program 14,809.00            R (14,809.00)             C 1/27/2023 2/14/2023 2/24/2023

Law Enforcement Retention Fund
Law enforcement retention differential disbursement received from the NM 
Department of Public Safety 25,565.15            R 1/27/2023 2/14/2023 2/24/2023

Law Enforcement Retention Fund
Transfer Out funds received from NM Department of Public Safety to be used for 
officer retention incentive pay (25,565.15)           T 1/27/2023 2/14/2023 2/24/2023

General Fund
Transfer In funds received from NM Department of Public Safety to be used for 
officer retention incentive pay 25,565.15            T (25,565.15)             L 1/27/2023 2/14/2023 2/24/2023

General Fund Transfer Out to NMFA-Water & Sewer for future debt service payments (7,000,000.00)     T 1/27/2023 2/14/2023 2/24/2023

NMFA-Water & Sewer Transfer In from General Fund for future debt service payments 7,000,000.00       T 1/27/2023 2/14/2023 2/24/2023

Airport Improvements Fund Annual Airport Maintenance Grant, State - $20,000 / City match $2,222 20,000.00            R (22,222.00)             O 1/27/2023 2/14/2023 2/24/2023

Law Enforcement Retention Fund Transfer Out funds received from the Law Enforcement Retention Grant (600,000.00)         T 1/27/2023 2/14/2023 2/24/2023

General Fund Transfer In funds received from the Law Enforcement Retention Grant 600,000.00          T 1/27/2023 2/14/2023 2/24/2023

February 2023

General Fund - Museum
Carlsbad Community Foundation Catalyst Grant to facilitate Carlsbad Museum Tours 
for Carlsbad Municipal School students 2,000.00               R (2,000.00)               O 2/24/2023 3/14/2023 3/23/2023

General Fund - Municipal Court Install bullet proof glass at the municipal court front counter (35,000.00)             C 2/24/2023 3/14/2023 3/23/2023

Lodgers' Tax - Discretionary Transfer Out to General Fund for driving range upgrades (325,000.00)         T 2/24/2023 3/14/2023 3/23/2023

General Fund - Golf Course
Transfer In from Lodgers' Tax - Discretionary for driving range upgrades at the golf 
course 325,000.00          T (325,000.00)          C 2/24/2023 3/14/2023 3/23/2023

Lodgers' Tax Non-Promotional Increase PRV Media Upgrades project (70,000.00)             O 2/24/2023 3/14/2023 3/23/2023

Lodgers' Tax - Promotional United Way Cinco de Mayo Golf Tournament advertising (18,000.00)             O 2/24/2023 3/14/2023 3/23/2023



Page 4 of 4The City of Carlsbad, NM
Budget Adjustments
FY 2022-23

Fund / Department Item Amount R or T Amount L, O, C Budget Com Council DFA

Increase (Decrease) to Fund Increase (Decrease) to Fund Dates

Description Revenues & Transfers Costs Approvals

Labor, Operating, Capital

Lodgers' Tax - Promotional City of Carlsbad Library advertising (20,000.00)             O 2/24/2023 3/14/2023 3/23/2023

March 2023

Capital Projects Fund
Regional Recreation Centers Quality of Life Grant to be used for the final phase of 
the Cavern Theatre rehabilitation project 3,324,166.00       R (3,324,166.00)       C 3/24/2023 4/11/2023 4/17/2023

Golf Pro Shop Fund Increase operating to offset revenues coming in higher than anticipated (95,000.00)             O 3/24/2023 4/11/2023 4/17/2023

Law Enforcement Protection Fund
Additional law enforcement retention differential disbursement received from the 
NM Department of Public Safety 8,832.21               R 3/24/2023 4/11/2023 4/17/2023

Law Enforcement Protection Fund
Transfer Out additional funds received from NM Department of Public Safety to be 
used for officer retention incentive pay (8,832.21)             T 3/24/2023 4/11/2023 4/17/2023

General Fund
Transfer In additional funds received from NM Department of Public Safety to be 
used for officer retention incentive pay 8,832.21               T (8,832.21)               L 3/24/2023 4/11/2023 4/17/2023

April 2023

General Fund - Fire Donation from Chevron for the purchase of gas monitors for the fire department 20,000.00            R (20,000.00)             O 4/28/2023

General Fund - Parks
Donation from Chevron for the resurfacing of the tennis courts and addition of shade 
structures 40,000.00            R (40,000.00)             C 4/28/2023

General Fund - Library
Libraries Transform Communities Engagement Grant to be used towards a 
community-based project focused on our adult literacy rate 2,000.00               R (2,000.00)               O 4/28/2023

Workers' Compensation Fund Increase operating due to an increase in weekly benefit claims (150,000.00)          O 4/28/2023

Lodgers' Tax - Discretionary Replace the boat docks along the Beach area (170,000.00)          C 4/28/2023

Lodgers' Tax - Discretionary Splash Pad at Friendship Park (500,000.00)          C 4/28/2023

Lodgers' Tax - Promotional Carlsbad Gem and Mineral Show Advertising (15,353.91)             O 4/28/2023

Lodgers' Tax - Promotional Carlsbad Automotive Restoration Society CAR-A-FAIR Advertising (28,800.00)             O 4/28/2023

Lodgers' Tax - Promotional Yucca Blossom Trade Days Advertising (10,000.00)             O 4/28/2023

Lodgers' Tax - Promotional CavernFest 2023 Advertising (100,000.00)          O 4/28/2023



Page 5 of 6The City of Carlsbad, NM
Budget Increase/Decrease
FY 2022-23

Description

Fund / Department Increase/Decrease Item Amount R or T Amount L, O, C

September 2022

Increase Capital 29,075.00       C

Decrease Operating/Capital (29,075.00)      O/C

Increase Capital 4,475.85          C

Decrease Operating (4,475.85)        O

Increase Capital 50,000.00       C

Decrease Capital (50,000.00)      C
October 2022

Increase Capital 10,000.00       C

Decrease Capital (10,000.00)      C

Increase Capital 60,000.00       C

Decrease Capital (60,000.00)      C

Increase Capital 9,886.33          C

Decrease Capital (9,886.33)        C

Increase Capital 25,000.00       C

Decrease Capital (25,000.00)      C
General Fund - San Jose Senior 
Center Increase Operating 25,000.00       O
General Fund - Alejandro Ruiz 
Senior Center Decrease Operating (25,000.00)      O

December 2022

General Fund - Street Increase Capital 24,012.49       C
General Fund - Street & 
Construction Decrease Capital (24,012.49)      C

January 2023
General Fund - Riverwalk 
Recreation Increase Capital 3,500.00          C
General Fund - Riverwalk 
Recreation Decrease Capital (3,500.00)        C

Water & Sewer - Waste Water Increase Capital 155.91             C

Water & Sewer - Waste Water Decrease Capital (155.91)           C

February 2023

General Fund - Police Increase Capital 151,236.00     C

General Fund - Police
Decrease Operating (151,236.00)    O

Water & Sewer - Waste Water
Increase Capital 75,000.00       C

Water & Sewer - Waste Water Decrease Capital (75,000.00)      C

General Fund - Airport Increase Operating 8,000.00          C

General Fund - Airport Decrease Capital (8,000.00)        O

Solid Waste Fund Increase Capital 15,000.00       C

Solid Waste Fund Decrease Capital (15,000.00)      C

Fire Protection Increase Capital 25,000.00       C

Fire Protection Decrease Capital (25,000.00)      C
Fire Protection Increase Operating 100,000.00     O

Fire Protection Decrease Capital (100,000.00)    C

Transfer excess funds to vehicle project (Ram 2500) due to 
vehicle coming in higher than budget

Costs 
Personnel, Operating, Capital

Increase (Decrease) Increase (Decrease)

Transfer excess funds from Boiler project to Final Clarifier project 
to cover additional costs

Transfer excess funds from the Tire Shredder project to the 
Container Maintenance truck project to cover additional costs

Transfer funds to Project# 100812 to cover additional costs of 
container maintenance truck

Transfer funds from fencing project to honor guard project for 
upgrades to committal structure at Cemetery

Transfer funds from closed senior center to cover additional costs 
at the new facility

Revenues & Transfers

Transfer funds from the Metal Shelter project to operating to 
cover expenses through year-end

Transfer excess funds from backhoe projects in the Street and 
Construction departments to the  Dump truck project in Streets 

due to quote coming in higher than budget

Transfer funds from the Metal Shelter project to the Drive Pad 
project for cement work at Fire Station 1

Transfer funds from the Fall Protect System to the Gravity Belt 
Project to cover additional costs

Transfer funds from Riverwalk upgrades project to the Basketball 
Court Improvements project to cover increased cost of materials

Transfer excess funds from the Charging Station and Carport 
projects to operating for the removal of 2 trees and trimming 

along the entryway.

General Fund - Fire 

General Fund - Fire 
Transfer funds to PFA Remodel project due to project being 

closed before all invoices were paid

General Fund - Community 
Development

Fire Protection
Transfer funds to stabilization equipment project (Paratech 

stabilization for new rescue truck) due to equipment coming in 
higher than budget

Transfer funds to cover restroom remodel due to sewer line 
problems 

Transfer funds from HAP Improvements project to Hall of Fame 
project

General Fund - Cemetery

Solid Waste Fund

General Fund - Fire 

Transfer operating funds to the Police Vehicles project for the 
purchase of 4 Ford Explorers



Page 6 of 6The City of Carlsbad, NM
Budget Increase/Decrease
FY 2022-23

Description

Fund / Department Increase/Decrease Item Amount R or T Amount L, O, C

Costs 
Personnel, Operating, Capital

Increase (Decrease) Increase (Decrease)

Revenues & Transfers

March 2023
General Fund - North Mesa Senior 
Center Increase Operating 7,000.00          O
General Fund - Community 
Development Decrease Operating (7,000.00)        O

General Fund - Parks Increase Capital 194,277.40     C

General Fund - Parks Decrease Capital 194,277.40     C
Airport Improvements Fund Increase Capital 65,000.00       C
Airport Improvements Fund Decrease Operating (65,000.00)      O

Golf Pro Shop Fund Increase Operating 7,343.00          O

Golf Pro Shop Fund Decrease Capital (7,343.00)        C

General Fund - Cemetery Increase Capital 748.75             C

General Fund - Cemetery Decrease Operating (748.75)           O

Lodgers' Tax Promotional Increase Capital 4,000.00          C

Lodgers' Tax Promotional Decrease Operating (4,000.00)        O
April 2023

General Fund - Performing Arts Increase Capital 307.25             C

General Fund - Performing Arts Decrease Capital (307.25)           C

General Fund - Golf Course Increase Capital 7,500.00          C
General Fund - Community 
Development Decrease Operating (7,500.00)        O

General Fund - Airport Increase Capital 7,500.00          C
General Fund - Community 
Development Decrease Operating (7,500.00)        O
Water & Sewer Fund - 
Environmental Services Increase Operating 3,500.00          O
Water & Sewer Fund- Waste 
Water Decrease Operating (3,500.00)        O

General Fund - Parks Increase Capital 5,033.70          C

General Fund - Parks Decrease Operating (5,033.70)        O

General Fund - Golf Course Increase Operating 3,231.60          O

General Fund - Golf Course Decrease Capital (3,231.60)        C

Transfer operating funds to the PRV Improvements project to 
cover shortfall

Transfer operating funds to the Honor Guard Cemetery project to 
cover shortfall

Transfer funds from the Annex Sound project to the Sound & 
Lighting System project to cover shortfall

Transfer excess funds from the closed Beverage Cart project to 
operating to cover expenses through year-end

Reallocate funds from the Lower Tansill Improvements project to 
the Annual Park Improvements project for the completion of the 

pickle ball courts

Transfer funds from the community development department to 
the north mesa senior center department to cover expenses 

through year-end

Transfer operating funds to the Golf Course truck project to cover 
increase in price

Transfer funds from the Waste Water department to the 
Environmental Services department to cover expenses through 

year-end

Transfer operating funds to the Resurfacing project to resurface 
the area in front of Native Air's Hangar

Transfer operating funds to the Airport truck project to cover 
increase in price

Transfer funds from several closed projects to cover expenses 
through year-end

Transfer operating funds to purchase a pressure washer



 

 1

LINKED MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF CARLSBAD, NEW MEXICO, HELD IN THE JANELL WHITLOCK 

MUNICIPAL COMPLEX BUILDING ON APRIL 25, 2023 AT 6:00 P.M. 
 
 
Present:  Dale Janway    Mayor  
   Lisa A. Anaya Flores  Councilor via phone 
   Edward T. Rodriguez  Councilor via phone 
   Jason O. Chavez   Councilor via phone 
   Wesley A. Carter   Councilor 
   Mark C. Walterscheid  Councilor 
   Jeff Forrest    Councilor 
   Karla Niemeier   Councilor 
   Judith E. Waters   Councilor  
 
Absent:   
 
  
Also Present:  John Lowe    City Administrator 
   K.C. Cass    Deputy City Administrator 
   Ted Cordova    Deputy City Administrator 
   Denise Madrid-Boyea  City Attorney  
   Nadine Mireles   City Clerk 
   Angie Barrios-Testa   Director of Municipal Services 
   Mike Abell    Director of Utilities 
   Wayne Hatfield   IT Director 
   Brent Griffith    IT Technician 
   Sandy Gonzales   Assistant Treasurer 
   Ken Ahrens    Fire Chief 
   Jeff Patterson    Planning Director 
   Shane Skinner   Police Chief 
   Patrick Cass    Public Works Director 
   Wanda Aguilar   Executive Assistant 
   Kyle Marksteiner   Public Information Officer 
   Charlie Garcia   Police Officer 
   John Bowen    Citizen 
   Benjamin Sanchez   Citizen 
   Andrue Caswell   Student Advisory Board 
   Aaliyah Montoya   Student Advisory Board 
   Jack Dodd    Student Advisory Board 
   Campbell Foster    Student Advisory Board 
   Sophia Salazar   Student Advisory Board 
   
 



 

 2

 
Time Stamps and headings below correspond to recording of meeting and the recording 
is hereby made a part of the official record. 
 
0:00:00  Call Meeting to Order 
 
0:00:12 Invocation – Pledge of Allegiance  
 
Mayor Janway welcomed members of the Student Advisory Board.  He said our 
Student Advisory Committee was formed several years ago and former City Councilor, 
Sandra Nunley, helped run it.  He said we are proud to have such a great group of 
students, grades 6-12.  Mayor Janway said Covid-19 slowed down this advisory board 
for many years, but this year the committee has met three times.  He thanked Dr. Keely 
Scruggs and everyone with Carlsbad Municipal Schools for their help to coordinate the 
committee.  He said so far this year, the Student Advisory Board has toured the 
miniature golf course and were the first people to play at the course.  He said they also 
toured the Police Department, the Fire Department, and the Carlsbad Hall of Fame, and 
have plans to tour the Municipal Court.  Mayor Janway said not everyone on the 
Student Advisory Board was able to make it, but he wanted to introduce the students 
present and give out certificates. Those introduced were, Andrue Caswell, Aaliyah 
Montoya, Jack Dodd, Campbell Foster and Sophia Salazar.    
 
0:06:57 1.  APPROVAL OF AGENDA  
 
0:07:01 MOTION  
The motion was made by Councilor Forrest and seconded by Councilor Walterscheid to 
approve the Agenda. 
 
0:07:04 VOTE  
The vote was as follows:  Yes - Waters, Carter, Rodriguez, Forrest, Niemeier, 
Walterscheid, Anaya-Flores, Chavez; No - None; Absent - None; the motion carried. 
                 
0:07:24 2.  CITY OF CARLSBAD FINANCIALS – MARCH 2023  
Mrs. Gonzales reviewed the revenues and expenditures as of March 2023 for the 
General Fund and selected Enterprise and Special Funds contained within the City 
Budget.  
 
0:08:50 3.  ROUTINE AND REGULAR BUSINESS 
A. Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting held on April 11, 2023 
B.  City Personnel Report 
C.  Contracts and Agreements 

1) Consider Approval of Agreement between the City of Carlsbad and EMSRx 
LLC for the Provision of Medical Director Services for the Carlsbad Fire 
Department and Carlsbad Police Department 



 

 3

2) Consider Approval of Agreement between the City of Carlsbad and Salado 
Isolation Mining Contractors, LLC for the use of the Carlsbad Shooting Range 

D.  Monthly Reports 
1) Community Development Department March 2023 
2) Municipal Court Department March 2023 
3) Municipal Services Department March 2023 
4) Transportation and Facilities Department March 2023 

E. Board Appointments 
1) North Mesa Senior Recreation Center Advisory Board appoint John Caraway 
remainder two-year term 

 
0:09:04 Mayor Janway asked Mr. Lowe to briefly discuss Agenda item C1, 
Consider Approval of Agreement between the City of Carlsbad and EMSRx LLC for 
the Provision of Medical Director Services for the Carlsbad Fire Department and 
Carlsbad Police Department.  
Mr. Lowe explained this is a request is for approval of an extension to an annual 
agreement with EMSRx.  He said this agreement allows the Fire Department and Police 
Department to provide medical director services.  He said the state of New Mexico 
requires a licensed position to provide these services.  Mr. Lowe said this agreement is 
for a one-year term, beginning May 1, 2023 and terminating on April 30, 2024.  
 
0:09:50 MOTION 
The motion was made by Councilor Forrest and seconded by Councilor Walterscheid to 
approve Routine and Regular Business.  
 
0:09:55 VOTE  
The vote was as follows:  Yes - Waters, Carter, Rodriguez, Forrest, Niemeier, 
Walterscheid, Anaya-Flores, Chavez; No - None; Absent - None; the motion carried. 
 
0:10:19 4.  CONSIDER APPROVAL OF SUBMISSION OF AN ENERGY 
EFFICIENCY AND CONSERVATION BLOCK GRANT APPLICATION TO THE US 
DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY FOR LIGHTING UPGRADES AT THE BOB FORREST 
YOUTH SPORTS COMPLEX  
Mr. Lowe said this request is for approval to apply for an Energy Efficient Conservation 
Block Grant.  He said under the terms of this agreement, the City will receive $76,000 in 
grant monies to upgrade one softball field with LED lighting.  He said this will bring 
cost savings to approximately $14,000 yearly to the City.  He said the estimated cost of 
this project is $130,000 with the cost of $50,000 to the City.  Mr. Lowe said the City will 
be required to adopt an Energy Efficiency and Conservation Strategy plan within one 
year after the award.  
 
0:11:10 Mayor Janway asked if there were any questions or comments for Mr. 
Lowe. 



 

 4

Councilor Walterscheid asked Mr. Lowe if LED lighting will save a lot of energy.  Mr. 
Lowe answered yes.  Councilor Walterscheid asked if any of the parks in the City have 
LED lighting.  Mr. Lowe said yes, in some of the parks and in some street lights. 
  
0:11:46 MOTION  
The motion was made by Councilor Walterscheid and seconded by Councilor Niemeier 
to approve the submission of an Energy Efficiency and Conservation Block Grant 
Application to the US Department of Energy for Lighting upgrades at the Bob Forrest 
Youth Sports Complex. 
 
0:11:54 VOTE  
The vote was as follows:  Yes - Waters, Carter, Rodriguez, Forrest, Niemeier, 
Walterscheid, Anaya-Flores, Chavez; No - None; Absent - None; the motion carried. 
 
0:12:14 5.  CONSIDER APPROVAL OF AN APPEAL OF THE DECISION 
BY THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION TO GRANT A VARIANCE TO 
THE RESIDENT AT 1108 TRACY PLACE TO PARK A RECREATION VEHICLE 
(BOAT) WITHIN THE REQUIRED FRONT SETBACK APPELLANT: JOHN BOWEN 
Mr. Patterson said this item was originally heard at the March 6, 2023 Planning & 
Zoning Commission meeting.  He said the applicant for the variance, Benjamin Sanchez, 
appeared before the Commission and stated his case; asking for the variance. He added 
at that meeting, the appellant, John Bowen, appeared before the commission and stated 
his objection to that request.  He said the Planning & Zoning Commission considered 
the statements made and voted to approve the request, and grant the applicant a 
variance, with the vote of three in favor, two against, with zero absent.  Mr. Patterson 
said on March 16, 2023, Mr. Bowen submitted a letter to the Planning office stating his 
intent to appeal the decision of granting the variance reached by the Planning and 
Zoning Commission.  He said Mr. Bowen was deemed an aggrieved party and his letter 
for appeal was submitted before the deadline to appeal.  He said in his appeal letter, 
Mr. Bowen stated seven points in which he disagreed with the decision and stated he 
wished to appeal the decision to City Council.  Mr. Patterson said the City Council, by 
concurring vote of two-thirds of all members may reverse, affirm, wholly or partly, 
remand back or modify the requirement, decision or determination and shall make any 
requirement, decision or determination that in its opinion ought to be made in order to 
remedy those situations noted in the appeal.   
 
0:14:15 Mayor Janway asked if there were any questions for Mr. Patterson.  
 
Councilor Walterscheid asked Mr. Patterson if we are going to address everyone who 
has a vehicle parked on the street on Tracy Place.  Mr. Patterson said the Ordinance 
states if they are there long-term, then yes, we do need to address it with Code 
Enforcement.  He said with RV's and sometimes trailers, if they are there temporarily 
due to a job, they will allow it for a day or two.  He said Code Enforcement is intending 
on addressing those matters if they are against the Ordinance.  



 

 5

 
0:15:09 Councilor Forrest asked to confirm what the Council's vote would mean; 
either for or against the variance.  Mrs. Boyea-Madrid said a variance was requested by 
the homeowner to park a boat within the setback.  She said the request went to 
Planning & Zoning, and they voted in favor to allow the variance.  She said Mr. Bowen 
is an aggrieved party and he has appealed the variance to City Council.  Mrs. Madrid-
Boyea said the Council can reverse Planning & Zoning’s decision, affirm Planning & 
Zoning's decision in whole or in part, remand it back to Planning & Zoning, or modify 
the decision. She explained whatever Council decides has to be in order to remedy the 
situations noted in the appeal. 
 
0:17:33 Mayor Janway asked Mr. Bowen if he had any statements he would like 
to make.  Mr. Bowen said he has lived on Tracy Place for several years.  He said there 
are several things in his appeal letter that are noteworthy, the homeowner never 
displayed signage that he was requesting a variance; the code violation for parking his 
trailer could be resent if he would park it under his carport.  Mr. Bowen said the 
homeowner was asked if he could park it in his carport, the homeowner answered yes, 
but he would prefer not to due to storage under his carport.  Mr. Bowen said he 
believes the homeowner can also park it in his backyard or on the south side of his 
property.  Mr. Bowen said it is not just neighbors who are within 100 feet of his 
property, but the entire Tracy Place.  He said two of the Planning & Zoning 
commissioners’ own property in the Tracy edition.  He said he thinks they should not 
have voted since they live in the area, noting that he would like for the conflict of 
interest to be addressed.  Mr. Bowen said the homeowner at 1108 Tracy Place also has a 
utility trailer parked in his front yard that has been there for several months.  He said 
the boat trailer has been there since 2020, and he has reported it several times to 
Planning & Zoning.  He said he does not understand the support behind the variance, 
and he said if an Ordinance is violated, there should be repercussions.  He said the 
Zoning Ordinances are very clear, stating that it says the variances are the exception 
and not the rule.  Mr. Bowen said there are several trailers parked on Tracy Place and 
he has called on them before.  
 
0:23:35 Councilor Walterscheid asked why is this homeowner being singled out 
if there are more residents on Tracy Place who have parked trailers.  Mr. Bowen said he 
has compiled a list since 2020 of trailers parked on Tracy Place.  He said there has been 
progress in trailers being removed but would like the process to be faster. Mr. Bowen 
thanked the Council for their time.  
 
0:24:37 Mayor Janway asked the owner, Benjamin Sanchez, if he would like to 
address the council.  Mr. Sanchez said he has lived at 1108 Tracy Place for the past ten 
years. He said there was a board member that has property on Tracy Place, and he 
believes it is of importance.  He said the statement that was made, the board member 
that asked if the boat was there at the time, this member stated they did not notice the 
boat in general.  Mr. Sanchez said his surrounding neighbors have never addressed 



 

 6

him with an issue about his boat being parked there, except one gentleman.  He said he 
does not think one person should receive preferential treatment over the general 
consensus of the neighborhood.  Mr. Sanchez said he understands Mr. Bowen has an 
issue with it, but he does not have to come to that part of the neighborhood.  He said 
the variance was granted, and he asked the Council members if they could uphold it.  
 
0:25:51 Mayor Janway asked if there were any questions or comments for Mr. 
Sanchez.  Councilor Forrest said he drove by Mr. Sanchez's residence and he believes 
the boat is in great shape; no debris on the boat or flat tires on the trailer.  He said the 
yard is in great shape, and if he were to live by Mr. Sanchez he would be happy to 
know he has a neighbor that takes care of his property.  Mr. Sanchez thanked Councilor 
Forrest, and went on to say the boat is brand new.  He said the boat is not an eye-sore or 
inoperable.  He said Mr. Bowen is aware of the Ordinance, because the Planning & 
Zoning Commission came to his property to ask him to remove an inoperable vehicle 
from his property.  Mr. Sanchez said the variance is a tool, and he did follow all 
procedures.  He said he posted signage, followed every letter of instruction, and sent 
letters of intent to all of his neighbors.  He said Mr. Bowen did receive a letter.  Mr. 
Sanchez said several neighbors did stop by his house after receiving the letters and 
asked him to go into further detail.  He said he told them he would like to park his boat 
on his property, and they have the opportunity to show up at this meeting to voice their 
opinion. 
 
0:28:08 Mayor Janway asked if there were any further questions or comments.  
Mr. Bowen returned to the podium and said he never had an inoperable vehicle parked 
in his driveway.  He said the Inspector left him paperwork and asked him if it was 
operable, and he told her yes.  He said it is parked behind his house, next to the garage. 
He said it is in no violation of any Ordinance.  He said Mr. Sanchez's trailer is in 
violation of an Ordinance.  Mr. Bowen said he disagrees with Mr. Sanchez's statement 
that he does not want to park his boat under his carport, and believes it makes his 
argument irrelevant.  He said we all need to adhere to the Ordinances put-forth to our 
community.  He said almost any neighborhood in Carlsbad has illegally parked trailers 
in the driveway.  Mr. Bowen said he thinks Mr. Patterson should hire more Inspectors, 
or tighten the grip on their inspections.  He asked Council members to support the 
Ordinances.  He said Tracy edition is an old neighborhood and it has always looked 
nice until people started parking their trailers illegally in the front of their houses.  
 
0:30:42 Mr. Sanchez came to the podium and said it is not an issue for him to 
park the boat under the carport.  He said if he were to park the boat under the carport, 
he would have to move a different vehicle of his out from under the carport, and we 
would be back to this same situation.  
 
0:31:11 Councilor Forrest reiterated that he drove through Tracy edition and 
everything he saw at 1108 Tracy Place is in great shape.  He said if we were to start 
appealing variances, they would have to do it with everyone in the community.  He 



 

 7

said we need to support the decision of Planning and Zoning's Commission to grant the 
variance.  
 
0:31:52 Mrs. Boyea-Madrid said the item is to approve an appeal of the decision 
by the Planning and Zoning's Commission to grant a variance.  She said if you vote yes 
to approve the appeal, the variance is over-ridden.  She said if you were to vote no, that 
means Planning and Zoning's decision stands.  
 
0:32:44 MOTION  
The motion was made by Councilor Forrest and seconded by Councilor Walterscheid to 
deny the appeal and to uphold the decision by the Planning and Zoning Commission to 
grant a variance to the resident at 1108 Tracy Place to park a recreation vehicle (boat) 
within the required front setback Appellant: John Bowen. 
 
0:33:26 Councilor Carter said he agrees with Mr. Bowen.  He said we have 
Ordinances in place for a reason.  He said he also agrees with Councilor Forrest on the 
cleanliness of 1108 Tracy Place.  He said for all the residences that aren't kept-up or 
clean, if they grant the variance, they will not have a legal leg to stand on.  He said he 
values Planning and Zoning's opinions but he believes they made a mistake on this 
situation.  Councilor Niemeier asked if it is case-by-case or if it sets a precedence. 
Councilor Carter said the Ordinance is clearly written.  He said we can either agree 
with Planning and Zoning or change the Ordinance to where anybody can park 
anything in their front yard.  He said if we grant the variance, this situation will most 
likely come up again in the future.  
 
0:35:12 Mrs. Boyea-Madrid said the motion is to approve the decision of the 
Planning and Zoning to grant the variance.  She asked Councilor Forrest if that is what 
he is moving for.  Councilor Forrest answered yes.  Mrs. Boyea-Madrid said Council 
members have other options; modify, overturn, remand, or reaffirm.  Councilor 
Walterscheid said in his opinion, the boat is fine, but the other trailers in the yard 
should be removed.  Councilor Carter asked what is the difference in the Ordinance. 
He said they are all against the Ordinance.  
  
0:37:02 VOTE  
The vote was as follows:  Yes - Waters, Rodriguez, Forrest, Niemeier, Walterscheid, 
Chavez; No - Carter, Anaya-Flores; Absent - None; the motion carried. 
 
0:37:43 Mrs. Boyea-Madrid said this is six Councilors in favor of approving the 
decision of Planning and Zoning's to grant a variance, and two against the motion. 
Therefore, the motion passes and the variance is granted. 
 
 



 

 8

0:38:05 6.  CONSIDER APPROVAL OF RESOLUTION 2023-17, A 
RESOLUTION DECLARING CERTAIN CITY PROPERTY UNUSABLE OR 
OBSOLETE  
Mr. Lowe said this Resolution is brought before Council declaring certain City property 
unusable or obsolete, which include vehicles from the Police Department, ARC trucks 
from the Solid Waste Department, a street sweeper in the Public Works Department, 
and a couple of vans from the Transit Department.  He said most of these vehicles are 
close to 10 years old or older, and have been declared unusable or obsolete and will be 
disposed of by auction.  
 
0:38:50 MOTION 
The motion was made by Councilor Niemeier and seconded by Councilor Forrest to 
approve Resolution 2023-17, a Resolution declaring certain City Property Unusable or 
Obsolete. 
 
0:38:56 VOTE  
The vote was as follows:  Yes - Waters, Carter, Rodriguez, Forrest, Niemeier, 
Walterscheid, Anaya-Flores, Chavez; No - None; Absent - None; the motion carried. 
 
 
0:39:18 7.  CONSIDER APPROVAL OF RESOLUTION 2023-18, A 
RESOLUTION REQUIRING THE REMOVAL OF THE RUINED, DAMAGED OR 
DILAPIDATED BUILDINGS OR STRUCTURE, WRECKAGE AND DEBRIS AT 104 
S THIRD STREET OWNER: JIMMY WILCOX 
Mrs. Madrid-Boyea said this Resolution involves property located at 104 S Third Street 
which would require the removal of the ruined, damaged or dilapidated buildings or 
structure, and the ruins, rubbish, wreckage and debris.  She said there are dilapidated 
structures on the property and a large amount of rubbish, debris and weeds.  She said 
the Eddy County Assessor's office lists Jimmy Wilcox as owning or having interest in 
the property.  She said Code Enforcement has been to the property and the structures 
were red-tagged by the Building Department in 2019.  She said the electric, water, and 
gas utilities have been disconnected, the buildings continue to degrade and the 
property attracts transients.  She said the property was inspected and it remains out of 
compliance with applicable codes.  She said the ruined or dilapidated structures remain 
on the property and the property is not secured.  Mrs. Madrid-Boyea said the Fire Chief 
found that the property presents an extreme fire hazard for responding fire fighters and 
emergency personnel and recommends the buildings be demolished and the property 
be cleaned and the debris be removed.  She said a Resolution has been prepared, which 
if adopted would require the owner to remove all the ruins, dilapidated structures, 
rubbish, wreckage, debris and weeds from the property within 30 days of service of the 
Resolution.  
 
 
 



 

 9

0:41:55 MOTION 
The motion was made by Councilor Niemeier and seconded by Councilor Walterscheid 
to approve Resolution 2023-18, a Resolution requiring the removal of the ruined, 
damaged or dilapidated buildings or structure, wreckage and debris at 104 S Third 
Street Owner: Jimmy Wilcox. 
 
0:42:05 VOTE  
The vote was as follows:  Yes - Waters, Carter, Rodriguez, Forrest, Niemeier, 
Walterscheid, Anaya-Flores, Chavez; No - None; Absent - None; the motion carried. 
 
0:42:36 8. CONSIDER APPROVAL OF RESOLUTION 2023-19, A 
RESOLUTION REQUIRING THE REMOVAL OF THE RUINS, RUBBISH, 
WRECKAGE, DEBRIS OR WEEDS AT 204 S MAPLE STREET OWNERS: 
RAYMUNDO SAIZ AND MANUELA SAIZ  
Mrs. Madrid-Boyea said this proposed Resolution requires the removal of the ruins, 
rubbish, wreckage, debris, or weeds at 204 S Maple Street.  She said there appears to be 
a large number of overgrown weeds and grass, as well as non-running vehicles, junk 
and debris.  She said the Eddy County Assessor's office lists Raymundo Saiz and 
Manuela Saiz as owning or having an interest in the property.  She said the property 
was inspected by Code Enforcement and the Fire Chief, and they found that the 
property remains out of compliance with applicable codes.  She said the Fire Chief 
found that the property presents an extreme fire hazard for responding fire fighters and 
emergency personnel, and recommends that the property be cleaned and the weeds, 
trash, and debris be removed.  She said if this Resolution is adopted, it would require 
the property owner to remove all ruins, rubbish, wreckage, debris or weeds from the 
property within 30 days of service of the Resolution.   
 
0:44:30 MOTION 
The motion was made by Councilor Forrest and seconded by Councilor Niemeier to 
approve Resolution 2023-19, a Resolution requiring the removal of the ruins, rubbish, 
wreckage, debris or weeds at 204 S Maple Street Owners: Raymundo Saiz and Manuela 
Saiz. 
 
0:44:37 VOTE  
The vote was as follows:  Yes - Waters, Carter, Rodriguez, Forrest, Niemeier, 
Walterscheid, Anaya-Flores, Chavez; No - None; Absent - None; the motion carried. 
 
0:44:54 9.  COUNCIL COMMITTEE REPORTS  
Councilor Niemeier reminded everyone of a going away party later in the evening for 
David Beaty, former manager of Albertsons, at the Country Club.  
 
Mayor Janway asked if anyone in the audience would like to address the Council. No 
one appeared. 
 



 

 10

 
0:45:23 10.  ADJOURN  
 
0:45:28 MOTION  
The motion was made by Councilor Anaya-Flores and seconded by Councilor Waters to 
adjourn. 
 
0:45:35 VOTE 
The vote was as follows:  Yes - Waters, Carter, Rodriguez, Forrest, Niemeier, 
Walterscheid, Anaya-Flores, Chavez; No - None; Absent - None; the motion carried. 
 
0:45:50 Adjourn 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 6:14 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

__________________________________ 
Dale Janway, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Nadine Mireles, City Clerk 



 

 1

LINKED MINUTES OF A SPECIAL MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF CARLSBAD, NEW MEXICO, HELD IN THE JANELL WHITLOCK 

MUNICIPAL COMPLEX BUILDING ON APRIL 28, 2023 AT 4:00 P.M. 
 
 
Present:  Dale Janway    Mayor  
   Lisa A. Anaya Flores  Councilor 
   Edward T. Rodriguez  Councilor 
   Jason O. Chavez   Councilor 
   Wesley A. Carter   Councilor 
   Jeff Forrest    Councilor 
   Karla Niemeier   Councilor 
 
Absent:  Judith E. Waters   Councilor 
   Mark C. Walterscheid  Councilor 
 
    
Also Present:  John Lowe    City Administrator 
   K.C. Cass    Deputy City Administrator 
   Ted Cordova    Deputy City Administrator 
   Denise Madrid-Boyea  City Attorney  
   Nadine Mireles   City Clerk 
   Angie Barrios-Testa   Director of Municipal Services 
   Mike Abell    Director of Utilities 
   Wayne Hatfield   IT Director 
   Brent Griffith    IT Technician 
   Melissa Salcido   Finance Director 
   Anthony Souza   EMS Division Chief 
   Jeff Patterson    Planning Director 
   Shane Skinner   Police Chief 
   Patrick Cass    Public Works Director 
   Dr. Gary Washburn   CMS Superintendent  
   John Heaton    ELEA Board Member via zoom 
   Ann Liedich    HolTec Attorney via Zoom 
 
Time Stamps and headings below correspond to recording of meeting and the recording 
is hereby made a part of the official record. 
 
0:00:00  Call Meeting to Order   
 
0:00:20 Invocation – Pledge of Allegiance  
 
0:00:31 1.  APPROVAL OF AGENDA  
 



 

 2

0:00:36 MOTION 
The motion was made by Councilor Chavez and seconded by Councilor Rodriguez to 
approve the Agenda. 
 
0:00:41 VOTE 
The vote was as follows:  Yes - Carter, Rodriguez, Forrest, Niemeier, Anaya-Flores, 
Chavez; No - None; Absent - Waters, Walterscheid; the motion carried.  
        
0:00:55 2.  ROUTINE AND REGULAR BUSINESS 
A.  City Personnel Report 
 
0:01:04 MOTION  
The motion was made by Councilor Niemeier and seconded by Councilor Forrest to 
approve Routine and Regular Business. 
 
0:01:12 VOTE  
The vote was as follows:  Yes - Carter, Rodriguez, Forrest, Niemeier, Anaya-Flores, 
Chavez; No - None; Absent - Waters, Walterscheid; the motion carried. 
    
0:01:42 3.  CONSIDER APPROVAL OF RESOLUTION 2023-20, A 
RESOLUTION OPPOSING SENATE BILL 53 AND AUTHORIZING THE EDDY 
LEA ENERGY ALLIANCE TO JOIN LITIGATION AGAINST THE STATE OF NEW 
MEXICO REGARDING SENATE BILL 53 
Mrs. Madrid-Boyea said this Resolution is for Council’s consideration opposing Senate 
Bill 53 and authorizing the Eddy Lea Energy Alliance to join litigation against the State 
of New Mexico regarding Senate Bill 53.  She said the New Mexico legislature passed 
Senate Bill 53, which prohibits a consolidated interim storage facility in New Mexico, 
unless the State of New Mexico consents or concurs in the creation of the facility and a 
repository is in operation.  She said Senate Bill 53 goes into effect on June 16, 2023. Mrs. 
Madrid-Boyea said federal laws and United States constitution have given authority to 
the Nuclear Regulatory Commission to determine the requirements for creation of 
interim storage facilities, which preempts state laws.  She said the City of Carlsbad is a 
member of the Eddy Lea Energy Alliance, which is entered into agreements with 
HolTec International.  She said HolTec International has plans to develop a CISF, a 
Consolidated Interim Storage Facility.  She said the completed project will create a 
capital expenditure of $2 to $3 billion, diversify the economy, and create approximately 
650 high paying jobs in Southeast New Mexico.  Mrs. Madrid-Boyea said the NRC has 
conducted extensive environmental impact and safety studies which have determined 
that the proposed facility has minimal environmental impacts, the facility and 
transportation system is safe and secure, and the project will benefit Southeast New 
Mexico.  She said she can answer limited questions but she has a subject matter expert 
on the phone, Mr. John Heaton, along with his attorney Ann Liedich.  
 



 

 3

0:04:25 Councilor Forrest asked if HolTec would be footing the bill for the lawyer.  
Mrs. Madrid-Boyea said HolTec will pay the legal fees, expenses and costs if litigation 
is commenced. 
 
0:04:45 Councilor Rodriguez asked if we will be facing any liability related to the 
case other than financial.  John Heaton answered there should be no liability or 
conflicts with any industry in our area.  Ms. Liedich said they believe this preemption 
challenge is valid.  She said in terms in the politics of New Mexico itself, she can't 
comfortably answer. 
 
0:06:31 MOTION  
The motion was made by Councilor Rodriguez and seconded by Councilor Niemeier to 
approve Resolution 2023-20, a Resolution opposing Senate Bill 53 and authorizing the 
Eddy Lea Energy Alliance to join Litigation against the State of New Mexico regarding 
Senate Bill 53. 
 
0:06:37 VOTE  
The vote was as follows:  Yes - Carter, Rodriguez, Forrest, Niemeier, Anaya-Flores, 
Chavez; No - None; Absent - Waters, Walterscheid; the motion carried.  
   
0:06:59 4.  CONSIDER APPROVAL TO RETAIN WSP FOR THE 
PROVISION OF OIL AND GAS PERMIT INSPECTIONS 
Mr. Lowe said this is a request to retain WSP for the provision of Oil and Gas Permit 
Inspections.  He said WSP is a qualified entity who will review any oil and gas permits 
within City limits and they will also perform inspections and make sure the entity 
drilling within City limits is following the City Ordinance.  Mr. Lowe said they will 
submit technical reports, findings and recommendations for each inspection. 
 
0:07:35 Mayor Janway asked if there are any questions or comments for Mr. 
Lowe.  Councilor Chavez asked if WSP are the same inspectors that inspect the City 
wells. Mr. Lowe answered and said if the City receives any permit for oil and gas, this 
company can do all of the inspections and make their recommendations to City 
Council.  
 
0:07:51 MOTION  
The motion was made by Councilor Rodriguez and seconded by Councilor Chavez to 
approve to retain WSP for the provision of Oil and Gas Permit Inspections. 
 
0:07:58 VOTE  
The vote was as follows:  Yes - Carter, Rodriguez, Forrest, Niemeier, Anaya-Flores, 
Chavez; No - None; Absent - Waters, Walterscheid; the motion carried.  
   



 

 4

0:08:08 5.  CONSIDER APPROVAL OF SUBMISSION OF A COMMUNITY 
ORIENTED POLICING SERVICES (COPS) HIRING PROGRAM GRANT FOR THE 
CARLSBAD POLICE DEPARTMENT 
Mr. Lowe said this is for approval to apply for a Community Oriented Policing Services 
(COPS) Grant through the Department of Justice.  He said Carlsbad Municipal Schools 
approached the City of Carlsbad for assistance to increase the number of school 
resource officers.  He said Carlsbad Municipal has two dedicated resource officers.  He 
said if successful on this grant application, this will allow the City to hire 5 new officers, 
allowing for better police presence and security in more of the schools.  He said this 
grant will be for a period of 5 years in the amount of $625,000.  Mr. Lowe said CMS 
would cover $2.6 million over the five-year period to cover the local fund option.  He 
said once awarded, the City will negotiate a MOU for those funds with Carlsbad 
Municipal Schools.  
 
0:09:18 Mayor Janway asked if Dr. Washburn had a comment he would like to 
make.  Dr. Washburn said anytime there is a school shooting across the country, he has 
concerned parents asking if it is possible to get more SRO's.  He said this grant will help 
our community be safer and reassure parents and the community.  
 
0:11:16 Mayor Janway asked if there were any questions or comments for Dr. 
Washburn.   
 
Councilor Chavez asked if this would be for the new middle school.  Mr. Lowe said he 
believes these 5 would be spread to the high school, both middle schools and he 
believes they would be able to cover some of the elementary schools. 
 
Dr. Washburn said their vision is to be able to have one more SRO at the high school, 
each of the middle schools, and the other two patrol the elementary schools. 
 
0:12:47 MOTION  
The motion was made by Councilor Rodriguez and seconded by Councilor Chavez to 
approve the submission of a Community Oriented Policing Services (COPS) Hiring 
Program Grant for the Carlsbad Police Department. 
 
0:12:54 VOTE  
The vote was as follows:  Yes - Carter, Rodriguez, Forrest, Niemeier, Anaya-Flores, 
Chavez; No - None; Absent - Waters, Walterscheid; the motion carried.  
 
Mayor Janway asked if there was anyone present that would like to address Council.  
No one appeared. 
 
 
 
 



 

 5

0:13:06 6.  ADJOURN 
 
0:13:11 MOTION  
The motion was made by Councilor Anaya-Flores and seconded by Councilor Forrest to 
adjourn. 
 
0:13:18 VOTE 
The vote was as follows:  Yes - Carter, Rodriguez, Forrest, Niemeier, Anaya-Flores, 
Chavez; No - None; Absent - Waters, Walterscheid; the motion carried. 
    
0:13:23 Adjourn 
 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 4:14 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

__________________________________ 
Dale Janway, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Nadine Mireles, City Clerk 



CITY OF CARLSBAD 
PERSONNEL REPORT 

May 9, 2023 

APPOINTMENTS: 

NAME DATE DEPARTMENT CLASSIFICATION 

Hasana Akinloye 05/10/23 Riverwalk Recreation Attendant, on-call 

Sawyer Angelis 05/10/23 Water Park Reclassified as Lifeguard 

Rayen Bushman 05/10/23 Parks Seasonal Laborer 

Ashley Carey 05/10/23 Water Park Recreation Attendant 

RaeAnn Carrasco 05/10/23 Water Park Recreation Attendant 

Zechariah Char 05/10/23 Water Park Lifeguard 

Ivan Galindo 05/10/23 Double Eagle Water Operator Apprentice 

Coby Gentry 05/10/23 Executive BPA Intern 

DeLiesh Heft 05/10/23 Police Telecommunicator, uncertified 

Zander Higgins 05/10/23 Water Park Lifeguard 

Ethan Hutchinson 05/10/23 Water Park Lifeguard 

Cassidy Lewis 05/10/23 Police Telecommunicator, uncertified 

Matthew Martinez 05/10/23 Water Park Lifeguard 

Dru McAvoy 05/10/23 Water Park Recreation Attendant 

Ty Molina  05/10/23 Sports Complex Seasonal Laborer 

Marcus Najera 05/10/23 Parks Seasonal Laborer 

Jose Orozco 05/10/23 Water Park Assistant Manager 

Yahir Perez 05/10/23 Police Patrolman, uncertified 

Shaylor Phillips 05/10/23 Water Park Lifeguard 

Ariyana Rogers 05/10/23 Water Park Lifeguard 

Ryan St. John 05/10/23 Water Park Lifeguard 

Ethan Siazon 05/10/23 Water Park Lifeguard 

Luke Waters 05/10/23 Water Park Lifeguard 

    

TERMINATIONS: 

NAME DATE DEPARTMENT CLASSIFICATION REASON 

Jennifer Chavez 04/28/23 Finance Account Clerk 1 Resigned 

     

INTERNAL TRANSFERS AND PROMOTIONS: 

NAME DATE DEPARTMENT CLASSIFICATION 

Troy Gurule 05/01/23 Golf Caretaker 

Justin Porter 05/01/23 Golf Pro Shop Attendant 

Candice Vaca 05/01/23 Finance Account Clerk 1 

















































CITY OF CARLSBAD 
 

AGENDA BRIEFING MEMORANDUM 
 PURCHASING RECOMMENDATION 
 Council Meeting Date:        

Department:        BY:        Date:        

SUBJECT:          
Description:        

 
SYNOPSIS:       Qty                      Total Est. Cost                                            Total Actual Cost 

           Budgeted                Est. City Share                                  Actual City Share 

���������   Account # 

           Account #  

           Account # 

           Account # 

                                                                   TOTAL  

BACKGROUND, JUSTIFICATION AND IMPACT: (Safety and Welfare/Financial/Personnel/Infrastructure/etc.) 

 
  Requested action to be taken by Council:                               Council Action Taken:                                      Date:  
       
 
 
 
Reviewed by City Administrator:  
 

POST BID/RFP RECOMMENDATION  Council Meeting Date:                       
 
  Requested action to be taken by Council:                                  Council Action Taken:                         Date: 
        

 

 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION: 

 
Reviewed by City Administrator:                           

 
 
ATTACHMENT(S):      Specifications        Bid/RFP Summary        Other:        

5/9/2023

  Museum/Library Matt Fletcher, CPO 5/03/2023
Services

Solicit Bids for the Re-Roofing of the Museum/Library Building

1 $ 831,187.64
Yes $ 831,187.64
100751 $ 831,187.64

$ 831,187.64

 
The roof at the Carlsbad Museum and Library building needs a new roof.   
 
The City is requesting authorization to solicit bids for the re-roofing of the Carlsbad Museum and 
Library building roof. 
 

Advertise Invitation for Bid

Select one

Select one

Select one

oeramirez
Typewriter
/s/John Lowe                                                             05/04/2023



CITY OF CARLSBAD 
 

AGENDA BRIEFING MEMORANDUM 
 PURCHASING RECOMMENDATION 
 Council Meeting Date:        

Department:        BY:        Date:        

SUBJECT:          
Description:        

 
SYNOPSIS:       Qty                      Total Est. Cost                                            Total Actual Cost 

           Budgeted                Est. City Share                                  Actual City Share 

���������   Account # 

           Account #  

           Account # 

           Account # 

                                                                   TOTAL  

BACKGROUND, JUSTIFICATION AND IMPACT: (Safety and Welfare/Financial/Personnel/Infrastructure/etc.) 

 
  Requested action to be taken by Council:                               Council Action Taken:                                      Date:  
       
 
 
 
Reviewed by City Administrator:  
 

POST BID/RFP RECOMMENDATION  Council Meeting Date:                       
 
  Requested action to be taken by Council:                                  Council Action Taken:                         Date: 
        

 

 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION: 

 
Reviewed by City Administrator:                           

 
 
ATTACHMENT(S):      Specifications        Bid/RFP Summary        Other:        

5/09/2023

  Golf Matt Fletcher, CPO 5/03/2023
Services

Release RFP for Professional Aquatic Management Services

1 $ 53,000.00
Yes $ 53,000.00
10146-61900 $ 53,000.00

$ 53,000.00

The City is requesting authorization to solicit proposals for professional Aquatic Management 
Services on an approved scheduled basis as well as on a per job basis.  These projects involve a 
primary need of assessing, designing and implementing a management plan and schedule to 
control scale and bryozoans both in the effluent ponds and associated irrigation system of the 
Carlsbad Municipal Golf Course.  Secondary needs would arise from any unforeseen city-wide 
aquatic related issue which would be dealt with on a per job basis. 
 
The City has maintained a contract for this service for the past four years, but this contract needs to 
be renewed and requires an RFP to procure this service.   

Advertise Invitation for Request for Proposal

Select one

Select one

Select one

oeramirez
Typewriter
/s/John Lowe                                                           05/04/2023



CITY OF CARLSBAD 
 

AGENDA BRIEFING MEMORANDUM 
 PURCHASING RECOMMENDATION 
 Council Meeting Date:        

Department:        BY:        Date:        

SUBJECT:          
Description:        

 
SYNOPSIS:       Qty                      Total Est. Cost                                            Total Actual Cost 

           Budgeted                Est. City Share                                  Actual City Share 

���������   Account # 

           Account #  

           Account # 

           Account # 

                                                                   TOTAL  

BACKGROUND, JUSTIFICATION AND IMPACT: (Safety and Welfare/Financial/Personnel/Infrastructure/etc.) 

 
  Requested action to be taken by Council:                               Council Action Taken:                                      Date:  
       
 
 
 
Reviewed by City Administrator:  
 

POST BID/RFP RECOMMENDATION  Council Meeting Date:                       
 
  Requested action to be taken by Council:                                  Council Action Taken:                         Date: 
        

 

 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION: 

 
Reviewed by City Administrator:                           

 
 
ATTACHMENT(S):      Specifications        Bid/RFP Summary        Other:        

5/09/2023

  Fire Department Matt Fletcher, CPO 5/03/2023
Services

 RFP for EMS Billing and Collection Services

1

Yes

$ 0.00

 
The City of Carlsbad contracts with a third party billing service that is responsible for billing and collecting 
payments for the City of Carlsbad Fire Department ambulance service.   
 
The current contract is set to expire in November 2023. The City has reached the maximum number of 
years allowed under the New Mexico Procurement Code for this type of contract and must conduct an RFP 
in order to establish a new contract.  
 
The City requests authorization to conduct an RFP for this service.  
 

Advertise Invitation for Request for Proposal

Select one

Select one

Select one

oeramirez
Typewriter
/s/John Lowe                                                              05/04/2023



oeramirez
Typewriter
/s/John Lowe					

oeramirez
Typewriter
05/04/2023





Month of April 2023

Submitted by

Scot D. Bendixsen, HR Director

City of Carlsbad
Personnel Department

Action Report



 

Beginning Termina- Transfers Transfers End of

EMPLOYEE REPORT of Month New Hires tions In Out Month

Full-Time Employees 423 1 5 0 0 419

Part-Time/Temp Employees 45 1 0 0 0 46

Total Employees 468 2 5 0 0 465

Administrative 18 0 0 0 0 18

Judicial 7 0 0 1 0 8

Finance 18 0 1 0 0 17

Police 101 1 1 0 0 101

Fire 65 0 0 0 0 65

Community Development 86 0 1 0 0 85

Planning & Regulation 15 0 1 1 1 14

Utilities 73 0 1 0 0 72

Transportation & Facilities 85 1 0 0 1 85

TOTAL 468 2 5 2 2 465

Beginning New Released End of

WEEKLY INDEMNITY of Month Claims To Work Terminated Month

Employees on WI 4 4 3 0 5

UNEMPLOYMENT Claims Claims Claims Claims Claims Claims

CLAIMS Received Returned Denied Approved Pending Appealed

Current Month 0 0 0 0 0 0

City of Carlsbad
Personnel Department Action Report

Month of April 2023



Number

DRUG TESTS Given VACANCIES BID Department

Pre-employment 15 Airport Operations Specialist Airport

Probationary 0 Truck Driver Street

Post Accident 12 Waste Water Operator Waste Water

Random 0

Periodic 0

Probable Cause 0 VACANCIES Applications

ADVERTISED Received

ARC Driver 13

PHYSICAL Number Airport Operations Specialist Pending

EXAMINATIONS Given Caretaker 5

Pre-employment 13 Electrical Inspector Pending

Return to Work Evaluation 0 Electrician Pending

Functional Capacity Evaluation 0 Firefighter/EMT Pending

Heavy Equipment Operator Pending

Lifeguard Pending

Number Patrolman Pending

TESTING Given Pro Shop Attendant, p/t Pending

None Recreation Attendant, on-call 8

Seasonal Laborers Pending

Transit Driver, on-call Pending

Vactor Operator Pending

Waste Water Operator Pending

Water Park Assistant Manager Pending

Water Park Recreation Attendant 7

Water Operator 20

Welder 4



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

FY 2022 - 2023 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

march 2023 
 

 

 

Ivan M. Abell, Director of Utilities   



Current Previous Calendar

Environmental Services:  Month Month Year to Date

State and Federal Environmental Violations by City 0 0 0

Environmental Assessments (CDBG, P&Z, Drilling) 0 0 0

Environmental Compliance Inspections 0 0 0

Criminal Complaints Filed 0 0 0

Environmental Projects or Programs 0 0 0

Grease Interceptors Inspections 0 0 0

Laboratory: Current Previous Calendar

Municipal Water Sampling/Analysis:  Month Month Year to Date

Wellfield Chemical Characteristic Analysis               44 43 141

Partial Wellfield Chemical Characteristics 33 32 108

Monitoring Wells Chemical Analysis 0 5 8

Total Coliform Analysis 40 40 120

Fecal Coliform Analysis 0 0 0

Chlorine Residual Tests (DE) 23 20 64

Special Chemicals (BTEX, Ammonia, Nitrite) 0 0 0

Current Previous Calendar

Municipal Wastewater Sampling/Analysis (Reads):  Month Month Year to Date

Chemical Oxygen Demand Tests 0 0 0

Biochemical Oxygen Demand 15 12 39

Total Suspended Solids Tests 15 12 39

Volatile Alkalinity Tests 0 0 0

E-Coli on Effluent 15 12 39

Metals/TCLP/PCB/M2 Sampling on Sludge 0 0 0

Fecal Coliform Analysis on Sludge (Compost) 0 0 0

Effluent Chemical Characteristic Analysis 1 1 3

Current Previous Calendar

DMR Bench Sheet:  Month Month Year to Date

Influent BOD Avg. (Lbs.) 5,106 5,986 17,446

Effluent BOD Avg. (Lbs.) 44.10 59 147

BOD Removal (%) 99.14 99 297

Influent TSS Avg. (Lbs.) 3,966 5,209 15,099

Effluent TSS Avg. (Lbs.) 51.08 84 189

TSS Removal (%) 98.71 98 296

ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES REPORT
March 2023

4/5/2023 Pg. 1



Current Previous Calendar
Private Well Analysis: Month Month Year to Date
Total Coliform Analysis 41 39 120
Total Coliform Analysis (Construction) 2 0 4
Number of Positives for Confirmation 0 0 0
Chemical Characteristics Analysis 2 0 2
Environment Department Mediated Tests 0 0 0
Lake Carlsbad E-Coli Analysis Performed 0 0 0
Lake Carlsbad Beach Closures Due to Bacterial Count 0 0 0

Golf Course (Reclaimed) Water Analysis Current Previous Calendar
(NMED Groundwater Discharge Permit): Month Month Year to Date
Nitrate 5 4 13
Total Kjeldahl Nitrogen 0 0 0
Total Dissolved Solids 1 1 3
E-Coli Analysis 12 12 37
Chemical Characteristics 0 0 0
Other NMED-Required Testing (Chlorides, etc.) 1 1 3

_______________________________
Richard Aguilar,
Environmental Srvs. Superintendent

ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES REPORT
March 2023

Remarks:     

4/5/2023 Pg. 2

 

Digitally signed by Richard Aguilar 
DN: cn=Richard Aguilar, o=City of Carlsbad, 
ou=Env Services Lab, 
email=rlaguilar@cityofcarlsbadnm.com, c=US 
Date: 2023.04.05 10:22:42 -06'00'







Production Figures: This Month Previous Month Year to Date

Pumped from Sheep's Draw (Ac. Ft.) 484.97 313.20 1128.91
Water Imported from Double Eagle (Ac. Ft.) 105.25 104.00 288.12
Water delivered to Livestock (Ac. Ft.) 0.25 0.22 0.72
Water Sold to Apartments (Ac. Ft.) 8.60 10.90 31.06
Water Sold to Commercial Accounts (Ac. Ft.) 103.12 104.23 308.87
Water Sold to Government Accounts (Ac. Ft.) 16.05 14.75 48.18
Water Sold to Industrial Accounts (Ac.Ft.) 0.07 0.06 0.20
Water Sold to Residential Accounts (Ac.Ft.) 249.90 286.29 812.98
Record Only Accounts (Ac.Ft.) 0.69 0.58 1.64
Water Sold to Semi-Commercial Accounts (Ac.Ft.) 9.71 8.52 25.75
Safe Drinking Water Act Violations 0 0 0

Wells:
Number in Operation (Sheep's Draw) ** 9/9 9/9
KWH Consumed                                         468,080 300,840 1,061,000
Capitan Aquifer Level (Ft. from Surface @ #6) 390.00 390
Number of New Water Services Installed 5 11 21

Meters:
Total in Service 12,610 12,604

Fire Hydrants:
In Service                                                               875 871

Out of Service 2 6
Repaired 7 1 8

Remarks:
City Line Locates 242 262 762
DE Line Locates 64 35 172

.

5

Carlsbad Municipal Water System Report
Mar-23

Acre Ft.

Ron Myers, Superintendent

4/11/2023

Digitally signed by Ron Myers
DN: CN=Ron Myers, O=City of Carlsbad, 
OU=Water Department, E=rwmyers@
cityofcarlsbadnm.com, C=US
Reason: I have reviewed this document
Location: 
Date: 2023.04.11 13:10:43-06'00'
Foxit PDF Editor Version: 12.0.1



ACRE 

FEET

1
5833 5830 1,200 2,523 2,253 270,000 0.83 23.2 20.1 3.1 1,750 325,500 525

2
2159 2157 800 3,303 3,071 232,000 0.71 11998 11993.5 4.5 1,200 324,000 420

3
5443 5439 1,600 427,686 427,154 532,000 1.63 37602.2 37596.7 5.5 1,600 528,000 375

4 21729 estimate 21729 110,000 540,184 501,024 39,160,000 120.18 51516.3 51146.4 369.9 1,750 38,839,500 257

5
20470 20221 99,600 1,281,031 1,249,942 31,089,000 95.41 63186.4 62754.7 431.7 1,200 31,082,400 348

6
34558 34305 40,480 776,891 760,549 16,342,000 50.15 0 103.0 2,800 17,297,280 421

7 35491 35480 4,400 395,467 393,721 1,746,000 5.36 3968.9 3953.9 15.0 1,950 1,755,000 424

8 33755 33651 41,600 322,708 306,797 15,911,000 48.83 12021 11823.6 197.4 1,350 15,989,400 389

9
12623 12202 168,400 586,263 533,517 52,746,000 161.87 633.4 0 633.4 1,600 60,802,560 324

10

468,080 1,763.4

158,028,000 484.97

122,708,000 376.58

35,320,000 108.39

6

CARLSBAD WATER SYSTEM WELL OPERATION
Mar-23

WELL

POWER CONSUMPTION X 400 WATER PRODUCTION X 1000 ENGINE HOUR CLOCK WATER LEVELS

GPM STATIC
CURRENT 

MONTH
LAST MONTH

KWH 
CONSUMED

CURRENT 
MONTH

LAST MONTH

158,028,000 484.97 TOTAL HOURS RUN
OIL

PUMPED per Hour 
Meter (gal) gal/kwh

GALLONS 
PUMPED

CURRENT 
MONTH

LAST 
MONTH

HOURS 
RUN

TOTAL CHLORINE USED

74.5

Reservoir No. 4 Meter Total Gallons Pumped Comparison Total Rainfall Notes

TOTAL KWH CONSUMED TOTAL PUMPED

Inlet This Month X 1000 3,282,782 THIS MONTH Wells #4 and #5 on State Trust Land

Inlet Last Month X 1000 3,127,121

LAST YEAR, SAME MONTH

DIFFERENCE

Total Inlet (x 1000) 155,661,000 * corrected



YEAR JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC TOTAL

2002 297.16 268.70 440.91 704.96 958.06 1,066.88 1,341.56 1,074.79 774.52 485.05 280.99 155.99 7849.57

2003 270.84 203.99 505.94 1,064.03 1,206.94 1,122.78 1,343.98 1,076.39 775.41 685.53 305.27 409.57 8970.67

2004 385.42 439.36 489.06 680.19 948.71 1,063.84 1,068.05 798.52 772.40 451.14 364.15 414.64 7875.48

2005 332.30 318.24 425.71 655.91 878.61 1,123.12 1,338.81 773.36 830.12 609.54 478.07 445.90 8209.69

2006 395.24 416.50 606.61 799.07 1,145.49 1,165.26 1,141.96 699.68 536.40 574.84 453.79 372.30 8307.14

2007 386.96 350.66 480.44 665.57 629.51 1,062.65 841.31 964.52 740.42 672.37 485.02 446.90 7726.33

2008 452.24 668.55 705.92 934.92 1,060.06 1,454.74 1,040.96 900.29 768.43 684.45 505.09 456.16 9631.81

2009 458.70 519.36 694.55 871.85 1,095.02 1,202.19 951.06 980.82 809.14 666.16 529.67 420.61 9199.13

2010 422.56 352.26 539.69 327.39 1,150.19 1,219.15 848.31 1,057.28 738.68 677.68 503.09 461.84 8298.12

2011 474.73 536.44 800.88 973.90 1,238.89 1,355.98 1,423.54 1,226.62 886.11 776.71 540.43 454.95 10689.18

2012 466.85 431.44 701.69 810.10 828.11 1,185.27 901.47 1,013.28 806.85 652.17 480.34 461.15 8738.72

2013 423.91 412.36 633.53 822.91 947.12 1,047.09 800.86 925.05 727.29 611.46 451.84 377.93 8,181.35

2014 388.31 383.82 557.69 701.51 872.84 1,031.98 1,122.07 893.82 552.90 541.69 414.16 391.00 7,851.79

2015 428.54 369.38 490.96 711.13 732.60 903.17 919.01 994.43 789.98 522.56 432.59 418.96 7,713.31

2016 408.24 364.58 449.03 573.56 672.93 921.77 1,157.49 791.59 541.42 587.72 443.39 442.94 7,354.66

2017 394.41 415.24 615.73 768.14 921.14 883.20 1,007.00 726.66 715.10 536.59 482.95 484.39 7,950.55

2018 484.78 402.92 640.20 750.65 991.56 1,023.15 954.69 853.04 684.90 530.89 386.73 404.76 8,108.27

2019 392.03 408.30 501.88 712.74 920.31 919.36 931.82 860.57 880.60 570.04 425.02 400.18 7,922.85

2020 424.96 402.62 508.41 896.76 983.81 1,161.49 1,242.85 1,055.78 1,045.26 625.06 411.27 463.48 9,221.75

2021 368.52 418.64 712.43 726.13 809.60 837.98 793.40 764.24 715.36 652.05 455.84 403.35 7,657.54

2022 336.78 376.58 515.94 882.91 973.98 975.97 1,147.87 848.51 773.62 493.31 404.67 435.85 8,165.99

2023 330.74 313.20 484.97 1,128.91

7

MUNICIPAL WATER SYSTEM
WATER RIGHTS PUMPED (C-76)

ACRE FEET
(9867 Acre Ft. Available Per Year)

4/11/2023



Sheep Draw Water Pumped - Acre Feet 9867 Acre Feet Available Per Year Difference

January February March April May June July August September October November December Total 9867

1999 259.97 275.11 485.12 694.64 798.54 839.80 903.86 1,102.11 751.40 534.43 395.59 253.70 7,294.27 2,572.73

Total 535.08 1,020.20 1,714.84 2,513.38 3,353.18 4,257.04 5,359.15 6,110.55 6,644.98 7,040.57 7,294.27

2000 303.85 377.05 592.71 710.82 1,063.12 1,168.66 1,072.41 1,134.64 886.90 487.13 260.33 278.46 8,336.08 1,530.92

Total 680.90 1,273.61 1,984.43 3,047.55 4,216.21 5,288.62 6,423.26 7,310.16 7,797.29 8,057.62 8,336.08

2001 379.10 340.60 389.50 714.80 1,129.68 1,083.53 1,341.71 1,074.96 612.54 662.35 356.80 276.27 8,361.84 1,505.16

Total 719.70 1,109.20 1,824.00 2,953.68 4,037.21 5,378.92 6,453.88 7,066.42 7,728.77 8,085.57 8,361.84

2002 297.16 268.70 440.91 704.96 958.06 1,066.88 1,341.56 1,074.79 774.52 485.05 280.99 155.99 7,849.57 2,017.43

Total 565.86 1,006.77 1,711.73 2,669.79 3,736.67 5,078.23 6,153.02 6,927.54 7,412.59 7,693.58 7,849.57

2003 270.84 203.99 505.94 1,064.03 1,206.94 1,122.78 1,343.98 1,076.39 775.41 685.53 305.27 409.57 8,970.67 896.33

Total 474.83 980.77 2,044.80 3,251.74 4,374.52 5,718.50 6,794.89 7,570.30 8,255.83 8,561.10 8,970.67

2004 385.42 439.36 489.06 680.19 948.71 1,063.84 1,068.05 798.52 772.40 451.14 364.15 414.64 7,875.48 1,991.52

Total 824.78 1,313.84 1,994.03 2,942.74 4,006.58 5,074.63 5,873.15 6,645.55 7,096.69 7,460.84 7,875.48

2005 332.30 318.24 425.71 655.91 878.61 1,123.12 1,338.81 773.36 830.12 609.54 478.07 445.90 8,209.69 1,657.31

Total 650.54 1,076.25 1,732.16 2,610.77 3,733.89 5,072.70 5,846.06 6,676.18 7,285.72 7,763.79 8,209.69

2006 395.24 416.50 606.61 799.07 1,145.49 1,165.26 1,141.96 699.68 536.40 574.84 453.79 372.30 8,307.14 1,559.86

Total 811.74 1,418.35 2,217.42 3,362.91 4,528.17 5,670.13 6,369.81 6,906.21 7,481.05 7,934.84 8,307.14

2007 386.96 350.66 480.44 665.57 629.51 1,062.65 841.31 964.52 740.42 672.37 485.02 446.90 7,726.33 2,140.67

Total 737.62 1,218.06 1,883.63 2,513.14 3,575.79 4,417.10 5,381.62 6,122.04 6,794.41 7,279.43 7,726.33

2008 452.24 668.55 705.91 934.92 1,060.06 1,454.74 1,040.96 900.29 768.43 684.45 505.09 456.16 9,631.80 235.20

Total 1,120.79 1,826.70 2,761.62 3,821.68 5,276.42 6,317.38 7,217.67 7,986.10 8,670.55 9,175.64 9,631.80

2009 458.70 519.36 694.55 871.85 1,095.02 1,202.19 951.06 980.82 809.14 666.16 529.67 420.61 9,199.13 667.87

Total 978.06 1,672.61 2,544.46 3,639.48 4,841.67 5,792.73 6,773.55 7,582.69 8,248.85 8,778.52 9,199.13
8



Sheep Draw Water Pumped - Acre Feet 9867 Acre Feet Available Per Year Difference

January February March April May June July August September October November December Total 9,867.00

2011 474.73 536.44 800.88 973.90 1,238.89 1,355.98 1,423.54 1,226.62 886.11 776.71 540.43 454.95 10,689.18 -822.18

Total 1,011.17 1,812.05 2,785.95 4,024.84 5,380.82 6,804.36 8,030.98 8,917.09 9,693.80 10,234.23 10,689.18

2012 466.85 431.44 701.69 810.10 828.11 1,185.27 901.47 1,013.28 806.85 652.17 480.34 461.15 8,738.72 1,128.28

Total 898.29 1,599.98 2,410.08 3,238.19 4,423.46 5,324.93 6,338.21 7,145.06 7,797.23 8,277.57 8,738.72

2013 423.91 412.36 633.53 822.91 947.12 1,047.09 800.86 925.05 727.29 611.46 451.84 377.93 8,181.35 1,685.65

Total 836.27 1,469.80 2,292.71 3,239.83 4,286.92 5,087.78 6,012.83 6,740.12 7,351.58 7,803.42 8,181.35

2014 388.31 383.82 557.69 701.51 872.84 1,031.98 1,122.07 893.82 552.90 541.69 414.16 391.00 7,851.79 2,015.21

Total 772.13 1,329.82 2,031.33 2,904.17 3,936.15 5,058.22 5,952.04 6,504.94 7,046.63 7,460.79 7,851.79

2015 482.54 369.38 490.96 711.13 732.60 903.17 919.01 994.43 789.98 522.56 432.59 418.96 7,767.31 2,099.69

Total 851.92 1,342.88 2,054.01 2,786.61 3,689.78 4,608.79 5,603.22 6,393.20 6,915.76 7,348.35 7,767.31

2016 408.24 364.58 449.03 573.56 672.93 921.77 1,157.49 791.59 541.42 587.72 443.39 442.94 7,354.66 2,512.34

Total 772.82 1,221.85 1,795.41 2,468.34 3,390.11 4,547.60 5,339.19 5,880.61 6,468.33 6,911.72 7,354.66

2017 394.41 415.24 615.73 768.14 921.14 883.20 1,007.00 726.66 715.10 536.59 482.95 484.39 7,950.55 1,916.45

Total 809.65 1,425.38 2,193.52 3,114.66 3,997.86 5,004.86 5,731.52 6,446.62 6,983.21 7,466.16 7,950.55

2018 484.78 402.92 640.20 750.65 991.56 1,023.15 954.69 853.04 684.90 530.89 386.73 404.76 8,108.27 1,758.73

Total 887.70 1,527.90 2,278.55 3,270.11 4,293.26 5,247.95 6,100.99 6,785.89 7,316.78 7,703.51 8,108.27

2019 392.03 408.30 501.88 712.74 920.31 919.37 931.82 860.57 880.60 570.04 425.02 400.18 7,922.86 1,944.14

Total 800.33 1,302.21 2,014.95 2,935.26 3,854.63 4,786.45 5,647.02 6,527.62 7,097.66 7,522.68 7,922.86

2020 438.73 387.20 523.69 928.40 1,015.17 1,177.81 1,120.57 1,062.19 1,066.47 539.88 430.40 463.48 9,153.99 713.01

Total 825.93 1,349.62 2,278.02 3,293.19 4,471.00 5,591.57 6,653.76 7,720.23 8,260.11 8,690.51 9,153.99

2021 368.01 418.64 712.43 726.13 809.60 837.98 793.40 764.24 715.36 652.05 455.84 403.35 7,657.03 2,209.97

Total 786.65 1,499.08 2,225.21 3,034.81 3,872.79 4,666.19 5,430.43 6,145.79 6,797.84 7,253.68 7,657.03

2022 336.78 376.58 515.94 882.91 973.98 975.97 1,147.87 848.51 773.62 493.31 404.67 435.85 8,165.99 1,701.01

Total 713.36 1,229.30 2,112.21 3,086.19 4,062.16 5,210.03 6,058.54 6,832.16 7,325.47 7,730.14 8,165.99
2023 330.74 313.20 484.97 1,128.91 8,738.09
Total 643.94 1,128.91 1,128.91 1,128.91 1,128.91 1,128.91 1,128.91 1,128.91 1,128.91 1,128.91 1,128.91

9



YEAR JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC TOTAL

2002 361.07 373.67 374.24 527.03 956.91 1164.77 996.81 977.93 1153.18 607.92 431.21 301.17 8225.93

2003 391.07 304.91 404.05 598.44 999.69 1030.55 1061.59 1169.02 1046.52 731.67 559.33 342.90 8639.75

2004 418.82 310.23 337.47 479.72 685.58 983.31 984.35 814.65 763.90 475.02 413.97 302.17 6969.19

2005 368.27 275.02 299.95 503.81 693.61 840.97 1296.63 886.95 754.89 658.48 468.42 377.74 7424.74

2006 414.11 677.07 450.26 678.99 725.58 1280.61 1083.09 705.47 564.79 572.49 430.08 334.08 7916.62

2007 354.13 318.22 380.07 437.50 653.63 756.31 899.69 774.47 896.99 541.76 530.36 344.60 6887.72

2008 326.32 375.13 413.71 627.22 842.55 1025.43 943.54 855.66 605.32 559.79 494.03 0.00 7068.68

2009 439.03 352.25 614.56 2321.13 1268.55 1211.80 1099.85 927.66 1030.30 765.46 976.92 564.86 11572.39

2010 567.77 471.98 547.89 757.41 1272.59 1066.67 1081.09 913.03 1105.63 1031.30 950.35 786.38 10552.09

2011 444.27 760.40 774.56 1233.94 1338.54 1352.52 1717.55 1405.40 1347.32 924.66 874.25 677.51 12850.91

2012 565.38 642.97 581.75 926.04 848.01 1000.31 1440.24 1151.94 1237.78 866.01 865.02 670.56 10796.01

2013 616.99 671.05 645.27 975.32 1,049.04 1,249.35 944.16 951.65 1,058.15 785.76 592.98 469.93 10009.65

2014 475.55 470.88 507.96 653.04 920.21 1,041.43 1,157.15 978.54 953.20 558.14 550.55 417.07 8683.72

2015 554.03 282.77 520.21 624.18 758.14 800.23 985.58 863.21 1,068.91 639.91 478.42 448.68 8024.27

2016 456.11 302.09 482.13 615.67 708.66 828.42 1,071.60 820.33 623.25 460.13 368.12 305.64 7042.15

2017 389.78 306.60 440.10 639.30 654.47 838.50 1,049.46 698.97 675.47 504.34 369.98 684.50 7251.47

2018 422.34 332.74 345.80 670.09 971.05 975.33 966.38 858.30 871.28 451.67 438.60 355.77 7659.35

2019 393.08 359.27 350.49 565.35 639.70 890.80 994.24 830.84 887.72 711.06 476.89 347.64 7447.08

2020 336.09 374.53 311.89 657.80 838.33 1,080.68 1,158.21 1,069.16 1,120.70 917.05 479.84 350.70 8694.98

2021 414.83 317.62 365.17 767.91 768.47 825.78 709.15 954.68 597.34 740.70 354.75 355.25 7171.65

2022 367.25 360.67 349.75 693.40 752.88 1,174.27 944.39 940.34 746.92 652.02 422.08 417.17 7821.14

2023 415.22 425.35 388.23 1228.80

10

MUNICIPAL WATER SYSTEM
WATER SOLD

ACRE FEET

* No info available due to transition of new billing system.

4/11/2023



YEAR JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC

2002 10,385 10,398 10,360 10,396 10,485 10,486 10,492 10,479 10,512 10,468 10,448 10,534

2003 10,453 10,420 10,550 10,505 10,549 10,682 10,604 10,670 10,688 10,631 10,586 10,606

2004 10,608 10,541 10,617 10,624 10,627 10,678 10,700 10,730 10,671 10,672 10,684 10,597

2005 10,581 10,552 10,635 10,618 10,645 10,733 10,757 10,747 10,725 10,695 10,692 10,669

2006 10,676 10,669 10,663 10,704 10,687 10,759 10,720 10,746 10,739 10,711 10,670 10,645

2007 10,633 10,661 10,679 10,717 10,726 10,814 10,801 10,786 10,740 10,735 10,761 10,753

2008 10,804 10,784 10,809 10,826 10,836 10,880 10,861 10,875 10,820 10,758 10,713

2009 10,747 10,881 11,126 11,179 11,156 11,232 11,160 11,184 11,158 11,169 11,182 11,107

2010 11,132 11,105 11,201 11,157 11,208 11,221 11,216 11,225 11,201 11,205 11,184 11,165

2011 11,271 11,292 11,256 11,270 11,281 11,349 11,331 11,333 11,327 11,300 11,267 11,224

2012 11,249 11,229 11,277 11,305 11,333 11,353 11,368 11,370 11,319 11,332 11,344 11,321

2013 11,290 11,361 11,415 11,405 11,412 11,450 11,488 11,527 11,507 11,478 11,482 11,442

2014 11,501 11,709 11,803 11,807 11,848 11,893 11,919 11,988 12,001 12,022 11,892 11,993

2015 11,865 11,871 11,916 12,014 11,957 12,153 12,062 12,087 12,020 11,968 11,825 11,978

2016 11,854 12,116 12,166 12,125 12,143 12,224 12,170 12,219 12,162 12,076 11,979 11,948

2017 12,053 12,014 12,173 12,213 12,173 12,223 12,205 12,376 12,213 12,300 12,204 12,288

2018 12,315 12,307 12,329 12,384 12,452 12,531 12,472 12,479 12,467 12,408 12,577 12,352

2019 12,440 12,386 12,556 12,508 12,653 12,656 12,698 12,827 12,644 12,804 12,708 12,653

2020 12,769 12,731 12,859 12,827 12,844 12,926 12,912 13,057 12,996 13,265 12,812 12,799

2021 12,830 12,920 12,945 13,205 13,026 13,162 * * * * * *

2022 * * * * * * * * * * * 12,980

2023 12,572 12,604 12,610

11

MUNICIPAL WATER SYSTEM
METERS IN SERVICE

* No info available due to transition of new billing system.

4/11/2023



YEAR JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC TOTAL

2012 0.59 0.62 1.08 0.83 1.83 3.64 2.31 3.67 2.27 2.01 1.67 1.87 22.41

2013 0.89 2.32 2.26 1.18 1.28 1.73 1.9 3.69 2.01 2.62 1.99 1.06 22.93

2014 1.86 0.73 1.04 1.55 0.66 0.20 3.17 0.96 0.37 1.89 0.80 0.61 13.84

2015 0.03 0.07 0.03 1.02 1.59 2.47 2.57 2.96 2.13 1.35 2.46 1.57 18.25

2016 1.14 2.21 3.25 3.48 2.43 1.45 0.064 0.031 0.002 0.016 0.00 0.058 14.13

2017 0.07 0 0.16 0.31 0 0.51 0.55 0.022 0.00 0 0.18 0.14 1.94

2018 0.00 0.07 0.06 0.082 0.303 0.00 0.002 0.002 0.002 0.002 0.001 0.002 0.53

2019 0.00 0.023 0.36 0.56 1.17 2.72 2.13 2.67 2.60 2.60 1.33 1.99 18.15

2020 0.48 1.04 0.49 1.47 0.61 1.37 0 0.99 1.55 2.03 0.46 0.35 10.84

2021 0.77 0.34 0.45 0.71 0.94 2.01 1 1.56 0.92 0.83 1.21 0.61 11.35

2022 0.89 0.62 0.95 0.27 0.21 0.33 0.9 0.08 0.12 0.01 0.03 0 4.41

2023 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

2011 1.18 1.09 3.76 3.87 3.32 3.91 3.32 1.69 3.5 3.25 3.99 0.81 33.69

2012 2.36 2.65 3.77 3.84 1.27 3.02 2.66 4.22 2.62 2.3 2.65 1.28 32.64

2013 1.32 1.11 0.88 0.49 0.64 1.67 1.78 2.70 1.22 0.97 1.20 0.95 14.93

2014 1.15 0.05 1.51 0.82 0.07 0 0.44 0.27 0.01 0.02 0.01 0.01 4.36

2015 0.01 0 0 0 0 1.04 1.78 3.12 1.12 1.60 2.07 1.25 11.99

2016 1.4 2.14 2.86 3.35 2.18 1.22 0.04 0.03 0 0.02 0 0 13.235

2017 0 0 0.15 0 0 0.48 0.53 0.00 0 0.00 0.00 0 1.16

2018 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 0 0.00 0.00 0 0

2019 0 0 0.33 0.052 0 0.031 0.031 0.00 0.37 0.29 0.51 0.08 1.694

2020 0.04 6.27 0.38 1.21 0.58 1.17 0.31 0.00 1.5 1.75 0.40 0.29 13.9

2021 0.84 0.17 0.42 0.73 0.92 1.9 1.36 1.26 1.17 0.64 0.95 0.79 11.15

2022 * * * * * * * * * * * * 0

2023 0 0 0 0

YEAR JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC TOTAL

2012 227 231 299 198 270 216 274 219 504 293 408 3139

2013 260 309 321 438 267 362 267 315 236 254 362 291 3682

2014 343 360 433 239 353 185 363 399 288 373 484 307 4127

2015 397 254 252 355 256 273 299 303 266 307 535 3497

2016 414 440 298 297 360 239 345 163 177 212 240 172 3357

2017 268 210 265 279 158 231 170 195 166 228 221 177 2568

2018 241 301 120 139 235 153 227 152 206 216 368 199 2557

2019 257 270 334 143 238 147 222 251 235 256 341 217 2911

2020 172 172 235 0 0 0 0 0 0 643 0 0 1222

2021 0 0 0 428 341 255 0 0 0 0 0 0 1024

2022 0 0 797 324 394 345 457 285 276 0 0 0 2878

2023 506 275 291 318 1390

12

AIRPORT WELLS
WATER RIGHTS PUMPED

ACRE FEET
(61.24 Acre Ft. Available Per Year)

WATER CUTOFFS

Note: Water Sold Report  is always one month behind.

AIRPORT WELLS
WATER SOLD

ACRE FEET

*no info available

4/12/2023



YEAR JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC TOTAL

2013 0.05 0.03 0.12 0.16 0.18 0.28 0.21 0.32 0.16 0.20 0.08 0.05 1.84

2014 0.07 0.10 0.16 0.10 0.13 0.29 0.34 0.31 0.17 0.18 0.11 0.10 2.06

2015 0.08 0.07 0.12 0.12 0.11 0.12 0.12 0.26 0.21 0.12 0.08 0.09 1.50

2016 0.07 0.08 0.10 0.07 0.10 0.22 0.16 0.09 0.04 0.04 0.037 0.031 1.04

2017 0.009 0.01 0.03 0.02 0.04 0.10 0.04 0.055 0.046 0.05 0.03 0.034 0.47

2018 0.04 0.02 0.04 0.02 0.02 0.03 0.02 0.03 0.025 0.025 0.034 0.058 0.37

2019 0.061 0.05 0.06 0.05 0.03 0.03 0.01 0.02 0.02 0.02 0.086 0.080 0.51

2020 0.003 0.00 0 0 0.00 0.00 0.05 0.06 0.06 0.043 0.043 0.000 0.26

2021 0 0 0 0 0.00 0.03 0.02 0.02 0.09 0.03 0.02 0.04 0.25

2022 0.01 0.01 0.02 0.02 0.02 0.01 0.2 0.01 0.02 0.02 0.02 0.02 0.38

2023 0.01 0.02 0.02 0.05

2012 10.75 0 10.75

2013 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.51 4.53 4.47 2.98 5.09 1.73 0.51 0.00 0.00 20.82

2014 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 6.81 2.58 0.53 0.00 0.00 0.00 9.92

2015 0.00 0.00 0.07 2.68 2.84 1.93 1.13 2.72 4.71 1.47 2.17 0.26 19.98

2016 0.13 1.89 3.37 4.30 4.49 4.11 4.66 0.82 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 23.77

2017 0.00 0.00 2.60 3.92 3.87 3.63 4.18 2.97 0.33 0.00 0.00 1.38 22.88

2018 0.00 0.07 0.00 1.48 3.53 3.74 1.57 3.46 2.79 1.00 0.00 0.00 17.64

2019 0.00 0.00 0.04 2.56 4.36 4.57 2.72 4.60 3.06 1.04 0.28 0.00 23.23

2020 0.13 0.55 1.06 2.53 3.77 1.58 3.97 3.97 3.81 2.46 0.78 0.29 24.90

2021 0.0045 0.00 1.06 2.23 3.09 3.29 3.36 2.23 2.60 1.07 1.49 1.41 21.84

2022 0.03 0.00 0.31 1.88 3.20 3.74 3.45 2.60 2.30 0.64 0.47 0.70 19.32

2023 0.00 0.02 0.73 0.75

1,000,000 325850

*1,000,000 /325850

2011 0.08 0.90 11.80 9.78 22.64 22.54 18.60 19.88 37.60 8.30 2.20 0.02 154.34

2012 0.00 4.81 9.11 11.16 11.79 18.76 10.00 11.69 15.24 1.89 0.05 0.64 95.13

2013 0.35 0.61 7.29 12.51 16.04 16.64 10.62 16.57 8.61 4.90 2.34 0.27 96.75

2014 1.36 1.79 6.64 10.62 16.04 22.07 21.01 13.50 3.31 4.42 0.12 0.25 101.13

2015 0.29 1.31 4.58 13.01 37.20 2.17 11.54 20.96 8.74 1.62 0.44 0.55 102.41

2016 0.27 2.67 14.42 13.03 22.09 30.57 33.17 15.94 8.18 15.31 1.38 1.44 158.47

2017 1.62 0.93 11.50 17.68 24.58 29.33 29.59 11.05 14.91 8.18 1.56 1.43 152.36

2018 5.02 3.40 12.61 15.47 26.22 28.31 27.69 24.12 34.65 5.79 11.50 1.96 196.74

2019 4.11 2.42 0.01 14.42 49.65 0.70 25.05 21.72 26.74 13.96 7.00 7.03 172.81

2020 1.14 3.17 12.31 28.72 29.58 30.38 32.01 27.83 27.48 11.13 10.67 5.49 219.91

2021 6.43 4.67 13.65 12.36 10.29 18.34 18.00 12.59 17.68 14.25 9.66 0.00 137.92

2022 1.30 2.77 10.51 18.12 17.91 21.45 25.31 19.20 11.97 11.94 10.19 5.43 156.10

2023 10.89 6.93 13.21 31.03

13

SHOOTING RANGE WELL
WATER RIGHTS PUMPED

ACRE FEET
(3 Acre Ft. Available Per Year)

Formula do not delete

SUNSET GARDEN WELL
WATER RIGHTS PUMPED

ACRE FEET

WOOD FARM WELLS

(28.2 Acre Ft. Available Per Year)

4/12/2023



Water Department Summary  

Double Eagle Water System
Mar-23

Production Figures: This Month Previous Month Year to Date
Water:       

Pumped from Double Eagle (Ac. Ft.) 195.09 142.18 445.29
Water Exported to Carlsbad Municipal System 105.25 104.00 288.12
Water delivered to "Paying Livestock Water" Customers (Ac. Ft.) 0.72 0.19 1.12
Water delivered to "Free Livestock Water" Customers (Ac. Ft.) 0.60 0.82 2.08
Water sold to "Governmental Domestic Water" Customers (Ac. Ft.) 0.66 0.43 1.61
Water sold "Commercial Domestic Water" Customers (Ac. Ft.) 0.05 0.40 0.46
Water sold to "Industrial Water" customers (Ac. Ft.) 6.44 3.73 13.91
Water delivered to WIPP (Ac. Ft.) 1.40 1.07 3.49
Water Used by CSW - New Well Const. 0 0 0.00
Safe Drinking Water Act Violations 0 0 0.00

Wells:
Wells in Operation 22 19
KWH consumed* 193,579 127,561 432,867
Total No. of Wells 23 23
Ogallala Aquifer Level at Hudson 1 127.97 126.39
Tatum Aquifer Level 120.15 119.11
Meters in Service 66 66

Distribution Figures:
Transmission Lines:

Line Extension (feet) 0 0 0
Line Replacement (feet) 0 0 0
Leaks (Main Lines) 7 6 25
Leaks (Service Lines) 0 0 0
Number of Isolating Valves Operated 2 2 12
Number of Isolating Valves Serviced 0 0 0
Number of Pressure Reducing Valves Serviced 0 0 0
Number of Air Relief Valves Serviced 0 0 0
Line Location Services 64 35 172

Remarks:
Wells Down - C-3, AMB-1, AMB-3, CR-16, CR-17, CR-4

* Not available

** No info available due to billing transitioning to new system.

14

                                                         Acre Ft.

Ron Myers,  Water Superintendent



Present Previous Present Previous Avg Static Water Pumping
Read Read Gallons Acre Ft. Read Read GPM Elevation Elevation

AMBASSADOR # 1 Neptune/ Trident off

AMBASSADOR # 4 Well Inoperable

AMBASSADOR # 3 Well Inoperable 6,164 5,941 223 off

C-11 McCrometer 38,509,867 36,595,807 1,914,060 5.87 137,360 129,995 7,365

C-10 McCrometer 34,920,641 32,218,510 2,702,131 8.29 167,950 156,594 11,356

C-6 Mc Crometer 38,186,603 30,315,990 7,870,613 24.15 519,939 498,290 21,649 20,693.4 19,927.6 765.8 140

CAPROCK # 19 Mc Crometer Mag 33,222,552 32,231,927 990,625 3.04 29,059 26,531 2,528 15,780.0 15,041.6 738.4 25

CAPROCK # 13 Mc Crometer 87,384,877 82,930,739 4,454,138 13.67 183,041 170,696 12,345 19,627.0 18,806.0 821 140

C-9 McCrometer 26,466,412 24,615,531 1,850,881 5.68 125,938 120,907 5,031 0.0

CAPROCK # 20 Sensus/ Omni 74,771,018 68,096,294 6,674,724 20.48 168,126 152,940 15,186 9,001.2 8,179.4 821.8 150

CAPROCK # 10 Mc Crometer 10,467,327 9,930,243 537,084 1.65 114,655 112,266 2,389 19,746.2 19,644.0 102.2 90

C-8 McCrometer 41,242,001 38,971,947 2,270,054 6.97 124,076 117,907 6,169 0.0

C-7 McCrometer 23,370,502 21,847,038 1,523,464 4.68 91,019 87,022 3,997 0.0

CAPROCK # 18 Sensus/ Omni 2,386,728 241,743 2,144,985 6.58 45,977 39,782 6,195 11,501.6 11,023.7 477.9 90

CAPROCK # 6 Neptune/ Trident 128,033,056 122,429,983 5,603,073 17.20 51,295 38,448 12,847 27,140.0 26,316.3 823.7 105

CAPROCK # 4 McCrometer 32,774,551 32,774,551 0 0.00 43,680 42,343 1,337 13,966.9 13,966.9 0 45

CAPROCK # 1 Mc Crometer 34,239,764 34,239,764 0 0.00 134,755 133,145 1,610 17,077.8 17,077.8 0 30

Frontier # 2 Mc Crometer 39,651,465 38,031,263 1,620,202 4.97 156,097 150,543 5,554 17,090.3 16,394.8 695.5 30

Frontier # 1 Sensus/ Omni 37,978,885 37,021,774 957,111 2.94 3,134 412 2,722 25,604.4 25,331.2 273.2 50

FRONTIER # 3 Mc Crometer 110,324,780 107,368,019 2,956,761 9.07 22,218 15,670 6,548 13,840.8 13,490.6 350.2 140

C-2 Mc Crometer 2,426,005 0 2,426,005 7.45 5,130 0 5,130 211.2 0.0 211.2 160

HUDSON # 1 Octave 13,383,343 11,740,758 1,642,585 5.04 226,232 221,392 4,840 10,053.1 9,739.0 314.1 130

CAPROCK # 14 Mc Crometer 50,515,008 45,301,694 5,213,314 16.00 128,434 114,382 14,052 8,693.5 7,915.7 777.8 110

CAPROCK # 15A Mc Crometer 118,921,243 114,191,113 4,730,130 14.52 385,710 374,643 11,067 9,913.8 9,279.0 634.8 130

CAPROCK # 21 Mc Crometer 67,964,572 65,320,356 2,644,216 8.11 173,341 163,961 9,380 12,904.6 12,380.3 524.3 65

C-1 Mc Crometer 46,707,467 43,864,071 2,843,396 8.73 93,815 87,494 6,321 16,312.6 15,952.6 360 110

CAPROCK # 2 Well Inoperable 159,386 10,999.9

CAPROCK # 3 Well Inoperable 1,045

CAPROCK # 5 Well Inoperable

C-5 Well Inoperable

C-4 Mc Crometer

C-3 Mc Crometer

CAPROCK # 17 Mc Crometer 80

CAPROCK # 16 Mc Crometer off

Boosters 9,866,615 9,866,615 0 0.00 159,386 141,688 17,698 10999.9 10999.9 0

2 MG RESERVOIR 1,045 1,005 40

Totals 63,569,552 195.09 193,579 8691.90
Meter Reads In Barrells 15
Ambassadors #1 &  # 3 - Wells Inoperable
C-3, & Caprock #16 - Wells Inoperable
Meter Changed Out
Meter removed.

Hours RunWell Status
Water Pumped

KWH Current Previous

Double Eagle Well Operation
Mar-23

Water Production Power Consumption Motor Hours Well Information



YEAR JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC TOTAL

2003 122.27 104.02 106.63 131.16 131.94 108.31 137.27 122.89 129.50 122.80 83.40 125.20 1,425.39

2004 94.10 99.14 108.96 88.59 85.29 104.91 80.47 96.62 108.99 99.07 84.00 132.98 1,183.12

2005 81.06 73.83 91.00 90.00 110.71 129.71 103.80 125.81 89.55 91.54 92.55 103.75 1,183.31

2006 99.66 92.01 109.29 75.35 137.85 132.18 86.22 98.53 96.51 96.88 103.45 82.69 1,210.62

2007 73.12 78.65 99.85 73.60 97.46 93.25 114.77 141.58 113.26 111.06 98.79 109.92 1,205.31

2008 108.28 117.41 93.89 110.54 91.87 107.59 103.60 134.80 114.37 126.79 119.45 139.80 1,368.39

2009 115.53 83.87 105.70 112.09 109.80 124.02 128.01 105.62 101.64 134.59 96.48 98.93 1,316.28

2010 98.23 113.03 134.55 139.75 121.56 152.79 139.33 180.08 160.27 158.58 167.75 151.88 1,717.80

2011 171.89 131.01 144.73 160.28 185.57 170.30 157.83 137.34 139.25 135.26 137.58 117.98 1,789.02

2012 112.77 108.16 110.15 110.62 111.76 186.92 141.80 163.02 72.61 134.45 161.72 175.64 1,589.62

2013 164.38 146.44 142.20 145.50 142.80 124.28 97.54 94.88 109.18 103.89 93.63 85.58 1,450.30

2014 85.93 86.42 87.69 97.98 125.16 108.77 144.13 120.58 98.47 114.24 102.38 107.72 1,279.47

2015 89.83 63.29 89.61 87.98 64.58 50.44 70.24 51.81 37.52 33.59 30.08 30.07 699.04

2016 30.64 38.22 36.18 26.75 28.85 34.75 32.22 33.35 23.61 26.72 29.06 31.03 371.38

2017 25.7 35.61 28.01 23.74 32.89 38.88 31.35 39.17 34.97 35.18 35.9 30.94 392.34

2018 40.13 23.75 34.02 35.14 39.33 42.3 31.46 43.72 38.41 37.23 35.01 31.7 432.20

2019 38.5 31.43 38.88 47.10 47.95 27.52 54.21 65.54 52.22 48.53 47.46 38.97 538.31

2020 33.11 23.96 37.75 38.84 68.02 54.59 77.21 59.61 62.09 51.36 93.76 34.66 634.96

2021 62.14 65.22 46.43 96.87 69.61 96.94 91.63 56.41 120.17 121.64 87.7 85.52 1,000.28

2022 68.37 81.29 92.93 110.89 112.75 115 78.14 79.49 131.9 119.22 93.76 138.36 1,222.10

2023 108.02 142.18 195.09 445.29

16

DOUBLE EAGLE WATER SYSTEM
WATER RIGHTS PUMPED

ACRE FEET
7648 Acre Ft. Available Per Year

4/11/2023



YEAR JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC TOTAL

2003 103.16 118.81 92.16 100.16 106.02 121.98 117.48 118.48 96.98 96.27 117.92 65.14 1,255            

2004 77.06 132.54 98.28 113.37 95.77 156.29 95.71 102.28 75.52 133.76 82.88 78.70 1,242            

2005 95.53 53.68 62.88 76.56 70.95 68.86 107.91 88.42 76.59 66.83 88.31 60.69 917              

2006 68.06 68.09 64.04 74.07 54.60 73.13 70.56 65.77 63.28 71.94 70.15 67.72 811              

2007 63.47 71.20 43.33 64.06 81.36 83.03 80.18 72.46 89.35 38.88 49.77 115.89 853              

2008 73.31 54.99 170.85 58.17 113.89 87.58 112.17 93.30 54.07 113.46 87.57 0.00 1,019            

2009 133.68 134.89 193.91 128.57 124.42 147.29 149.87 144.41 403.39 204.34 216.64 205.47 2,187            

2010 166.20 147.23 156.74 206.90 262.81 159.74 235.21 209.27 261.26 289.04 249.98 202.71 2,547            

2011 273.88 296.83 197.17 305.62 293.17 356.46 306.39 341.59 373.96 299.28 332.79 115.34 3,492            

2012 70.53 108.07 365.95 127.64 147.59 169.53 110.81 151.82 168.33 94.88 158.73 145.76 1,820            

2013 304.62 105.90 114.03 89.49 91.59 72.45 66.60 67.58 58.66 52.40 62.94 49.32 1,136            

2014 60.02 54.78 73.24 66.94 80.62 76.05 68.73 80.55 75.86 58.67 67.36 63.32 826              

2015 59.07 47.81 31.75 28.16 38.17 18.94 17.79 19.48 17.51 11.21 9.04 8.54 307              

2016 11.61 8.13 9.02 7.07 5.58 4.20 7.95 6.37 7.11 4.21 3.57 3.61 78                

2017 4.28 4.14 3.55 4.95 3.85 8.38 7.79 4.46 4.83 3.69 4.76 7.98 63                

2018 6.59 9.34 3.65 6.59 7.74 7.76 11.90 10.94 10.64 4.89 8.53 4.29 93                

2019 8.82 6.04 3.21 5.81 9.53 6.98 9.20 9.01 13.52 11.29 9.57 11.67 105              

2020 8.15 8.88 6.63 7.80 8.57 11.79 12.75 11.66 9.38 8.64 8.64 11.87 115              

2021 4.34 2.25 8.89 9.73 16.09 8.99 13.45 7.96 8.14 6.35 18.20 7.44 111.83

2022 4.86 4.86 7.35 8.99 11.39 11.67 13.44 12.63 11.79 7.41 8.69 5.88 108.96

2023 9.35 7.06 7.84 24.25

Note: Free Stock Included 17

DOUBLE EAGLE WATER SYSTEM
WATER SOLD/PROVIDED

ACRE FEET

** Number includes Paying Livestock/Free Livestock/Gov Domestic/Comm Domestic/Industrial/WIPP

4/11/2023





Ron
Typewriter
19



YEAR JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC TOTAL

2000 275.31 248.42 260.88 233.80 316.16 282.37 276.77 278.69 311.94 258.03 349.52 325.73 3,417.62

2001 272.21 204.60 217.67 191.40 142.09 236.98 244.68 224.77 225.64 195.79 254.84 265.78 2,676.45

2002 266.35 232.01 263.62 256.99 225.81 190.74 250.02 214.79 206.30 244.07 207.28 239.84 2,797.82

2003 195.98 143.44 168.79 155.94 169.64 151.16 185.64 183.40 174.65 209.24 209.88 236.34 2,184.10

2004 232.32 213.56 223.88 291.51 274.82 213.81 209.05 186.17 199.53 241.73 280.59 208.26 2,775.23

2005 184.13 164.12 178.11 168.66 206.41 168.17 167.37 181.58 157.77 173.60 147.12 169.92 2,066.96

2006 141.87 127.02 172.99 140.40 140.92 169.70 174.86 188.76 197.39 185.97 178.88 182.23 2,000.99

2007 175.29 153.32 169.55 166.88 207.94 153.26 271.96 303.14 316.00 351.48 364.76 305.84 2,939.42

2008 259.44 239.22 252.53 246.40 228.69 180.08 206.35 210.09 240.35 261.89 258.89 171.21 2,755.14

2009 358.99 231.11 189.22 175.11 196.47 196.37 167.43 158.99 147.30 182.56 165.29 186.18 2,355.02

2010 179.80 164.40 171.85 172.47 136.28 138.37 220.04 174.07 196.08 190.49 192.02 181.35 2,117.22

2011 177.75 161.00 153.44 128.22 131.87 132.52 140.71 144.86 149.98 149.77 158.14 176.47 1,804.73

2012 177.26 133.35 158.96 132.17 197.54 139.17 163.09 149.43 143.97 124.39 140.86 183.20 1,843.39

2013 174.54 155.21 161.36 131.65 121.07 133.60 175.46 164.14 177.28 206.07 240.30 209.81 2,050.49

2014 210.63 150.47 156.04 153.06 160.67 157.52 218.21 280.09 284.34 255.76 244.57 224.53 2,495.89

2015 251.82 212.71 212.94 169.98 208.69 201.13 216.44 237.77 198.80 221.07 202.61 233.28 2,567.24

2016 250.84 215.81 203.86 199.36 220.94 213.33 202.97 238.61 251.05 230.03 217.11 202.17 2,646.08

2017 226.02 195.23 190.92 172.18 121.62 114.39 132.83 166.44 166.80 172.02 164.66 171.59 1,994.70

2018 180.72 134.33 132.78 116.31 115.83 119.59 129.91 152.77 160.73 184.72 166.96 175.48 1,770.13

2019 187.77 147.18 151.39 141.14 122.93 147.25 156.34 163.47 171.70 196.57 190.31 181.66 1,957.71

2020 171.87 152.55 144.74 108.70 129.17 128.14 127.36 133.91 137.49 147.44 150.85 168.11 1,700.33

2021 176.88 166.70 155.81 141.66 147.77 138.68 213.38 233.23 213.59 229.06 205.63 201.46 2,223.85

2022 215.85 180.58 165.29 88.93 133.36 132.40 154.29 155.42 159.82 200.87 194.49 193.65 1,974.95

2023 195.33 175.90 127.53 498.76

EFFLUENT DISCHARGE TO PECOS RIVER
ACRE / FEET

4/5/2023 Pg. 20



YEAR JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC TOTAL

2000 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

2001 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

2002 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

2003 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

2004 18.94 15.45 17.52 25.36 40.46 43.55 50.58 38.81 31.31 20.14 7.82 8.08 318.02

2005 6.96 5.99 14.35 35.49 31.91 43.54 45.14 30.45 37.52 25.95 25.12 20.74 323.16

2006 22.68 22.17 23.21 37.40 49.95 99.47 207.81 72.92 23.20 34.28 20.50 17.75 631.34

2007 13.63 13.91 24.14 31.79 27.52 49.34 36.59 38.53 32.68 25.42 12.77 13.64 319.96

2008 15.06 20.54 21.83 41.29 46.49 48.50 35.56 40.95 22.85 38.63 26.92 7.18 365.80

2009 16.77 20.71 26.54 40.51 39.84 41.08 44.08 51.38 49.33 43.70 27.62 11.71 413.27

2010 16.58 8.89 23.08 31.79 62.07 61.63 15.10 49.33 28.02 29.55 21.36 18.51 365.91

2011 14.69 8.13 38.05 54.54 56.44 52.72 55.45 50.42 49.73 44.67 23.78 7.38 456.00

2012 5.82 10.40 24.91 46.25 37.18 50.67 42.51 59.86 50.03 26.67 15.56 8.15 378.01

2013 8.68 7.48 21.68 38.81 58.76 53.68 37.15 36.50 21.42 29.52 12.20 14.36 340.24

2014 19.88 23.44 34.05 32.20 47.27 54.26 67.18 45.85 21.00 32.05 19.69 28.04 424.91

2015 7.33 13.31 21.93 47.89 49.49 75.50 63.51 46.70 44.23 16.48 17.41 12.08 415.86

2016 7.43 17.65 41.85 42.00 37.41 34.82 53.26 35.94 29.90 29.75 21.56 18.97 370.54

2017 10.85 15.78 32.93 38.92 58.76 70.39 69.88 42.35 41.26 32.46 17.40 10.48 441.46

2018 25.29 45.73 62.15 81.04 88.81 83.84 93.81 74.15 55.54 42.74 34.22 15.62 702.94

2019 18.09 35.37 50.54 63.17 87.76 78.14 89.60 85.06 68.66 48.29 26.89 27.94 679.51

2020 28.16 29.07 40.67 66.70 70.90 67.84 77.07 74.77 58.73 42.58 23.60 10.88 590.97

2021 7.76 6.75 44.46 41.16 47.64 63.50 37.20 40.37 10.15 33.27 30.33 13.21 375.80

2022 6.81 14.04 38.29 48.19 67.72 82.38 70.77 77.47 75.39 27.51 15.31 14.71 538.59

2023 12.63 10.61 83.36 106.60

EFFLUENT REUSE 
ACRE / FEET

4/5/2023 Pg. 21



 
 

 
 

 

 CITY OF CARLSBAD 

 
 INTER-OFFICE MEMORANDUM  
Dale Janway, Mayor John Lowe City Administrator 
 
 

May 1, 2023 
 

TO:  Council Members 
 
FROM: Mayor Janway 
 
RE:  Board, Commission and Committee Appointments 
  
Subject to the approval of the Governing Body, I would like to appoint the following: 

 
Carlsbad Riverwalk Recreation Complex Advisory Board    
Appoint:   Cheyenne Methola  4 year term 
 
Carlsbad Museum and Art Center Advisory Board 
Appoint:   Alana Akacki              5 Year term 
  
 
 
 
Thank you 
DJ/wca 



 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2023-____ 
 

AN ORDINANCE REZONING PART OF “C-2” 

COMMERCIAL 2 DISTRICT TO “R-1” 

RESIDENTIAL 1 DISTRICT FOR AN 

APPROXIMATELY 1.01 ACRE PROPERTY, 

LOCATED AT 2021 WEST TEXAS STREET, 

LEGALLY DESCRIBED AS LOT 6, BLOCK A, 

SWIGART SUBDIVISION, PURSUANT TO 

SECTION 3-21-1 ET. SEQ. NMSA 1978 AND 

SECTIONS 56-150(B) AND 56-140(I), CARLSBAD 

CODE OF ORDINANCES. 

 

 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY OF CARLSBAD, 

EDDY COUNTY, NEW MEXICO, that:  

The official zoning map of the City is hereby amended to rezone part of  "C-2" Commercial 2 

District to "R-1" Residential 1 District for an approximately 1.01 acre property, located at 2021 W. 

Texas St., legally described as: 

Lot 6, Block A, Swigart Subdivision 

 

INTRODUCED, PASSED, ADOPTED AND APPROVED this 13th day of June, 2023. 

 

 

____________________________________ 

DALE JANWAY, MAYOR  

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

__________________________________ 

CITY CLERK 

 

 

 



 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2023-____ 
 

AN ORDINANCE REZONING PART OF “R-R” 

RURAL RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT TO “C-2” 

COMMERCIAL 2 DISTRICT FOR AN 

APPROXIMATELY 4.1 ACRE PROPERTY, 

LOCATED AT 2003 STANDPIPE ROAD,  

LEGALLY DESCRIBED AS QUARTER:  NE S: 14 

T: 22S R: 26E BEG 40' S OF NE COR, W 450', S 400' 

E 450', N 400' TO POB, PURSUANT TO SECTION 

3-21-1 ET. SEQ. NMSA 1978 AND SECTIONS 56-

150(B) AND 56-140(I), CARLSBAD CODE OF 

ORDINANCES. 

 

 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY OF CARLSBAD, 

EDDY COUNTY, NEW MEXICO, that:  

The official zoning map of the City is hereby amended to rezone part of  "R-R" Rural Residential  

District to "C-2" Commercial 2 District for an approximately 4.1 acre property, located at 2003 

Standpipe Rd., legally described as: 

Quarter: NE S: 14 T: 22S R: 26E BEG 40' S OF NE COR, W 450', S 400' E 450', N 

400' TO POB 

 

INTRODUCED, PASSED, ADOPTED AND APPROVED this 13th day of June, 2023. 

 

 

____________________________________ 

DALE JANWAY, MAYOR  

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

__________________________________ 

CITY CLERK 

 

 

 



 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2023-____ 
 

AN ORDINANCE REZONING PART OF “R-2” 

RESIDENTIAL 2 DISTRICT TO “C-1” 

COMMERCIAL 1 DISTRICT FOR AN 

APPROXIMATELY 0.34 ACRE PROPERTY, 

LOCATED AT 609 WEST FOX STREET, LEGALLY 

DESCRIBED AS LOTS 2 AND 4, BLOCK 99, 

STEVENS SECOND ADDITION SUBDIVISION 

PURSUANT TO SECTION 3-21-1 ET. SEQ. NMSA 

1978 AND SECTIONS 56-150(B) AND 56-140(I), 

CARLSBAD CODE OF ORDINANCES. 

 

 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY OF CARLSBAD, 

EDDY COUNTY, NEW MEXICO, that:  

The official zoning map of the City is hereby amended to rezone part of  "R-2" Residential 2 District 

to "C-1" Commercial 1 District for an approximately 0.34 acre property, located at 609 W. Fox St., 

legally described as: 

Lots 2 & 4, Block 99, Stevens Second Addition Subdivision 

 

INTRODUCED, PASSED, ADOPTED AND APPROVED this 13th day of June, 2023. 

 

 

____________________________________ 

DALE JANWAY, MAYOR  

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

__________________________________ 

CITY CLERK 

 

 

 





oeramirez
Typewriter
/s/John Lowe                                                                    05/04/2023



CITY OF CARLSBAD 
 

AGENDA BRIEFING MEMORANDUM 
 

 COUNCIL MEETING DATE: ________    
DEPARTMENT:  
 

BY:  DATE:  
 
 

SUBJECT:   
 
 
SYNOPSIS, HISTORY and IMPACT (SAFETY AND WELFARE/FINANCIAL/PERSONNEL/INFRASTRUCTURE/ETC.):  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
DEPARTMENT RECOMMENDATION:  
 
 
 
 
 
BOARD/COMMISSION/COMMITTEE ACTION: 
 
o 
o 
o 

P & Z 
Museum 
Library Board 

o 
o 
o 

Lodgers Tax Board 
San Jose Board 
N. Mesa Board 

o 
o 
o 

Cemetery Board 
Water Board 
_________  Committee   

o 
o 
 

APPROVED 
DISAPPROVED 
 
 
 

Reviewed by 
City Administrator: ___________________________                Date: _____________________ 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  

 

Water / Double Eagle
05.09.23

05.01.23

Request for livestock water service.

Zach Ozborn with Turkey Track Ranch has submitted a request for a livestock water service in the 
Double Eagle Water System. This request was presented to the Board of Water and Sewer 
Commissioners at their meeting held on February 16, 2023. The Board recommended approval of 
this request. Upon successful negotiation of agreement/contract the Mayor and/or City Administrator 
are authorized to execute all documents necessary to implement the terms of this agreement/contract. 
This request is presented to the Governing Body for it's consideration.

Request for Livestock Water Service

The Water Department recommends approval of this request.

Ivan M. Abell
Director of Utilities

/s/John Lowe 05/04/2023

Digitally signed by Ivan M. 
Abell
DN: CN=Ivan M. Abell, O="",  
OU="", E=imabelll@
cityofcarlsbadnm.com, C=US
Reason: I am the author of 
th is document
Locat ion:  
Date: 2023.05.01 
07:29:16
-06'00 '
Foxit PDF Editor Version: 
12.0.1



City of Carlsbad 
Inter-Office Memorandum 

Dale Janway, Mayor                                                                                                 John Lowe,  City Administrator 
 

TO:             John Lowe, City Administrator            

FROM:       Ron Myers, Water Department Superintendent 

DATE:        February 6, 2023 

RE:              Request for Double Eagle livestock water 

 

Zach Ozborne with Turkey Track Ranch has submitted a request for a Double Eagle livestock 

water service. The requested location is just east of NM249 with GPS coordinates of  

32.940719, -103.792502. See the attached map. 

Digitally signed by Ron Myers
DN: CN=Ron Myers, O=City of 
Carlsbad, OU=Water 
Department, E=rwmyers@
cityofcarlsbadnm.com, C=US
Reason: I have reviewed this 
document
Location: 
Date: 2023.02.08 
06:20:43
-07'00'
Foxit  PDF Editor Vers ion: 12.0.1



City of Carlsbad • 101 N. Halagueno
P.O. Box 1569 • Carlsbad, NM 88221-1569 
Telephone (575) 887-1191 • 1-800-658-2713 • Fax (575) 885-2657 

APPLICATION FOR DOUBLE EAGLE WATER SERVICE 

LOCATION OF REQUESTED SERVICE 

SECTION                         , TOWNSHIP            , RANGE        , N.M.P.M.     COUNTY, NM. 

LAT/LONG  NAD 27      TERM         DAYS (MAXIMUM SERVICE DURATION) 

NAME 

DRIVER'S LICENSE NO.         PHONE NO.  MOBILE NO. 

CURRENT ADDRESS 

MAILING ADDRESS (if different from above) 

CATEGORY OF USE:      Livestock Water   Governmental Domestic     Commercial Domestic  Industrial 

If Industrial:  Purpose and Location 

Estimated monthly usage will be      gallons per month (30 days)   X 3/1000 X                      = 
 Max monthly usage    rate per 1,000 gallons   deposit 

METHOD OF PAYMENT: 
Check Cash Letter of Credit Surety Bond Credit Card    Exp. Date 

Other Accounts with the City of Carlsbad: 
I have never had City water, sewer, or garbage services before this time. 

I have / had a current / past service at: 

Applicant agrees to: 
I. Pay a                          connection fee with this agreement, and a minimum deposit of  as set by Resolution 2012-67.  Said 

deposit will be refundable once service has been terminated and account balance has been paid in full.
II. Pay a monthly minimum of  or the current rate* per thousand gallons, whichever is greater.  Non-payment or late payment will 

result in immediate termination of service.
III. Reimburse City for all expenses City incurs to install the connection/tap to the water main and the totalizing meter.
IV. Purchase non-potable and untreated water from the City of Carlsbad, Double Eagle System, at the current rates* and in accordance to the City

of Carlsbad’s water policies.  The City makes no warranties, express or implied, as to the water’s qualities, purity or potability.
V. Maintain storage facilities adequate to hold a twelve (12) hour supply of water for this service.
VI. Install first a gate type cut-off valve and then an approved, properly functioning, Watts series 007 back-flow prevention device (no substitutions

allowed) within 10 feet downstream of the meter.
VII. Install an air gap at the storage facility.  The air gap distance needs to be 2.5 times the size of the inlet line.
VIII. Maintain and replace the backflow preventer and any waterline downstream of the cut-off valve.
IX. Allow representatives of the City to inspect to assure compliance.
X. Notify the City when the service is to be terminated.  The “Applicant” will continue to be responsible for all water and services provided until it

terminates this Agreement in writing.
XI. Begin water use once the service is activated.  Inactive services will be stop-locked without notice.

No water will be furnished under this agreement if the “Applicant” is in arrears 30 days or more on this or any other water service furnished by the City of 
Carlsbad.  Unpaid balance shall bear interest at the rate of 12% per year.  This agreement may be terminated by either party with 10 days written notice.  
Where there is an immediate threat to the City of Carlsbad’s water system, service may be terminated immediately under this application without notice. 

*Rate is subject to an annual rate increase effective October 1st of every year in accordance with Ordinance 98-12.
NOTE:  Payment of connection fee and minimum deposit are required to process agreement.

Previous Service:     Yes  No  Amount Fees paid with this application: 
Existing Liens       Connection Fee 

Pending Liens       Deposit  

Outstanding Balance      Tap Fee  

Reviewed By: Approved By:  Total 

Applicant's Signature    Date 

Account No.  

East of Aries Rd, off Hwy 249

32.940719  -103.792502
Bogle Ltd c/o Zach Ozborn (manager)

0 $ 13.40 $ 0.00

$ 200.00 $ 0.00

$ 25.00

$ 200.00

$ 0.00

$ 200.00



 



 



 
 
 

 

 

CITY OF CARLSBAD 
 

AGENDA BRIEFING MEMORANDUM 
 

 Council Meeting Date:  5/9/2023   
Department:  Planning & 
Regulation 

  
 By:  Jeff Patterson, Planning Director 

  
DATE: 4/28/2023 
      

SUBJECT:   Request by Milton’s Brewery to serve alcohol (beer & wine) on City streets during the 
Carlsbad MainStreet Third Thursday events. 

  
BACKGROUND, ANALYSIS AND IMPACT: (Safety and Welfare/Financial/Personnel/Infrastructure/etc.) 

 
Milton’s Brewing wishes to partner with Carlsbad MainStreet and participate in the Third Thursday on-
street market events scheduled for 2023. The Third Thursday events begin on Thursday, June 15, 
2023, and run through Thursday, October 19, 2023, with a total of six events planned (6/15, 7/20, 8/17, 
9/14, 9/21/& 10/19). The events are scheduled to begin at 4:00 pm and end at 11:00 pm, with alcohol 
service beginning at 4:00 pm and ending at 10:00 pm. Milton’s will set up a beer garden outside of their 
building during the event, and security will be posted at the beer garden as well as roaming the entire 
event. All entrants to the beer garden 21 years or older will be given a bracelet to wear and will be a 
requirement to purchase beer or wine within the event. All designated drivers that enter the event area 
will be given a separate bracelet as identification. No alcohol will be allowed to be taken out of the 
designated event area. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
DEPARTMENT RECOMMENDATION: If it is the will of the Council to allow beer and wine sales 
and consumption within an event area located on City streets, City staff recommends the following 
requirements: 
 

1. The alcohol server obtain all required licenses and permits; 
2. Milton’s Brewing and the alcohol server comply with all laws, rules, regulations, 

requirements and restrictions for service at the location (included, but not limited to fencing 
of service area, carding of customers, and providing appropriate security); 

3. Both Milton’s Brewing shall name the City of Carlsbad as an Additional Insured on their 
general liability insurance and liquor server insurance in an amount to be approved by the 
City Administrator. 

  
BOARD/COMMISSION/COMMITTEE ACTION: 

      P & Z 
      Museum Board 
      Library Board 

    Lodgers Tax Board 
    San Jose Board 
    N. Mesa Board 

   Cemetery Board 
   Water Board 
          Committee 

}   APPROVED 

}   

}  

DISAPPROVED 

 
 
 
 
 
       ATTACHMENT(S): Event Request, Map 

Reviewed by 

City Administrator _______________________________________  Date: ____________ 

oeramirez
Typewriter
/s/John Lowe                                                               05/04/2023



CITY OF CARLSBAD
FACILITY REQUEST FORM

Request for Facility Use: (Check One)

Beach Bandshell/Pavilion Ray Anaya San Jose Plaza MLK Pavilion/Park
Heritage Park North Water Park Front DC Other (Please Specify):

Purpose of Use: Vw
Event Date: U I is / 9.3 1 l?o(2?> , ^>/n|23, Event Time: ~ 11 <2^' / . I 77p 1 2-H 2§ j <0/ m123
Organization:

Contact of Person:

Address: 213 fV\CrvVV£Ql City/State: Cdrlsb^ ( M M
Phone Numbers: S75-

Release of Liability
The City shall not be responsible for any personal injury, death, or property loss or damage to the persons
or entities using the facilities, their agents, employees, officers, representatives, assigns, customers,
patrons, guest, or invitees arising from any cause or causes whatsoever.

In consideration for the use of the City facilities named above, I do, for myself, the organization I
represent, my heirs, executors and administrator, hereby release and discharge the City of Carlsbad, its
officers, directors, employees, and agents from all manner of claims, liabilities, obligations, causes of
action, damages, suits, losses, and expenses of every kind, which I and/or the organization! represent
have now or hereinafterand which are associated, in any manner, with this Permit, the use of the
facilities, or the event listed above.

Additionally, I and the organization! represent shall save, indemnify, and hold harmless the City, its
officers, directors, employees, and agents from and against any and all claims, liabilities, obligations,
causes of action, damages, suits, losses, and expenses of every kind, together with any attorneys’ fees
and litigation costs, made by or on behalf of any person or entity arising out of or in any maimer
associated with this Permit, the use of the facilities, or the event listed abovez—x

Signature

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY:

ADDITIONAL INFO/REQUESTS: APPROVED BY:
Coordinator: Date:
Director:

City Administrator:



The FACILITY has been provided for special community events and entertainment for those
enjoying is recreation area.

Approval for use of the FACILITY will be contingent on observance of the following guidelines:

1. No loud activities or activities that may disturb the surrounding residents.

2. Due to city water restrictions, there are no water hookups.

Water slides are not allowed.

3. Activities must conclude by 10:00 p.m.

4. Sales or solicitations in connection with presentations are not permitted.

5. It is illegal to possess or consume alcoholic beverages in City Parks.

6. Use of the FACILITY should not interfere with use of the rest of the park area by

others.

7. Persons or groups using the FACILITY must provide responsible supervision.

8. Persons or groups using the FACILITY shall be responsible for damage to or loss of

city facilities and equipment.

9. The FACILITY is to be used for special events and not for regularly scheduled

meetings or programs.

10. The persons reserving the FACILITY will be responsible for cleaning the FACILITY

and surrounding area. All trash must be properly disposed of.

11. Requests for reservations of the FACILITY should be made far enough in advance to

allow proper scheduling of the facility. The FACILITY cannot be reserved more than

one (1) year in advance.

12. No vehicles allowed on the grass.

13. Do not leave fires or burning coals in the grills.

14. Do not mail, tape, glue, hang or otherwise attach items to the building

15. No pets are allowed in the park.

Parks & Public Spaces
City of Carlsbad
Planning, Engineering, &
Regulation Department
Attention: Jeff Patterson
P.O. Box 1569
Carlsbad, NM 88221-1569
(575) 885-1185



ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE CONTROL | PUBLIC CELEBRATION PERMIT APPLICATION
Fee Per Day: (do not submit cash) Date Application Filed:

A copy of all approved permits are sent to the Special Investigations Division of the Department of Public Safety,
and DPS will request additional information, if needed.

LICENSE HOLDER INFORMATION: Check boxes that apply
Liquor License # 67146 Type of License: Craft Distiller HSmall Brewer Dwinegrower
Owner Name: Miltons Brewing LLC

Business Name (DBA): Milton's Brewing

Mailing Address: 213 W. Mermod

Phone No: 575-499-9244 ext . Person t0 ask for; Lucas Middleton

Email Address: lucas@miltonsbrewing.com

EVENT INFORMATION:
Type of Event: 0Indoor Event 0Outdoor Event 0Both HAII Ages Event -Wrist Bands DYes HNo
Type of Celebration: instate Fair dCounty Fair HCommunity Fiesta DCultural / Artistic Performance DAthletic
Name of Event: Third Thursday

Physical Address of Event: Downtown Carlsbad ( Mermod and Canyon)

Date of event (Day 1) June 15, 2023
Time Event Begins: 4 pm Time Event Ends: 11 pm
Time of Alcohol Service: Begins at: 4 pin Ends at: 10 pm
Total No. of Attendees Expected at Event: ‘ Total No. of Attendees Expected to Consume Alcohol: 100
Date of event (Day 2) July 20, 2023
Time Event Begins: 4 pm Time Event Ends: 11 pm
Time of Alcohol Service: Begins at: 4 pm Ends at: 10 pm
Total No. of Attendees Expected at Event: 500 Total No. of Attendees Expected to Consume Alcohol: 150
Date of event (Day 3) August 17, 2023
Time Event Begins: 4 pm Time Event Ends: 11 pm
Time of Alcohol Service: Begins at: 4 PITI Ends at: 10 PITI
Total No. of Attendees Expected at Event: 500 Total No. of Attendees Expected to Consume Alcohol: 150

Security: No. of Security: -C
Licensed Security Company Milton's Brewing Phone No. 575-499-9244
Describe Security Security will be at front gate as well as roaming the area the entire event

NOTE: LICENSEE'S EMPLOYEE(S) ASSIGNED TO WORK SECURITY, MUST WORK THIS EXCLUSIVELY AND MAY NOT
SERVE AT THE EVENT.

Page1
Revised 3/2022

Alcoholic Beverage Control Division | 2550 Cerrillos Road | P.O. Box 25101
Santa Fe, NM 87504 | (505) 476-4875 | rld.nm.gov/abc/



SPONSOR INFORMATION:
Sponsor of Event: Carlsbad Mainstroet
Name of Contact: Kat Davis Phone No.: 575-706-0617

APPROVAL OF PROPERTY OWNER:
Print Name: Phone No.:
Signature: Date:
Name of Your Business and Location of Property:

LICENSE HOLDER & SERVER CERTIFICATION: I, Lucas Middleton (Licensee) hereby certify
that this application is signed by Licensee or authorized person under this License. I further certify that all persons
providing the service of alcoholic beverages at the Event are currently Server Certified, that they are all my
employees, and that ALL the information in this Application and the Attachments, is true and correct. Licensee
Agrees that if any statements or representations herein are found to be false, the Director may refuse to issue
additional permits. I understand that all fees submitted are non-refundable.
Licensee Name: (print) L^as Middleton

Signature: Date:
I have attached a highlighted floorplan marking the serving area

Ml I have attached a alcohol server list with the servers first & last name, server permit # and expiration date

LOCAL GOVERNING BODY APPROVAL:
Print Name: Title:
Signature: Date:
Phone No.: Fax:

ABC USE ONLY:
Application Must Include: Payment of Fees, per day (listed on top of page), Floor Plan-(w/photos) & Detailed Server List
Finance] Application Fee $ Received on: Receipt No.

Clear of Citations/Holds: CYes DNo, Liquor License No.

O Disapproved Processed By:

Assigned Permit Number: Approved Permit Sent on:

Page 2
Revised 3/2022

Alcoholic Beverage Control Division | 2550 Cerrillos Road | P.O. Box 25101
Santa Fe, NM 87504 | (505) 476’4875 | rld.nm.gov/abc/



ail

MAIM 6THIIT



ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE CONTROL | PUBLIC CELEBRATION PERMIT APPLICATION
Fee Per Day: DSlO-OO (do not submit cash) Date Application Filed:

A copy of all approved permits are sent to the Special Investigations Division of the Department of Public Safety,
and DPS will request additional information, if needed.

LICENSE HOLDER INFORMATION: Check boxes that apply
Liquor License # 67146 Type of License: Distiller HSmall Brewer Winegrower

Owner Name: Milton's Brewing LLC

Business Name (DBA): Milton's Brewing

Mailing Address: 213 W. Mermod

Phone No: 575-499-9244 ext.: Person to ask for: Lucas Middleton

Email Address: lucas@miltonsbrewing.com

EVENT INFORMATION:
Type of Event: 0Indoor Event 0Outdoor Event 0Both I0AII Ages Event -Wrist Bands
Type of Celebration: Fair DCountyFair HCommunity Fiesta / Artistic Performance DAthletic
Name of Event: Third Thursday

Physical Address of Event: Downtown Carlsbad ( Mermod and Canyon)

Date of event (Day 1) September 14, 2023
Time Event Begins: 4 pm Time Event Ends: 11 pm
Time of Alcohol Service: Begins at: 4 pm Ends at: 10 pm
Total No. of Attendees Expected at Event:, Total No. of Attendees Expected to Consume Alcohol: 100
Date of event (Day 2) September 21, 2023
Time Event Begins: 4 pm Time Event Ends: 11 pm
Time of Alcohol Service: Begins at: 4 pm Ends at: 10 pm
Total No. of Attendees Expected at Event: 500 Total No. of Attendees Expected to Consume Alcohol: 150
Date of event (Day 3) October 19, 2023
Time Event Begins: 4 pm Time Event Ends: 11 pm
Time of Alcohol Service: Begins at: 4 pm Ends at: 10 Pm
Total No. of Attendees Expected at Event: 500 Total No. of Attendees Expected to Consume Alcohol: 150

Security: No. of Security: T
Licensed Security Company Milton'S Brewing Phone No. 575-499-9244
Describe Security Security will be at front gate as well as roaming the area the entire event

NOTE: LICENSEE'S EMPLOYEE(S) ASSIGNED TO WORK SECURITY, MUST WORK THIS EXCLUSIVELY AND MAY NOT
SERVE AT THE EVENT.

Page1
Revised 3/2022

Alcoholic Beverage Control Division | 2550 Cerrillos Road | P.O. Box 25101
Santa Fe, NM 87504 | (505) 476-4875 | rld.nm.gov/abc/



SPONSOR INFORMATION:
Sponsor of Event: Carlsbad Mainstreet
Name of Contact: Kat Davis Phone No.: 575-706-0617

APPROVAL OF PROPERTY OWNER:
Print Name: Phone No.:
Signature: Date:
Name of Your Business and Location of Property:

LICENSE HOLDER & SERVER CERTIFICATION: I, Lucas Middleton (Licensee) hereby certify
that this application is signed by Licensee or authorized person under this License. I further certify that all persons
providing the service of alcoholic beverages at the Event are currently Server Certified, that they are all my
employees, and that ALL the information in this Application and the Attachments, is true and correct. Licensee
Agrees that if any statements or representations herein are found to be false, the Director may refuse to issue
additional permits. I understand that all fees submitted are non-refundable.
Licensee Name: (print) Lucas Middleton
Signature: Date:

I have attached a highlighted floorplan marking the serving area
I have attached a alcohol server list with the servers first & last name, server permit it and expiration date

LOCAL GOVERNING BODY APPROVAL:
Print Name: Title:
Signature: Date:
Phone No.: Fax:

ABC USE ONLY:
Application Must Include: Payment of Fees, per day (listed on top of page), Floor Plan-(w/photos) & Detailed Server List
Finance] Application Fee $ Received on: Receipt No.
Clear of Citations/Holds: EZlYes EZlNo, Liquor License No.

O Disapproved Processed By:

Assigned Permit Number: Approved Permit Sent on:

Page 2
Revised 3/2022

Alcoholic Beverage Control Division | 2550 Cerrillos Road | P.O. Box 25101
Santa Fe, NM 87504 | (505) 476-4875 | rld.nm.gov/abc/



Third Thursday
Milton's Brewery Patio Set-up



 
 
 

 

 

CITY OF CARLSBAD 
 

AGENDA BRIEFING MEMORANDUM 
 

 Council Meeting Date:  5/9/2023   
Department:  Planning & 
Regulation 

  
 By:  Jeff Patterson, Planning Director 

  
DATE: 4/28/2023 
      

SUBJECT:   Request by Carlsbad MainStreet to serve alcohol (beer, wine and alcohol) on City 
streets during CavernFest. 

  
BACKGROUND, ANALYSIS AND IMPACT: (Safety and Welfare/Financial/Personnel/Infrastructure/etc.) 

 
Carlsbad MainStreet wishes to host CavernFest on Friday, June 9, and Saturday, June 10, 2023. The 
event will be from 6:00 pm to 11:00 pm on Friday, June 9, and from 10:00 am to 11:00 pm on Saturday, 
June 10, 2023 in the downtown area. As part of this event, MainStreet wishes to have alcohol service 
(beer, wine & alcohol) from 4:00 pm to 10:00 pm on Friday evening. MainStreet will have a licensed 
alcohol server (Milton’s Brewing and Sandia Hard Cider) set up an “Alcohol Garden” location along 
Mermod St. from the intersection of Mermod St. and Canyon St. to the east and extending west along 
Mermod St. to just past the Miltons’ storefront, incorporating the alley space just east of the Milton’s 
building.   
 
In addition to Friday evening, MainStreet wishes to have Milton’s and Sandia Hard Cider provide 
alcohol service (beer, wine and alcohol) from 11:00 am to 10:00 pm on Saturday, June 10. The Alcohol 
Garden will be cordoned off from the rest of the festival, and will have one controlled entrance for 
festival goers. Entrance to the Alcohol Garden will be available all ages, however, entrants will be 
required to produce a valid ID as proof of age for alcohol service. All approved entrants will be given a 
bracelet to wear, and this bracelet will be a requirement to purchase beer, wine or alcohol within the 
Alcohol Garden. All designated drivers that enter the Alcohol Garden will be given a separate bracelet 
as identification. No alcohol will be allowed to be taken out of the Alcohol Garden. The alcohol server 
will provide their own security.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
DEPARTMENT RECOMMENDATION: If it is the will of the Council to allow beer and wine sales 
and consumption within a Beer Garden located on City streets, City staff recommends the following 
requirements: 

1. The alcohol server obtain all required licenses and permits; 
2. MainStreet and the alcohol servers comply with all laws, rules, regulations, requirements 

and restrictions for service at the location (included, but not limited to fencing of service 
area, carding of customers, and providing appropriate security); 

3. Both MainStreet and the alcohol servers shall name the City of Carlsbad as an Additional 
Insured on their general liability insurance and liquor server insurance in an amount to be 
approved by the City Administrator. 

  
BOARD/COMMISSION/COMMITTEE ACTION: 

      P & Z 
      Museum Board 
      Library Board 

    Lodgers Tax Board 
    San Jose Board 
    N. Mesa Board 

   Cemetery Board 
   Water Board 
          Committee 

}   APPROVED 

}   

}  

DISAPPROVED 

 
 
 
 
 
       ATTACHMENT(S): Map 

Reviewed by 

City Administrator _______________________________________  Date: ____________ 

oeramirez
Typewriter
/s/John Lowe                                                                05/04/2023



CITY OF CARLSBAD 
FACILITY REQUEST FORM 

Request for Facility Use: (Check One) 

• 
• 

Beach Bandshell/Pavilion • 
Heritage Park • 

Purpose of Use: 

Event Date: 

Organization: 

Contact of Person: 

Ray Anaya San Jose Plaza 

North Water Park Front 
• MLK Pavilion/Park 

~ Other t ase Specify): 

L)o"""~ e,A)V'-. 

I I ti?""' 

' 
Address: 2.(2 LJ. /4.c City/State:___,= 

Phone Numbers: 

Release of Liability 

The City shall not be responsible for any personal injury, death, or property loss or damage to the persons 
or entities using the facilities , their agents, employees, officers, representatives, assigns, customers, 
patrons, guest, or invitees arising from any cause or causes whatsoever. 

In consideration for the use of the City facilities named above, I do, for myself, the organization I 
represent, my heirs, executors and administrator, hereby release and discharge the City of Carlsbad, its 
officers, directors, employees, and agents from all manner of claims, liabilities, obligations, causes of 
action, damages, suits, losses, and expenses of every kind, which I and/or the organization I represent 
have now or hereinafter and which are associated, in any manner, with this Permit, the use of the 
facilities, or the event listed above. 

Additionally, I and the organization I represent shall save, indemnify, and hold harmless the City, its 
officers, directors, employees, and agents from and against any and all claims, liabilities, obligations, 
causes of action, damages, suits, losses, and expenses of every kind, together with any attorneys' fees 
and litigation costs, made by or on behalf of any person or entity arising out of or in any manner 
associated with this Permit, the use of the facilities, or the event listed above. 

~p~ 
Signature 

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY: 

ADDITIONAL INFO/REQUESTS: APPROVED BY: 

Coordinator: Date: -------- ----
Director: ---------------

City Administrator: ___________ _ 

~/10 
bM-
11 I""' 



The FACILITY has been provided for special community events and entertainment for those 
enjoying is recreation area. 

Approval for use of the FACILITY will be contingent on observance of the following guidelines: 

1. No loud activities or activities that may disturb the surrounding residents. 

2. Due to city water restrictions, there are no water hookups. 

Water slides are not allowed. 

3. Activities must conclude by 10:00 p.m. 

4. Sales or solicitations in connection with presentations are not permitted. 

s". It :is illegal to possess or consume alcoholic beverages in City Parks. 

6. Use of the FACILITY should not interfere with use· of the rest of the park area by 

others. 

7. Persons or groups using the FACILITY must provide responsible supervision. 

8. Persons or groups using the FACILITY shall be responsible for damage to or loss of 

city facilities and equipment. 

9. The FACILITY is to be used for special events and not for regularly scheduled 

meetings or programs. 

10. The persons reserving the FACILITY will be responsible for cleaning the FACILITY 

and surrounding area. All trash must be properly disposed of. 

11. Requests for reservations of the FACILITY should be made far enough in advance to 

allow proper scheduling of the facility. The FACILITY cannot be reserved more than 

one (1) year in advance. 

12. No vehicles allowed on the grass. 

13. Do not leave fires or burning coals in the grills. 

14. Do not mail, tape, glue, hang or otherwise attach items to the building 

15. No pets are allowed in the park. 

Parks & Public Spaces 
City of Carlsbad 
Planning, Engineering, & 
Regulation Department 
Attention: Jeff Patterson 
P.O. Box 1569 
Carlsbad, NM 88221-1569 ' 
(575) 885-1185 



ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE CONTROL I PUBLIC CELEBRATION PERMIT APPLICATION 
Fee Per Day: 0$10.00 (do not submit cash) Date Application Filed : _________ _ 

A copy of all approved permits are sent to the Special Investigations Division of the Department of Public Safety, 

and DPS will request additional information, if needed. 

LICENSE HOLDER INFORMATION: Check boxes that apply 

Liquor License# 67146 Type of License: • craft Distiller • small Brewer • Winegrower 

Owner Name: Milton's Brewing LLC 

Business Name (DBA): Milton's Brewing ------------------------------
Mai Ii n g Address: _2_1_3_W_._M_e_r_m_o_d _________________________ _ 

Phone No: 575-499-9244 ext.: Person to ask for: Lucas Middleton -----

Email Address: lucas@miltonsbrewing.com 

EVENT INFORMATION: 
Type of Event: ~Indoor Event ~Outdoor Event ~Both ~All Ages Event -Wrist Bands ~Yes • No 

Type of Celebration: • State Fair • County Fair ~Community Fiesta • Cultural/ Artistic Performance • Athletic 

Name of Event: CavernFest --------------------------------
Physic a I Address of Event: Downtown Carlsbad ( Mermod and Canyon) 

Date of event (Day 1) _J_u_n_e_9_,_2_0_2_3 _____________________ _ 
Time Event Begins : _6~p~m ____________ Time Event Ends: _1_1_p~m ________ _ 
Time of Alcohol Service : Begins at: 4pm Ends at : 10 pm 
Total No. of Attendees Expected at Event: _2_0_0_0 ___ Total No. of Attendees Expected to Consume Alcohol: 800 

Date of event (Day 2) _J_u_n_e_1_0-'-,_2_0_2_3 _____________________ _ 
Time Event Begins : _1_0_a_m ___________ Time Event Ends : _1_1~p~m ________ _ 
Time of Alcohol Service: Begins at: 11 am Ends at: 10 pm 
Total No. of Attendees Expected at Event: _7_5_0_0 ___ Total No. of Attendees Expected to Consume Alcohol : 2800 

Date of event (Day 3) ------------------------------
Time Event Begins: _____________ Time Event Ends: __________ _ 

Time of Alcohol Service: Begins at : Ends at: --------------
Tot a I No. of Attendees Expected at Event: Total No. of Attendees Expected to Consume Alcohol: __ _ 

Security: No. of Security: _8 _______ _ 
Licensed Security Company Crusaders Protective Services LLC Phone No. 575-840-4719 
Describe security Security will be at front gate as well as roaming the area the entire event 

NOTE: LICENSEE'S EMPLOYEE(S} ASSIGNED TO WORK SECURITY, MUST WORK THIS EXCLUSIVELY AND MAY NOT 

SERVE AT THE EVENT. \ 

Page 1 

Alcoholic Beverage Control Division I 2550 Cerrillos Road I P.O. Box 25101 
Santa Fe, NM 87504 I (505) 476·4875 I rld.~m.gov/abc/ 

Revised 3/2022 



SPONSOR INFORMATION: 
Sponsor of Event: Carlsbad Mainstreet 
Name of Contact: Kat Davis Phone No.: 575-706-0617 ---------------

APPROVAL OF PROPERTY OWNER: 
Print Name: Phone No.: -------------------- ------------
Signature : Date: _____________ _ 

Name of Your Business and Location of Property: -----------------------

LICENSE HOLDER & SERVER CERTIFICATION: I, Lucas Middleton (Licensee) hereby certify 

that this application is signed by Licensee or authorized person under this License. I further certify that all persons 
providing the service of alcoholic beverages at the Event are currently Server Certified, that they are all my 
employees, and that ALL the information in this Application and the Attachments, is true and correct. Licensee 
Agrees that if any statements or representations herein are found to be false, the Director may refuse to issue 
additional permits. I understand that all fees submitted are non-refundable. 

Licensee Name:~::ucas Middleton 

Signature: ~ ...q:,A!:; Date: ?/ ~zo , L...J 
Iii! I have attached a highlighted floorplan marking the serving area 

Iii I have attached a alcohol server list with the servers first & last name, server permit# and expiration date 

LOCAL GOVERNING BODY APPROVAL: 

Print Name: Title: ------------------- ---------------
Signature : Date : _____________ _ 

Phone No.: Fax: --------------

ABC USE ONLY: 
Application Must Include: Payment of Fees, per day (listed on top of page), Floor Plan -(w/photos) & Detailed Server List 

Finance I Application Fee$ _______ Received on : ________ Receipt No. _____ _ 

Clear of Citations/Holds: • Yes • No, Liquor License No. ______ _ 

• Approved O Disapproved ___________ Processed By: ____________ _ 

Assigned Permit Number: Approved Permit Sent on : ___________ _ 

Page2 

Alcoholic Beverage Control Division I 2550 Cerrillos Road I P.O. Box 25101 
Santa Fe, NM 87504 I (505) 476-4875 I rld.nm.gov/abc/ 

Revised 3/2022 



ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE CONTROL I PUBLIC CELEBRATION PERMIT APPLICATION 
Fee Per Day: 0$10.00 (do not submit cash} Date Application Filed: __________ _ 

A copy of all approved permits are sent to the Special Investigations Division of the Department of Public Safety, 
and DPS will request additional information, if needed. 

LICENSE HOLDER INFORMATION: Check boxes that apply 

Liquor License# 000 39 Type of License: • Craft Distiller • Small Brewer -~ inegrower 
Owner Name: L,QY-e..n-Z..O Me\endez_ 
Business Name (OBA}: ..5and iCL tla.t:d Gidex--
Mailing Addr~ss: Q~OG) Bvoadlx.nt ·Fl\.x:-k,Nctlj , ..Ste. D,, ·ABO, NM 221100 
Phone No: .5jS--4CD-3Q{p 5 ext. : ____ Person to ask for: lo(e..nz.O 
Email Address: 5GU'ld t'o.. hqxd cidev 00\ @3ma.1 l·· com 

EVENT INFORMATION: 
Type of Event: • Indoor Event • outdoor Event • Both DAIi Ages Event -Wrist Bands OVes • No 

Type of Celebration: • State Fair • County Fair • community Fiesta • Cultural/ Artistic Performance • Athletic 

Name of Event: -~------------------------------
Physic a I Address of Event: ___ _________________________ _ 

Date of event (Day 1} ________________________ _____ _ 

Time Event Begins: ______________ Time Event Ends: _ _________ _ 

Time of Alcohol Service: Begins at: Ends at: _____________ _ 

Total No. of Attendees Expected at Event: Total No. of Attendees Expected to Consume Alcohol: __ _ 

Date of event (Day 2} _ ____________________________ _ 

Time Event Begins: _______________ Time Event Ends: __________ _ 

Time of Alcohol Service: Begins at: Ends at: _____________ _ 

Total No. of Attendees Expected at Event: Total No. of Attendees Expected to Consume Alcohol: __ _ 

Date of event (Day 3) ______ __________________ ______ _ 

Time Event Begins: ______________ Time Event Ends : __________ _ 

Time of Alcohol Service: Begins at: Ends at: --------------
Tot a I No. of Attendees Expected at Event: Total No. of Attendees Expected to Consume Alcohol: __ _ 

Security: No. of Security: _______ _ 

• Alcohol Server certified employed by licensee Server Permit# ______ Expiration Date __ _ 

• Alcohol Server certified employed by licensee SeNer Permit# ______ Expiration Date ____ _ 

• Licensed Security Company Phone No. -------- ---------- -------
Describe Security ________________________________ _ 

NOTE: LICENSEE'S EMPLOYEE(S) ASSIGNED TO WORK SECURITY, MUST WORK THIS EXCLUSIVELY AND MAY NOT 
SERVE AT THE EVENT. 

Alcoholic Beverage Control Division I 2550 Cerrillos Road I P.O. Box 25101 
Santa Fe, NM 87504 I (505) 476-4875 I rld.state.nm.us 

Page 1 



SPONSOR INFORMATION: 
Sponsor of Event: _______________________________ _ 

Name of Contact: _______________ Phone No.: _ _____________ _ 

APPROVAL OF PROPERTY OWNER: 
Print Name: ___________________ Phone No.: __________ _ 

Signature: Date: ____________ _ 

Name of Your Business and Location of Property: _____________________ _ 

LICENSE HOLDER & SERVER CERTIFICATION: I, LOYer\ZO (\/\e.,\ende,z. (Licensee) hereby certify 
that this application is signed by Licensee or authorized person under this License. I further certify that all persons 
providing the service of alcoholic beverages at the Event are currently Server Certified, that they are all my 
employees, and that ALL the information in this Application and the Attachments, is true and correct. Licensee 

Agrees that if any statements or representations herein are found to be false, the Director may refuse to issue 
additional permits. I understand that all fees submitted are non-refundable. 

Licensee Name: (pri~Z.O Melendez.. 
S1gnature=----~-:-.:,C-===----------Date: l/-- ~ ?- .:?) 

LOCAL GOVERNING BODY APPROVAL: 
Print Name: __________________ Title: _____________ _ 

Signature: Date: ____________ _ 

Phone No.: Fax: _____________ _ 

ABC USE ONLY: 
Application Must Include: Payment of Fees, per day (listed on top of page), Floor Plan-(w/photos) & Detailed Server List 

Finance I Application Fee$ ______ Received on: ________ Receipt No. _____ _ 

Clear of Citations/Holds: • Yes • No, Liquor License No. ------• Approved O Disapproved Processed By: ____________ _ 

Assigned Permit Number: Approved Permit Sent on: ___________ _ 

Alcoholic Beverage Control Division I 2550 Cerrillos Road I P .O. Box 25101 
Santa Fe, NM 87504 I (505) 476-4875 I rid.state.nm.us 

Page2 



I 
0 

D
 

a 

3 ]>
 

I 

I I 
I 

z (P
 

I 
• ~
 

m
 

m
 

L
_

J
-_

J
 

• 0 ij
i 

• ~
 

0 • 

:I
 

()
 

()
 

I>
 

I>
 

I>
 

z 
z 

z 
-< 

I>
 

(I
) 

0 
r 

-
f 

z 
;u

 
(I

) 

m
 

(I
) 

M
il

to
n

's 
B

ee
r 

G
ar

de
 

-
f 

m
 

-
f 

G
en

. A
dm

is
si

on
 

;u
 

-
f 

;u
 

m
 

m
 

m
 

-
f 

-
f 

[ 
J 

( I 

(5~
7==

==
==

::'.'.
/7--

--=
==

==
==

==
==

==
8 



ENTRANCE
& ID STATION

ALCOHOL GARDEN

S C
AN

AL
 ST

S C
AN

YO
N 

ST

N 
CA

NA
L S

T

N 
CA

NY
ON

 ST

113

108

111
108

104

0 40 8020 Feet

±

5/3/2023

Cavernfest 2023

DANCE
AREA

ST
AG

E



CITY OF CARLSBAD 

AGENDA BRIEFING MEMORANDUM 

                                 Meeting Date: 5/9/2023 
DEPARTMENT: Planning & 
Regulation 

BY: Jeff Patterson, Planning 
Director 

DATE: 5/3/2023  

SUBJECT:  Request for a change of zoning from “R-1” Residential 1 District to “C-2” Commercial 2 District 
for approximately 0.76 acres, located at 206 E. Rose St., legally described as Lot 2, Block 2, South Y 
Subdivision, pursuant to Section 3-21-1 et. Seq. NMSA 1978 and Sections 56-150(b) and 56-140(i), Carlsbad 
Code of Ordinances.  

 
Applicant/Owner: 
Iris Ramos 
1701 Redwood Loop 
Carlsbad, NM 88220 
 

*The applicant provided the required notification to property owners within 100’ and agreed to post 

the required sign 5-days prior to the public hearing as required by Sec. 56-140(i). The City will notify 

the property owners’ 15-days prior to the City Council hearing and publish notification in the 

newspaper 30-days prior to said hearing. 

SYNOPSIS, HISTORY AND IMPACT (SAFETY AND WELFARE/FINANCIAL/PERSONNEL/INFRASTRUCTURE/ETC.): 

Request for a change of zoning from “R-1” Residential 1 District to “C-2” Commercial 2 District for approximately 
0.76 acres, located at 206 E. Rose St., legally described as Lot 2, Block 2, South Y Subdivision. The subject 
property lies east of the intersection of Old Cavern Hwy., Yucca St., and E. Rose St. 
 

Sec. 56-40(e) of the Carlsbad Zoning Ordinance states: 

 

(e) Commercial 2 (C-2) District.  
The Commercial 2 District is intended to accommodate community and regional-scale retail and 
commercial uses. Such uses are regulated in order to be compatible with surrounding uses and existing 
infrastructure.  

 
The properties to the north & west are zoned “C-2” Commercial 2 District; the properties to the south & east are 
zoned “R-1” Residential 1 District. This will not create a spot zone. 
 
Comprehensive Plan: Strategy 2040 goals and policies that are applicable to this request are: 
 

Chapter 5: Land Use 

Objectives:  

 To achieve a more balance land use mix and increase the supply of commercial properties. 

 To meet the commercial market demand and needs of existing and future Carlsbad 

residents. 

 To encourage redevelopment of vacant or underutilized properties for residential, 

commercial, or mixed-use development. 

 

According to Zoning Ordinance Sec. 56-150(b)(4). Amendments, Findings Required, a statement of fact 
regarding each of the following findings is required: 
 
(a) The proposed amendment will or will not adversely impact the public health, safety or general welfare and 
will or will not promote the original purposes of the Zoning Ordinance; and 
 
(b) The proposed amendment responds or does not respond to changed conditions, such as changes in 
public capital investments, road locations or functional classification, population trends, density, use or further 
studies that have been completed since adoption of the Zoning Ordinance; and 
 



(c) The proposed amendment is or is not necessary in order to respond to State and/or Federal legislation; 
and 
 
(d) The proposed amendment provides or does not provide additional flexibility in meeting the objectives of 
this Zoning Ordinance without lowering the standards of the Zoning Ordinance; and 
 
(e) The proposed amendment is or is not in substantial compliance with the City's Comprehensive Plan or 
other City Master Plan; and 
 
(f) The proposed amendment will or will not adversely affect the implementation of the goals and policies of 
the City's Comprehensive Plan or other City Master Plan; and  
 
(g) The proposed amendment is justified in order to correct a mistake in the Official Zoning Map or the text of 
the Zoning Ordinance; and   
 
(h) The proposed amendment is justified in order to respond to changes in the City’s Comprehensive Plan or 
other City Master Plan including, but not limited to, changes in land use assumptions, surrounding uses, 
population forecasts, rates of land consumption, anticipated community needs or other factors.  

 

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: Based on review of the application and 
staff comments, at their meeting on April 3, 2023, the Planning and Zoning Commission considered this item 
and recommended approval with a vote of three (3) in favor of approval, none (0) against, two (2) absent and 
none (0) abstain. 
 

DEPARTMENT RECOMMENDATION (please check): 
 Approval Denial n/a  Approval Denial n/a 

Public Works   X Planning, Eng. & Reg. Dept X   

Fire Department   X     Code Enforcement Division       X 

Legal Department   X   Planning Division X   

Police Department   X Projects Department   X 

Utilities Department   X Building Division   X 

 

 

DEPARTMENT COMMENTS:  

 
Public Works: No comments. 
 
Utilities Department: No comments. 
  
Building Department: No comments. 
 
Fire Department: No comments. 
 
Police Department: No comments. 
 
Code Enforcement: No comments. 
 
Legal Department: No comments. 
 
Planning Department: Recommend approval 
 
Engineering Services: No comment 
 
 



BOARD/COMMISSION/COMMITTEE ACTION:  
    P&Z                            Lodgers Tax Board              Cemetery Board                         APPROVED 
    Museum Board          San Jose Board                    Water Board                               DISSAPPROVED 
   Library Board              N. Mesa Board                     __________ Committee 

Reviewed by 
City Administrator _______________________________________  Date: ____________ 

ATTACHMENTS: Application materials, Ordinance, P & Z Minutes. 

oeramirez
Typewriter
/s/John Lowe

oeramirez
Typewriter
05/04/2023



 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2023-____ 
 

AN ORDINANCE REZONING PART OF “R-1” 

RESIDENTIAL 1 DISTRICT TO “C-2” 

COMMERCIAL 2 DISTRICT FOR AN 

APPROXIMATELY 0.76 ACRE PROPERTY, 

LOCATED AT 206 EAST ROSE ST., LEGALLY 

DESCRIBED AS LOT 2, BLOCK 2, SOUTH Y 

SUBDIVISION PURSUANT TO SECTION 3-21-1 

ET. SEQ. NMSA 1978 AND SECTIONS 56-150(B) 

AND 56-140(I), CARLSBAD CODE OF 

ORDINANCES. 

 

 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY OF CARLSBAD, 

EDDY COUNTY, NEW MEXICO, that:  

The official zoning map of the City is hereby amended to rezone part of  "R-1" Residential 1 District 

to "C-2" Commercial 2 District for an approximately 0.76 acre property, located at 206 E. Rose St., 

legally described as: 

Lot 2, Block 2, South Y Subdivision 

 

INTRODUCED, PASSED, ADOPTED AND APPROVED this 9th day of May, 2023. 

 

 

____________________________________ 

DALE JANWAY, MAYOR  

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

__________________________________ 

CITY CLERK 

 

 

 

oeramirez
Typewriter
08



 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE 

 

City of Carlsbad 

Planning & Zoning Commission 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Monday, April 3, 2023 at 5:00 p.m. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Meeting Held in the Janell Whitlock Municipal Complex Council Chambers 

114 S. Halagueno St. 
 



 

 
 
 
 

 
CITY OF CARLSBAD 

CARLSBAD, NEW MEXICO 
 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
Monday, April 3, 2023 at 5:00 PM 

Janell Whitlock Municipal Complex Council Chambers  
114 S. Halagueno Street 

GoToMeeting ID: 537-022-653 
US Phone: (646) 749-3122 Access Code: 537-022-653 

 
 

1. Roll call of voting members and determination of quorum 

2. Approval of Agenda   

3. Approval of Minutes from the Meeting held March 6, 2023 

4. Remove from Table a consideration of a recommendation to the City Council 
regarding a request for a Zoning Change from “R-R” Rural Residential District to “C-2” 
Commercial 2 District for an approximately 2.964 acre property located at 2013 San 
Jose Blvd. 

5. Consider a recommendation to the City Council regarding a request for a Zoning 
Change from “R-R” Rural Residential District to “C-2” Commercial 2 District for an 
approximately 2.964 acre property located at 2013 San Jose Blvd., legally described 
as Tract 4, Old Rose Farm #3 Subdivision 

6. Consider a request for a Conditional Use Permit to allow a Home Occupation – 
Mobile Spray Tan Business to be located at 320 L St., zoned “R-1” Residential 1 
District zoning. 

7. Consider approval of a Preliminary Plat for the Lara Family Estate, subdividing an 
approximately 161 acre tract into five separate properties, located outside the 
Carlsbad City Boundary. 

8. Consider a request from the property owner at 2618 Iowa St. for the City to Vacate 
approximately 0.25 acres of public right-of-way, located between Iowa St. and Utah 
St. 

9. Consider a request for a Variance for the property located at 312 Wheat Ct. to reduce 
the rear setback from the required ten (10) feet to five (5) feet, zoned “R-1” 
Residential 1 District. 

 



 

10. Consider a recommendation to City Council regarding a request for a Zoning Change 
from “R-1” Residential 1 District to “C-2” Commercial 2 District for an approximately 
0.76 acre property located at 206 E. Rose St., legally described as Lot 2, Block 2, 
South Y subdivision. 

11. Consider a recommendation to the City Council regarding a request for a Zoning 
Change from “R-2” Residential 2 District to “C-2” Commercial 2 District for an 
approximately 0.35 acre property located at 502 N. Sixth St., legal description 
attached. 

12. Consider a recommendation to the City Council regarding a request for a Zoning 
Change from “R-2” Residential 2 District to “C-2” Commercial 2 District for an 
approximately 0.18 acre property located at 510 N. Sixth St., legal description 
attached. 

 
13. Report regarding Summary Review Subdivisions 

 
14. Adjourn 

 

 
FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

Agendas and Planning and Zoning Commission meeting minutes are available on the City web site: 

cityofcarlsbadnm.com  
 or may be viewed in the Office of the City Clerk or at the Carlsbad Public Library during normal and 

regular business hours 

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION MEETING SCHEDULE 

                                • Regular meeting – Monday, May 1, 2023 at 5:00 p.m. 

If you require hearing interpreter, language interpreters or auxiliary aids in order to attend and participate 

in the above meeting, please contact the City Administrator’s office at (575) 887-1191 at least 48 hours 

prior to the scheduled meeting time. 

 



 

 

 

MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY OF CARLSBAD PLANNING & 

ZONING COMMISSION HELD IN THE JANELL WHITLOCK MUNICIPAL COMPLEX 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS,  

114 S. HALAGUENO STREET, APRIL 3, 2023 AT 5:00 P.M. 

 

 

 

VOTING MEMBERS PRESENT:     

 BRAD NESSER COMMISSIONER (VIA PHONE) 

 TRENT CORNUM COMMISSIONER 

 LINDA WILSON  COMMISSIONER   

     

VOTING MEMBERS ABSENT:     

 JAMES MCCORMICK CHAIRPERSON    

 VALERIE BRANSON COMMISSIONER 

 

EX-OFFICIO MEMBERS PRESENT:  

 JEFF PATTERSON PLANNING DIRECTOR 

  

SECRETARY PRESENT: 

 JENNIFER CAMPOS PLANNING AND REGULATION  

   DEPARTMENT EXECUTIVE SECRETARY 

 VANESSA ORNELAS PLANNING AND REGUALTION 

DEPARTMENT SECRETARY  

OTHERS PRESENT:   

 BRENDA HARRIS  320 L ST. 

 FELIPE LUCERO  502 N 6TH ST. 

 MAURENN AMADOR 815 COUNTRYSIDE PL. 

 PATRICIA GREEN 2622 IOWA ST. 

 MARVIN JONES  2622 IOWA ST. 

 JOANN CLICK  4207 JONES ST. 

 JOSE PINA  206 ROSE ST. 

 TIM THOMPSON  312 WHEAT CT. 

 SAMANTHA FLACO 213 E. ROSE ST. 

 JOHN BOWEN      

 PATRICIA F. BALDERRAMA 204 S 10TH ST. 

 NATHAN MCGEE  204 S 10TH ST. 

 PATRICK DYER  1422 PASEO DE PERALTA 

 SHARON WESTON 2013 SAN JOSE BLVD. 

 JESSE W. LAMAN  1419 EAGLE AVE. 

 SAL REY SALCIDO 3207 OLD CAVERN HWY. 

 EDDIE HERNANDEZ 505 N. 6TH ST. 

 

  

Time Stamps and headings below correspond to recording of meeting and the recording is hereby made a 

part of the official record. 

 

0:00:02 Start Recording [5:00:15 PM] 

 

0:00:04 1. Roll call of Voting Members and Determination of Quorum    

 

Roll was called, confirming the presence of a quorum of commission members. The following members 

were present— Mr. Nesser, Mr. Cornum, Ms. Wilson. Absent—Mr. McCormick, Ms. Branson. 



 

 

 

0:00:32 2. Approval of Agenda  

 

Ms. Wilson made a motion to approve the Agenda; Mr. Nesser seconded the motion. The vote was as 

follows: Yes--Mr. Nesser, Mr. Cornum, Ms. Wilson. No—None. Absent—Mr. McCormick, Ms. 

Branson. Abstained—None. The motion carried. 

 

0:01:19 3. Approval of Minutes from the Meeting held March 6, 2023 

 

Ms. Wilson made a motion to approve the Minutes from the regular meeting held on March 6, 2023; Mr. 

Nesser seconded the motion. The vote was as follows: Yes--Mr. Nesser, Mr. Cornum, Ms. Wilson. 

No—None. Absent— Mr. McCormick, Ms. Branson. Abstained—None. The motion carried. 

 

0:01:58  4. Remove from Table a consideration of a recommendation to the City 

Council regarding a request for a Zoning Change from “R-R” Rural Residential District to “C-2” 

Commercial 2 District for an approximately 2.964 acre property located at 2013 San Jose Blvd. 

 

Ms. Wilson made a motion to remove from table; Mr. Nesser seconded the motion. The vote was as 

follows: Yes--Mr. Nesser, Mr. Cornum, Ms. Wilson. No—None. Absent— Mr. McCormick, Ms. 

Branson.  Abstained—None. The motion carried. 

 

0:02:59  5. Consider a recommendation to the City Council regarding a request for a 

Zoning Change from “R-R” Rural Residential District to “C-2” Commercial 2 District for an 

approximately 2.964 are property located at 2013 San Jose Blvd., legally described as Tract 4, Old 

Rose Farm #3 Subdivision. 

 

The applicant, Patrick Dyer, comes to the podium. Mr. Patterson explains that this request is to change 

the zoning from “R-R” Rural Residential District to “C-2” Commercial 2 District for approximately 2.964 

acres, located at 2013 San Jose Blvd., legally described as Tract 4, Old Rose Farm #3 Subdivision.  Mr. 

Patterson states upon review of the request, the applicant is wanting the Zoning Change to better fit the 

use of the property.  It will not create a spot zone. The Planning Dept. recommends approval of this 

request.  Mr. Dyer states that PMS is proposing to expand its facility by approximately 3500 square feet 

to fit the needs and services of the folks within the community.  The project will include installations of 8 

exam rooms medical areas for staff, as well as some minor improvements for parking. Floor opened for 

public comment. There was none. 

 

Ms. Wilson made a motion for approval; Mr. Nesser seconded the motion. The vote was as follows: Yes-

-Mr. Nesser, Mr. Cornum, Ms. Wilson. No—None. Absent— Mr. McCormick, Ms. Branson.  

Abstained—None. The motion carried. 

 

0:7:40  6. Consider a request for a Conditional Use Permit to allow a Home 

Occupation- Mobile Spray Tan Business to be located at 320 L St., zoned “R-1” Residential District 

zoning. 

 

The applicant, Brenda Harris, comes to the podium. Mr. Patterson explains this request is for a 

Conditional Use Permit to allow Home Occupation – Mobile Spray Tan Business. The applicant plans to 

park a mobile trailer that will house a mobile spray tan operation at her property at 320 L St. The 

applicant will travel to clients’ homes to offer spray tan services, and also plans to see clients at the 

subject property. The property only has approximately 37’ of street frontage and the applicant has 

indicated that the mobile trailer will need to be parked on the street in front of the property. Because of 

the unusual size and shape of the property, the applicant is unable to accommodate any off street parking 

for clients that come to the subject property for spray tan services.  After review, the Planning staff 

recommends denial of this request. Ms. Harris states that the mobile trailer will park in the yard in front.  

Mr. Cornum asked what size is the mobile trailer and where was it going to be parked primarily.  Ms. 



 

 

Harris said it was an 8 ½ x 24 foot, and it basically takes up the front part of the yard.  Mr. Cornum 

explained to Mr. Nesser that the trailer is parked on the grass area in the front to the right of the driveway.  

Ms. Harris said that a lot of the time it will be on the move instead of just sitting there.  She also said that 

there will only be one client at time coming to her property.  Mr. Cornum asked Ms. Harris if she had 

regular business hours.  Ms. Harris said not at this time. She said this was an alternative for her to make 

money.  She has a full time job, and she plans to work for the School systems and eventually have this as 

a side job on the weekends. Floor opened for public comment. There was none. Mr. Nesser asked if the 

trailer was parked parallel with the driveway.  Mr. Cornum answered yes.  Mr. Nesser asked how many 

customers will be going at one time, will it just the customer and the operator.  Ms. Harris answered yes.   

  

Ms. Wilson made a motion for approval; Mr. Nesser seconded the motion. The vote was as follows: Yes-

-Mr. Nesser, Mr. Cornum, Ms. Wilson. No— None. Absent— Mr. McCormick, Ms. Branson.  

Abstained—None. The motion carried. 

 

0:14:59  7. Consider approval of a Preliminary Plat for the Lara Family Estate, 

subdividing an approximately 161 acre tract into five separate properties, located outside the 

Carlsbad City Boundary.  

 

The applicant, Jesse Laman, comes to podium. Mr. Patterson explains this request is for the approval of 

a preliminary and final plat that will split the current +/- 161 acre property owned by Frankie Lara into 

five separate large tracts that are to be deeded to Mr. Lara’s heirs as per his will. The attached subdivision 

plat shows that the access will be provided over BLM managed property per the access easement with the 

BLM, and from the George Shoup Relief Route from an ingress/egress access installed by the NMDOT to 

the north of the property. The five lots will have a 60’ access easement across all new properties. There 

are currently no water or sewer services to note for this property.  Approval of this request will allow for 

the creation of 5 new large tracts. The City’s Planning Office has worked with Eddy County officials to 

address the access issues that are present for this property. The Eddy County Planner seems satisfied with 

the provided access as long as the ingress/egress point along the Relief Route is a permanent feature, and 

the road across the BLM property to the north of the subdivision that will be used for access is kept open. 

The Planning Dept. recommends approval of this request.  Mr. Laman said that his sister was in charge 

of the property, but she passed away.  Her executor was going to be her daughter then she suddenly 

passed away.  So then basically he inherited the property and wants to get it all taken care of per his 

sisters wishes.  Floor opened for public comment. There was none. 

 

Ms. Wilson made a motion for approval; Mr. Nesser seconded the motion. The vote was as follows: Yes-

-Mr. Nesser, Mr. Cornum, Ms. Wilson. No— None. Absent— Mr. McCormick, Ms. Branson. 

Abstained—None. The motion carried. 

 

0:19:17  8. Consider a request from the property owner at 2618 Iowa St. for the City to 

Vacate approximately 0.25 acres of public right-of-way, located between Iowa St. and Utah St.  

 

The applicant, Patricia Green, comes to podium. Mr. Patterson states the applicant. Patricia Green, is 

requesting that the City vacate the alley to the east of 2618 Iowa St. This alley runs north-south between 

Iowa St. to the south and Utah St. to the north. The portion of this alley that the applicant wants vacated is 

approximately 0.253 acres (11,020 sq. ft.) in area, and about 290 linear feet in length and 37 feet wide. 

The City would need to verify if any City owned utilities are located within this alley, and other utility 

companies would need to sign off on this vacation as well. Based on internal review by City staff, the 

Planning Department recommends denial of this request.  Ms. Green states that the alley north of her is 

already vacated and to the south she didn’t know if it has been legally vacated but they have already put 

up a fence.  This area has already become a traffic area where people are walking, looking to steal 

anything that they can and destroying anything.  Mr. Cornum asked Ms. Green what was her address.  

Ms.Green said she owns the property at 2618 Iowa St.  Mr. Patterson indicated her property was to the 

west of the right of way.  Ms. Wilson said there are no utilities on it.  Mr. Patterson states there are no 

City owned utilities but he couldn’t speak for Electric or Gas Companies.  Normally when the City 



 

 

vacates right of way such like this you have to get concurrent sign off from the other Utility Companies.  

Mr. Cornum asked Ms. Green what plans she had to do to this property if vacated.  Ms. Green said she 

wants to put up a fence so it would stop the traffic going through there.  Right now people are using it as a 

dump site.  Ms. Balderrama come to the podium and said that they have their house on the other side of 

the alley.  She had property at 2619 Utah St., and her house is at 204 S. Tenth Street.  She said they do 

have an Electric pole located in the alley.  She’s wanting to request that part of the alley.  Mr. Cornum 

asked Ms. Balderrama if she was against it being vacated or for it being vacated.  Ms. Balderrama 

responded she’s for the vacation.  Mr. McGee explains that he resides at 204 S. Tenth St. and he uses that 

right of way to get to his backyard and there’s a power pole there.  He’s been talking to Ms. Green to see 

if they could split it where the line goes down 204 S. Tenth St. and get that half of the property.  He’s all 

for Ms. Green getting the rest of the property. He doesn’t mind splitting it with the other neighbor but he 

needs time so he can move his gate otherwise they will no longer have access to get to their backyard.  

Mr. Cornum asked Mr. Patterson if it was City easement.  Mr. Patterson said it was City right of way.  

If the City was to vacate this portion of the right of way then the property owners that are adjacent to it 

would be entitled to half of that alley, so it would be split into 5 sections.  Ms. Wilson said that it was 

good idea for this request so it will stop all the traffic. 

 

Ms. Wilson made a motion for approval; Mr. Nesser seconded the motion. The vote was as follows: Yes-

-Mr. Nesser, Mr. Cornum, Ms. Wilson. No— None. Absent—Mr. McCormick, Ms. Branson. 

Abstained—None. The motion carried. 

 

0:26:53  9. Consider a request for a Variance for the property at 312 Wheat Ct. to 

reduce the rear setback from the required then (10) feet to five (5) feet, zoned “R-1” Residential 1 

District. 

 

The applicant, Tim Thompson, comes to the podium. Mr. Patterson explains this request is for Variance 

from Ord. 56-90(b) to allow a 5’ rear setback as opposed to the minimum 10’ rear setback for the property 

located at 312 Wheat Ct., zoned “R-1” Residential 1 District. He’s wanting to place a prefab 18’x30’metal 

building within the minimum rear setback for this property. The applicant plans to place the metal 

building within 5’ of the rear property line and 5’ from the west property line.  Looking at the property 

there’s no public right of way or alley way behind it, the properties abut each other.  Based on review of 

the application materials and other staff comments, the Planning Dept. recommends denial of this request.  

Mr. Thompson stated that he wants to get this shed and push it back just a little bit more so they can 

have space between the house and the metal building.  There will not be any kind of plumbing or 

electrical.  Mr. Cornum asked for clarification that he has 5 feet between his neighbor’s house to the left 

and he wants 5 feet in the back.  Floor opened for public comment. There was none.  Ms. Wilson asked if 

there were any other sheds around his street.  Mr. Thompson said not around him, but as you go down 

the other streets there are some that have 5 feet. 

 

Ms. Wilson made a motion for approval; Mr. Nesser seconded the motion. The vote was as follows: Yes-

-Mr. Nesser, Mr. Cornum, Ms. Wilson. No— None. Absent—Mr. McCormick, Ms. Branson. 

Abstained—None. The motion carried. 

 

0:30:21  10. Consider a recommendation to City Council regarding a request for a 

Zoning Change from “R-1” Residential 1 District to “C-2” Commercial 2 District for an 

approximately 0.76 acre property located at 206 E. Rose St., legally described as Lot 2, Block 2, 

South Y subdivision. 

 

The applicant, Jose Pina, comes to the podium. Mr. Patterson explains this request is for a change of 

zoning from “R-1” Residential 1 District to “C-2” Commercial 2 District for approximately 0.76 acres, 

located at 206 E. Rose St., legally described as Lot 2, Block 2, South Y Subdivision. The subject property 

lies east of the intersection of Old Cavern Hwy., Yucca St., and E. Rose St.  If you see on the map pages 

90 and 91 the properties to the north & west are zoned “C-2” Commercial 2 District; the properties to the 

south & east are zoned “R-1” Residential 1 District. This will not create a spot zone.  The use looks to be 



 

 

residential in nature.  Based on review of the application and staff comments, planning staff recommends 

approval of this request.  Mr. Pina stated that they want to put up a metal building to store parts for this 

company.  Ms. Flaco asked what is the company going to be storing there, is there going to be any 

changes or development of any type of business.  They have two driveways one is facing Old Cavern 

Hwy. and the other is facing East Rose Street which is a dead end street.  How are they going to be 

entering and exiting the property?  Mr. Pina said that they are not going to have any trucking it’s only 

going to be for parts.  Mr. Cornum asked if it was going to be opened for business during the week.  Mr. 

Pina said maybe.  Mr. Cornum asked Mr. Patterson if the zone change is for the entire address of the 

property.  Mr. Patterson said this would be a zone change so anything to be allowed in the “C-2” zoning 

would be allowed to go there, it’s a heavier commercial and it allows more types of businesses. Ms. Flaco 

asked where she could get the documents on what’s allowed in “C-2” zoning.  Mr. Patterson said at the 

planning office he could provide that for her.  Ms. Flaco asked if it was going to be used for storage.  

Would there be any fencing going up, or lights 24/7?  Those are her concerns because she lives at 213 E. 

Rose.  Mr. Cornum said those are really good questions and being that it could be “C-2” yes there could 

technically be commercial lighting and it does open the door for a lot more range on things to do.  Mr. 

Cornum asked Mr. Pina if he could explain in more detail on what their plans are in regards to parking, 

fencing, and lighting.  Mr. Pina said they want to do a metal building for tires and lights for the big 

trucks.  Mr. Cornum asked if there’s going to be any fencing up for privacy.  Mr. Patterson stated that it 

would be required to put up for fencing and provide landscaping buffer between their property and the 

residential property.  Any lights being installed will have to be pointed away from neighboring properties 

so they wouldn’t obstruct the residential properties.  That is in City requirements.  Ms. Flaco asked if the 

fencing had to be chain link.  Mr. Patterson said it has to be solid fencing.  Mr. Pina said they can do 

whatever that is required to accommodate the residents and the ordinance.  Mr. Salcido came to the 

podium and said that he lives 3207 Old Cavern Hwy. caddy corner to the property that’s in question.  His 

concern is what’s going to be stored there, is it a parts place, is there going to be any chemicals stored?  Is 

it going to be a work shop are they going to be hearing drills and air compressors, any types of noise to 

him it’s not a really big concern, but he was curious.  Mr. Pina said that it was not going to be a shop.  

Mr. Salcido said his concern is the lighting, because over on Rose Street when Mr. Brininstool purchased 

the property across the street and had it changed to “C-2”, they had an issue with the lighting.  It was 

lighting up his backyard and bedroom window and they took care of it with no problem.  Those LED 

lights were over kill and where ever they are pointing it’s disturbing and it hurt the eyes.  Same as the 

Brewer store with their lights.  It lit up his front yard.  He went over there and talked to them and it took 

them a couple of weeks to take care of the problem.  His concern is their going to have LED light then it’s 

going to light up his front yard.  Mr. Pina said whatever they have to do to accommodate everyone.  Mr. 

Cornum stated to Mr. Salcido that when they change this property to “C-2” it does open the door to more 

commercial business and they can’t restrict what goes on there.  Mr. Patterson said they can’t condition 

or restrict a zone change like that so whatever would be allowed in “C-2” would be allowed to locate here 

unless the zone would be changed again.  Even though this current applicant says that they’re going to do 

one thing if they sell the property or it has a new ownership they can do whatever is allowed in “C-2”.   

 

Ms. Wilson made a motion for approval; Mr. Nesser seconded the motion. The vote was as follows: Yes-

-Mr. Nesser, Mr. Cornum, Ms. Wilson. No— None. Absent—Mr. McCormick, Ms. Branson. 

Abstained—None. The motion carried. 

 

 

0:41:57  11. Consider a recommendation to the City Council regarding a request for a 

Zoning Change from “R-2” Residential 2 District to “C-2’ Commercial 2 District for an 

approximately 0.35 acre property located at 502 N. Sixth St., legal description attached.  

 

The applicant’s representative, Felipe Lucero, comes to the podium. Mr. Patterson explains this is a 

request for a change of zoning from “R-2” Residential 2 District to “C-2” Commercial 2 District for 

approximately 0.35 acres, located at 502 N. Sixth St.  The properties to the north & east are zoned “R-2” 

Residential 2 District; the properties to the south & west are zoned “R-1” Residential 1 District. This will 

create a spot zone.  Based on review of the application and staff comments, planning staff recommends 



 

 

denial of this request.  Mr. Lucero stated that the property owners own 502 and 510 N. Sixth Street.  It 

has two shops that are separated.  He said that he grew up on 408 N. Sixth St. just next to this property 

and for years this location was always an eyesore.  Mr. Lucero said that he built a house behind the 

property that’s next to the Women’s Battered Shelter.  It has always been a problem.  It’s been vacant.  

Other people have tried to do something and it hasn’t succeeded.  He understands that if there was a 

business that respects the neighborhood or noise, he is just trying to do tint and detailing there.  He’s 

renting the place right now and in the future he wants to purchase it.  Everyone in the neighborhood can 

see that he’s cleaned up the properties and because he knows to respect the neighborhood.  Mr. 

Hernandez said that he lives across the street at 505 N. Sixth Street.  He said that he’s against it because 

if Mr. Lucero doesn’t purchase it then something else can go there.  His neighbor that lives next door is 

retired and disabled.  There’s the Women’s Battered Shelter behind it and if they approve it then there’s 

nothing that they can do to change it, anything is allowed.  Mr. Hernandez said he’s about to retire and 

he’s been living at that house for almost 30 years.  He’ll have 2 years left then he’ll retire and his wife is 

disabled.  If Mr. Lucero said that he’s going to be doing detailing and tinting, if he decides to move then 

an oilfield company can move their business to that location.  Mr. Hernandez stated that a few years ago 

the City Council approved a mechanic shop there and the noise that was made at any time of the day was 

annoying and he doesn’t want that noise in the neighborhood.  It’s a quiet neighborhood.  They still have 

traffic with Hillcrest School, but if they change the zone to “C-2” then it’ll be more noise and more 

traffic.  Mr. Lucero said he understands if it changes hands and that’s not what the plan is.  He’s in the 

process in purchasing the property right now and he’s planning on keeping it and not trying to disrespect 

the neighbors and have all kinds of traffic with no big trucks in and out of there.  He’ll have a time to stop 

work at a reasonable hour.  His parents live at 408 N. Sixth St., so he’s not going to be making all kinds 

of noise.  It seems to him that being vacant is more of a problem than being occupied by him and his 

business.  It’s been a problem before it being vacant and no one is taking care of the property.  He is 

seeing weeds grow and living right next to the property is an eyesore and they’re all affected by it.  Mr. 

Cornum asked Mr. Lucero if his main intent is to have a window tint shop.  Mr. Lucero said yes.  Mr. 

Cornum asked if his business needs to fall under “C-2”.  Mr. Patterson said yes any kind of work like 

that falls under “C-2”.  Ms. Wilson stated her concern that there are no “C-2” properties along that street 

and it can limit to what people can do.  The biggest concern is not you having it changed, it’s the concern 

when you sell it and change ownership later on down the road they can do anything they want that’s the 

bad part.  Mr. Lucero said he understands and there were a couple of other commercial properties further 

down the street.     

 

Mr. Nesser made a motion for denial; Ms. Wilson seconded the motion. The vote was as follows: Yes--

Mr. Nesser, Mr. Cornum, Ms. Wilson. No— None. Absent—Mr. McCormick, Ms. Branson. 

Abstained—None. The motion for denial carried. 

 

0:50:55  12. Consider a recommendation to the City Council regarding a request for a 

Zoning Change from “R-2’ Residential 2 District to “C-2” Commercial 2 District for an 

approximately 0.18 acre property located at 510 N. Sixth St., legal description attached.  

 

The applicant’s representative, Felipe Lucero, comes to the podium. Mr. Patterson explains this request 

for a change of zoning from “R-2” Residential 2 District to “C-2” Commercial 2 District for 

approximately 0.35 acres, located at 502 N. Sixth St.  The properties to the north & east are zoned “R-2” 

Residential 2 District; the properties to the south & west are zoned “R-1” Residential 1 District. This will 

create a spot zone.  Based on review of the application and staff comments, planning staff recommends 

denial of this request.  Mr. Cornum explained that this item was contingent to the item #11 just a 

different address with the exact same information.    

 

Mr. Nesser made a motion for denial; Ms. Wilson seconded the motion. The vote was as follows: Yes--

Mr. Nesser, Mr. Cornum, Ms. Wilson. No— None. Absent—Mr. McCormick, Ms. Branson. 

Abstained—None. The motion for denial carried. 

 

0:52:50  13. Report regarding Summary Review Subdivisions 



Mr. Patterson gave a report on the Summary Reviews. Nothing unusual was noted. 

0:53:57 14. Adjourn

Ms. Wilson made a motion to Adjourn; Mr. Nesser seconded the motion. The vote was as follows: Yes--

Mr. Nesser, Mr. Cornum, Ms. Wilson. No— None. Absent—Mr. McCormick, Ms. Branson. 

Abstained—None. The motion carried. 

The meeting was adjourned. 

0:54:09 Stop Recording [5:54:24 PM] 

_____________________________________ ______________ 
 Chairman   Date 

















E ROSE ST

CACTUS ST

SUNNYVIEW AVE

OL
D 

CA
VE

RN
 H

W
Y

YU
CC

A S
T

E PECAN ST

NA
TIO

NA
L P

AR
KS

 HW
Y

KIRCHER ST

¯

0 250 500125 Feet 3/24/2023

Zone Change - 206 E. Rose St. - R-1 to C-2
Legend

Roads
Parcel

Zoning
C-1
R-R

R-2
R-1
PUD

I
C-2



E ROSE ST

OL
D 

CA
VE

RN
 H

W
Y

YU
CC

A S
T

207

214

213
109

107

212210206

3201

3207

3104

¯

0 100 20050 Feet 3/24/2023

Zone Change - 206 E. Rose St. - R-1 to C-2
Legend

Roads
Parcel

Zoning
C-1
R-R

R-2
R-1
PUD

I
C-2



CITY OF CARLSBAD 

AGENDA BRIEFING MEMORANDUM 

                                 Meeting Date: 5/9/2023 
DEPARTMENT: Planning & 
Regulation 

BY: Jeff Patterson, Planning 
Director 

DATE: 5/2/2023 

SUBJECT:  Request for a change of zoning from “R-R” Rural Residential District to “C-2” Commercial 2 
District for approximately 2.964 acres, located at 2013 San Jose Blvd., legally described as Tract 4, Old Rose 
Farm #3 Subdivision, pursuant to Section 3-21-1 et. Seq. NMSA 1978 and Sections 56-150(b) and 56-140(i), 
Carlsbad Code of Ordinances.  

 
Applicant/Owner: 
Presbyterian Medical Services 
PO Box 2267 
Santa Fe, NM 87504 
 

*The applicant provided the required notification to property owners within 100’ and agreed to post 

the required sign 5-days prior to the public hearing as required by Sec. 56-140(i). The City will notify 

the property owners’ 15-days prior to the City Council hearing and publish notification in the 

newspaper 30-days prior to said hearing. 

SYNOPSIS, HISTORY AND IMPACT (SAFETY AND WELFARE/FINANCIAL/PERSONNEL/INFRASTRUCTURE/ETC.): 

Request for a change of zoning from “R-R” Rural Residential District to “C-2” Commercial 2 District for 
approximately 2.964 acres, located at 2013 San Jose Blvd., legally described as Tract 4, Old Rose Farm #3 
Subdivision 
 

Sec. 56-40(e) states: 

 

(e) Commercial 2 (C-2) District.  
The Commercial 2 District is intended to accommodate community and regional-scale retail and 
commercial uses. Such uses are regulated in order to be compatible with surrounding uses and existing 
infrastructure.  

 
The properties to the north & west are zoned “R-R” Rural Residential District; the properties to the south & east 
are zoned “C-2 Commercial 2 District. This will not create a spot zone. 
 
Comprehensive Plan: Strategy 2040 goals and policies that are applicable to this request are: 

 

Chapter 5: Land Use 

Objectives:  

 To achieve a more balance land use mix and increase the supply of commercial properties. 

 To meet the commercial market demand and needs of existing and future Carlsbad 

residents. 

 To encourage redevelopment of vacant or underutilized properties for residential, 

commercial, or mixed-use development. 

 

According to Zoning Ordinance Sec. 56-150(b)(4). Amendments, Findings Required, a statement of fact 
regarding each of the following findings is required: 
 
(a) The proposed amendment will or will not adversely impact the public health, safety or general welfare and 
will or will not promote the original purposes of the Zoning Ordinance; and 
 
(b) The proposed amendment responds or does not respond to changed conditions, such as changes in 
public capital investments, road locations or functional classification, population trends, density, use or further 
studies that have been completed since adoption of the Zoning Ordinance; and 
 



(c) The proposed amendment is or is not necessary in order to respond to State and/or Federal legislation; 
and 
 
(d) The proposed amendment provides or does not provide additional flexibility in meeting the objectives of 
this Zoning Ordinance without lowering the standards of the Zoning Ordinance; and 
 
(e) The proposed amendment is or is not in substantial compliance with the City's Comprehensive Plan or 
other City Master Plan; and 
 
(f) The proposed amendment will or will not adversely affect the implementation of the goals and policies of 
the City's Comprehensive Plan or other City Master Plan; and  
 
(g) The proposed amendment is justified in order to correct a mistake in the Official Zoning Map or the text of 
the Zoning Ordinance; and   
 
(h) The proposed amendment is justified in order to respond to changes in the City’s Comprehensive Plan or 
other City Master Plan including, but not limited to, changes in land use assumptions, surrounding uses, 
population forecasts, rates of land consumption, anticipated community needs or other factors.  

 

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: Based on review of the application and 
staff comments, at their meeting on April 3, 2023, the Planning and Zoning Commission considered this item 
and recommended approval with a vote of three (3) in favor of approval, none (0) against, two (2) absent and 
none (0) abstain. 
 

DEPARTMENT RECOMMENDATION (please check): 
 Approval Denial n/a  Approval Denial n/a 

Public Works X   Planning, Eng. & Reg. Dept   X 

Fire Department   X     Code Enforcement Division       X 

Legal Department X     Planning Division X   

Police Department X   Projects Department   X 

Utilities Department X   Building Division   X 

 

DEPARTMENT COMMENTS:  

 
Public Works: Recommend approval 
 
Utilities Department: Recommend approval 
  
Building Department: No comment 
 
Fire Department: No comment 
 
Police Department: Recommend approval 
 
Code Enforcement: No comment 
 
Legal Department: Recommend approval 
 
Planning Department: Recommend approval 
 
Projects Department: No comments 
 



BOARD/COMMISSION/COMMITTEE ACTION:  
    P&Z                            Lodgers Tax Board              Cemetery Board                         APPROVED 
    Museum Board          San Jose Board                    Water Board                               DISSAPPROVED 
   Library Board              N. Mesa Board                     __________ Committee 

Reviewed by 
City Administrator _______________________________________  Date: ____________ 

ATTACHMENTS: Application materials, Ordinance, P & Z Minutes. 

oeramirez
Typewriter
/s/John Lowe

oeramirez
Typewriter
05/04/2023



ORDINANCE NO. 2023-____ 

AN ORDINANCE REZONING PART OF “R-R” 

RURAL RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT TO “C-2” 

COMMERCIAL 2 DISTRICT FOR AN 

APPROXIMATELY 2.964 ACRE PROPERTY, 

LOCATED AT 2013 SAN JOSE BLVD., LEGALLY 

DESCRIBED AS TRACT 4, OLD ROSE FARM #3 

SUBDIVISION PURSUANT TO SECTION 3-21-1 

ET. SEQ. NMSA 1978 AND SECTIONS 56-150(B) 

AND 56-140(I), CARLSBAD CODE OF 

ORDINANCES. 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY OF CARLSBAD, 

EDDY COUNTY, NEW MEXICO, that:  

The official zoning map of the City is hereby amended to rezone part of "R-R" Rural Residential 

District to "C-2" Commercial 2 District, for an approximately 2.964 acre property, located at 2013 

San Jose Blvd., legally described as: 

Tract 4, Old Rose Farm #3 Subdivision 

INTRODUCED, PASSED, ADOPTED AND APPROVED this 9th day of May, 2023.

____________________________________ 

DALE JANWAY, MAYOR  

ATTEST: 

__________________________________ 

CITY CLERK 

oeramirez
Typewriter
09



 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE 

 

City of Carlsbad 

Planning & Zoning Commission 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Monday, April 3, 2023 at 5:00 p.m. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Meeting Held in the Janell Whitlock Municipal Complex Council Chambers 

114 S. Halagueno St. 
 



 

 
 
 
 

 
CITY OF CARLSBAD 

CARLSBAD, NEW MEXICO 
 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
Monday, April 3, 2023 at 5:00 PM 

Janell Whitlock Municipal Complex Council Chambers  
114 S. Halagueno Street 

GoToMeeting ID: 537-022-653 
US Phone: (646) 749-3122 Access Code: 537-022-653 

 
 

1. Roll call of voting members and determination of quorum 

2. Approval of Agenda   

3. Approval of Minutes from the Meeting held March 6, 2023 

4. Remove from Table a consideration of a recommendation to the City Council 
regarding a request for a Zoning Change from “R-R” Rural Residential District to “C-2” 
Commercial 2 District for an approximately 2.964 acre property located at 2013 San 
Jose Blvd. 

5. Consider a recommendation to the City Council regarding a request for a Zoning 
Change from “R-R” Rural Residential District to “C-2” Commercial 2 District for an 
approximately 2.964 acre property located at 2013 San Jose Blvd., legally described 
as Tract 4, Old Rose Farm #3 Subdivision 

6. Consider a request for a Conditional Use Permit to allow a Home Occupation – 
Mobile Spray Tan Business to be located at 320 L St., zoned “R-1” Residential 1 
District zoning. 

7. Consider approval of a Preliminary Plat for the Lara Family Estate, subdividing an 
approximately 161 acre tract into five separate properties, located outside the 
Carlsbad City Boundary. 

8. Consider a request from the property owner at 2618 Iowa St. for the City to Vacate 
approximately 0.25 acres of public right-of-way, located between Iowa St. and Utah 
St. 

9. Consider a request for a Variance for the property located at 312 Wheat Ct. to reduce 
the rear setback from the required ten (10) feet to five (5) feet, zoned “R-1” 
Residential 1 District. 

 



 

10. Consider a recommendation to City Council regarding a request for a Zoning Change 
from “R-1” Residential 1 District to “C-2” Commercial 2 District for an approximately 
0.76 acre property located at 206 E. Rose St., legally described as Lot 2, Block 2, 
South Y subdivision. 

11. Consider a recommendation to the City Council regarding a request for a Zoning 
Change from “R-2” Residential 2 District to “C-2” Commercial 2 District for an 
approximately 0.35 acre property located at 502 N. Sixth St., legal description 
attached. 

12. Consider a recommendation to the City Council regarding a request for a Zoning 
Change from “R-2” Residential 2 District to “C-2” Commercial 2 District for an 
approximately 0.18 acre property located at 510 N. Sixth St., legal description 
attached. 

 
13. Report regarding Summary Review Subdivisions 

 
14. Adjourn 

 

 
FOR INFORMATION ONLY 

Agendas and Planning and Zoning Commission meeting minutes are available on the City web site: 

cityofcarlsbadnm.com  
 or may be viewed in the Office of the City Clerk or at the Carlsbad Public Library during normal and 

regular business hours 

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION MEETING SCHEDULE 

                                • Regular meeting – Monday, May 1, 2023 at 5:00 p.m. 

If you require hearing interpreter, language interpreters or auxiliary aids in order to attend and participate 

in the above meeting, please contact the City Administrator’s office at (575) 887-1191 at least 48 hours 

prior to the scheduled meeting time. 

 



 

 

 

MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY OF CARLSBAD PLANNING & 

ZONING COMMISSION HELD IN THE JANELL WHITLOCK MUNICIPAL COMPLEX 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS,  

114 S. HALAGUENO STREET, APRIL 3, 2023 AT 5:00 P.M. 

 

 

 

VOTING MEMBERS PRESENT:     

 BRAD NESSER COMMISSIONER (VIA PHONE) 

 TRENT CORNUM COMMISSIONER 

 LINDA WILSON  COMMISSIONER   

     

VOTING MEMBERS ABSENT:     

 JAMES MCCORMICK CHAIRPERSON    

 VALERIE BRANSON COMMISSIONER 

 

EX-OFFICIO MEMBERS PRESENT:  

 JEFF PATTERSON PLANNING DIRECTOR 

  

SECRETARY PRESENT: 

 JENNIFER CAMPOS PLANNING AND REGULATION  

   DEPARTMENT EXECUTIVE SECRETARY 

 VANESSA ORNELAS PLANNING AND REGUALTION 

DEPARTMENT SECRETARY  

OTHERS PRESENT:   

 BRENDA HARRIS  320 L ST. 

 FELIPE LUCERO  502 N 6TH ST. 

 MAURENN AMADOR 815 COUNTRYSIDE PL. 

 PATRICIA GREEN 2622 IOWA ST. 

 MARVIN JONES  2622 IOWA ST. 

 JOANN CLICK  4207 JONES ST. 

 JOSE PINA  206 ROSE ST. 

 TIM THOMPSON  312 WHEAT CT. 

 SAMANTHA FLACO 213 E. ROSE ST. 

 JOHN BOWEN      

 PATRICIA F. BALDERRAMA 204 S 10TH ST. 

 NATHAN MCGEE  204 S 10TH ST. 

 PATRICK DYER  1422 PASEO DE PERALTA 

 SHARON WESTON 2013 SAN JOSE BLVD. 

 JESSE W. LAMAN  1419 EAGLE AVE. 

 SAL REY SALCIDO 3207 OLD CAVERN HWY. 

 EDDIE HERNANDEZ 505 N. 6TH ST. 

 

  

Time Stamps and headings below correspond to recording of meeting and the recording is hereby made a 

part of the official record. 

 

0:00:02 Start Recording [5:00:15 PM] 

 

0:00:04 1. Roll call of Voting Members and Determination of Quorum    

 

Roll was called, confirming the presence of a quorum of commission members. The following members 

were present— Mr. Nesser, Mr. Cornum, Ms. Wilson. Absent—Mr. McCormick, Ms. Branson. 



 

 

 

0:00:32 2. Approval of Agenda  

 

Ms. Wilson made a motion to approve the Agenda; Mr. Nesser seconded the motion. The vote was as 

follows: Yes--Mr. Nesser, Mr. Cornum, Ms. Wilson. No—None. Absent—Mr. McCormick, Ms. 

Branson. Abstained—None. The motion carried. 

 

0:01:19 3. Approval of Minutes from the Meeting held March 6, 2023 

 

Ms. Wilson made a motion to approve the Minutes from the regular meeting held on March 6, 2023; Mr. 

Nesser seconded the motion. The vote was as follows: Yes--Mr. Nesser, Mr. Cornum, Ms. Wilson. 

No—None. Absent— Mr. McCormick, Ms. Branson. Abstained—None. The motion carried. 

 

0:01:58  4. Remove from Table a consideration of a recommendation to the City 

Council regarding a request for a Zoning Change from “R-R” Rural Residential District to “C-2” 

Commercial 2 District for an approximately 2.964 acre property located at 2013 San Jose Blvd. 

 

Ms. Wilson made a motion to remove from table; Mr. Nesser seconded the motion. The vote was as 

follows: Yes--Mr. Nesser, Mr. Cornum, Ms. Wilson. No—None. Absent— Mr. McCormick, Ms. 

Branson.  Abstained—None. The motion carried. 

 

0:02:59  5. Consider a recommendation to the City Council regarding a request for a 

Zoning Change from “R-R” Rural Residential District to “C-2” Commercial 2 District for an 

approximately 2.964 are property located at 2013 San Jose Blvd., legally described as Tract 4, Old 

Rose Farm #3 Subdivision. 

 

The applicant, Patrick Dyer, comes to the podium. Mr. Patterson explains that this request is to change 

the zoning from “R-R” Rural Residential District to “C-2” Commercial 2 District for approximately 2.964 

acres, located at 2013 San Jose Blvd., legally described as Tract 4, Old Rose Farm #3 Subdivision.  Mr. 

Patterson states upon review of the request, the applicant is wanting the Zoning Change to better fit the 

use of the property.  It will not create a spot zone. The Planning Dept. recommends approval of this 

request.  Mr. Dyer states that PMS is proposing to expand its facility by approximately 3500 square feet 

to fit the needs and services of the folks within the community.  The project will include installations of 8 

exam rooms medical areas for staff, as well as some minor improvements for parking. Floor opened for 

public comment. There was none. 

 

Ms. Wilson made a motion for approval; Mr. Nesser seconded the motion. The vote was as follows: Yes-

-Mr. Nesser, Mr. Cornum, Ms. Wilson. No—None. Absent— Mr. McCormick, Ms. Branson.  

Abstained—None. The motion carried. 

 

0:7:40  6. Consider a request for a Conditional Use Permit to allow a Home 

Occupation- Mobile Spray Tan Business to be located at 320 L St., zoned “R-1” Residential District 

zoning. 

 

The applicant, Brenda Harris, comes to the podium. Mr. Patterson explains this request is for a 

Conditional Use Permit to allow Home Occupation – Mobile Spray Tan Business. The applicant plans to 

park a mobile trailer that will house a mobile spray tan operation at her property at 320 L St. The 

applicant will travel to clients’ homes to offer spray tan services, and also plans to see clients at the 

subject property. The property only has approximately 37’ of street frontage and the applicant has 

indicated that the mobile trailer will need to be parked on the street in front of the property. Because of 

the unusual size and shape of the property, the applicant is unable to accommodate any off street parking 

for clients that come to the subject property for spray tan services.  After review, the Planning staff 

recommends denial of this request. Ms. Harris states that the mobile trailer will park in the yard in front.  

Mr. Cornum asked what size is the mobile trailer and where was it going to be parked primarily.  Ms. 



 

 

Harris said it was an 8 ½ x 24 foot, and it basically takes up the front part of the yard.  Mr. Cornum 

explained to Mr. Nesser that the trailer is parked on the grass area in the front to the right of the driveway.  

Ms. Harris said that a lot of the time it will be on the move instead of just sitting there.  She also said that 

there will only be one client at time coming to her property.  Mr. Cornum asked Ms. Harris if she had 

regular business hours.  Ms. Harris said not at this time. She said this was an alternative for her to make 

money.  She has a full time job, and she plans to work for the School systems and eventually have this as 

a side job on the weekends. Floor opened for public comment. There was none. Mr. Nesser asked if the 

trailer was parked parallel with the driveway.  Mr. Cornum answered yes.  Mr. Nesser asked how many 

customers will be going at one time, will it just the customer and the operator.  Ms. Harris answered yes.   

  

Ms. Wilson made a motion for approval; Mr. Nesser seconded the motion. The vote was as follows: Yes-

-Mr. Nesser, Mr. Cornum, Ms. Wilson. No— None. Absent— Mr. McCormick, Ms. Branson.  

Abstained—None. The motion carried. 

 

0:14:59  7. Consider approval of a Preliminary Plat for the Lara Family Estate, 

subdividing an approximately 161 acre tract into five separate properties, located outside the 

Carlsbad City Boundary.  

 

The applicant, Jesse Laman, comes to podium. Mr. Patterson explains this request is for the approval of 

a preliminary and final plat that will split the current +/- 161 acre property owned by Frankie Lara into 

five separate large tracts that are to be deeded to Mr. Lara’s heirs as per his will. The attached subdivision 

plat shows that the access will be provided over BLM managed property per the access easement with the 

BLM, and from the George Shoup Relief Route from an ingress/egress access installed by the NMDOT to 

the north of the property. The five lots will have a 60’ access easement across all new properties. There 

are currently no water or sewer services to note for this property.  Approval of this request will allow for 

the creation of 5 new large tracts. The City’s Planning Office has worked with Eddy County officials to 

address the access issues that are present for this property. The Eddy County Planner seems satisfied with 

the provided access as long as the ingress/egress point along the Relief Route is a permanent feature, and 

the road across the BLM property to the north of the subdivision that will be used for access is kept open. 

The Planning Dept. recommends approval of this request.  Mr. Laman said that his sister was in charge 

of the property, but she passed away.  Her executor was going to be her daughter then she suddenly 

passed away.  So then basically he inherited the property and wants to get it all taken care of per his 

sisters wishes.  Floor opened for public comment. There was none. 

 

Ms. Wilson made a motion for approval; Mr. Nesser seconded the motion. The vote was as follows: Yes-

-Mr. Nesser, Mr. Cornum, Ms. Wilson. No— None. Absent— Mr. McCormick, Ms. Branson. 

Abstained—None. The motion carried. 

 

0:19:17  8. Consider a request from the property owner at 2618 Iowa St. for the City to 

Vacate approximately 0.25 acres of public right-of-way, located between Iowa St. and Utah St.  

 

The applicant, Patricia Green, comes to podium. Mr. Patterson states the applicant. Patricia Green, is 

requesting that the City vacate the alley to the east of 2618 Iowa St. This alley runs north-south between 

Iowa St. to the south and Utah St. to the north. The portion of this alley that the applicant wants vacated is 

approximately 0.253 acres (11,020 sq. ft.) in area, and about 290 linear feet in length and 37 feet wide. 

The City would need to verify if any City owned utilities are located within this alley, and other utility 

companies would need to sign off on this vacation as well. Based on internal review by City staff, the 

Planning Department recommends denial of this request.  Ms. Green states that the alley north of her is 

already vacated and to the south she didn’t know if it has been legally vacated but they have already put 

up a fence.  This area has already become a traffic area where people are walking, looking to steal 

anything that they can and destroying anything.  Mr. Cornum asked Ms. Green what was her address.  

Ms.Green said she owns the property at 2618 Iowa St.  Mr. Patterson indicated her property was to the 

west of the right of way.  Ms. Wilson said there are no utilities on it.  Mr. Patterson states there are no 

City owned utilities but he couldn’t speak for Electric or Gas Companies.  Normally when the City 



 

 

vacates right of way such like this you have to get concurrent sign off from the other Utility Companies.  

Mr. Cornum asked Ms. Green what plans she had to do to this property if vacated.  Ms. Green said she 

wants to put up a fence so it would stop the traffic going through there.  Right now people are using it as a 

dump site.  Ms. Balderrama come to the podium and said that they have their house on the other side of 

the alley.  She had property at 2619 Utah St., and her house is at 204 S. Tenth Street.  She said they do 

have an Electric pole located in the alley.  She’s wanting to request that part of the alley.  Mr. Cornum 

asked Ms. Balderrama if she was against it being vacated or for it being vacated.  Ms. Balderrama 

responded she’s for the vacation.  Mr. McGee explains that he resides at 204 S. Tenth St. and he uses that 

right of way to get to his backyard and there’s a power pole there.  He’s been talking to Ms. Green to see 

if they could split it where the line goes down 204 S. Tenth St. and get that half of the property.  He’s all 

for Ms. Green getting the rest of the property. He doesn’t mind splitting it with the other neighbor but he 

needs time so he can move his gate otherwise they will no longer have access to get to their backyard.  

Mr. Cornum asked Mr. Patterson if it was City easement.  Mr. Patterson said it was City right of way.  

If the City was to vacate this portion of the right of way then the property owners that are adjacent to it 

would be entitled to half of that alley, so it would be split into 5 sections.  Ms. Wilson said that it was 

good idea for this request so it will stop all the traffic. 

 

Ms. Wilson made a motion for approval; Mr. Nesser seconded the motion. The vote was as follows: Yes-

-Mr. Nesser, Mr. Cornum, Ms. Wilson. No— None. Absent—Mr. McCormick, Ms. Branson. 

Abstained—None. The motion carried. 

 

0:26:53  9. Consider a request for a Variance for the property at 312 Wheat Ct. to 

reduce the rear setback from the required then (10) feet to five (5) feet, zoned “R-1” Residential 1 

District. 

 

The applicant, Tim Thompson, comes to the podium. Mr. Patterson explains this request is for Variance 

from Ord. 56-90(b) to allow a 5’ rear setback as opposed to the minimum 10’ rear setback for the property 

located at 312 Wheat Ct., zoned “R-1” Residential 1 District. He’s wanting to place a prefab 18’x30’metal 

building within the minimum rear setback for this property. The applicant plans to place the metal 

building within 5’ of the rear property line and 5’ from the west property line.  Looking at the property 

there’s no public right of way or alley way behind it, the properties abut each other.  Based on review of 

the application materials and other staff comments, the Planning Dept. recommends denial of this request.  

Mr. Thompson stated that he wants to get this shed and push it back just a little bit more so they can 

have space between the house and the metal building.  There will not be any kind of plumbing or 

electrical.  Mr. Cornum asked for clarification that he has 5 feet between his neighbor’s house to the left 

and he wants 5 feet in the back.  Floor opened for public comment. There was none.  Ms. Wilson asked if 

there were any other sheds around his street.  Mr. Thompson said not around him, but as you go down 

the other streets there are some that have 5 feet. 

 

Ms. Wilson made a motion for approval; Mr. Nesser seconded the motion. The vote was as follows: Yes-

-Mr. Nesser, Mr. Cornum, Ms. Wilson. No— None. Absent—Mr. McCormick, Ms. Branson. 

Abstained—None. The motion carried. 

 

0:30:21  10. Consider a recommendation to City Council regarding a request for a 

Zoning Change from “R-1” Residential 1 District to “C-2” Commercial 2 District for an 

approximately 0.76 acre property located at 206 E. Rose St., legally described as Lot 2, Block 2, 

South Y subdivision. 

 

The applicant, Jose Pina, comes to the podium. Mr. Patterson explains this request is for a change of 

zoning from “R-1” Residential 1 District to “C-2” Commercial 2 District for approximately 0.76 acres, 

located at 206 E. Rose St., legally described as Lot 2, Block 2, South Y Subdivision. The subject property 

lies east of the intersection of Old Cavern Hwy., Yucca St., and E. Rose St.  If you see on the map pages 

90 and 91 the properties to the north & west are zoned “C-2” Commercial 2 District; the properties to the 

south & east are zoned “R-1” Residential 1 District. This will not create a spot zone.  The use looks to be 



 

 

residential in nature.  Based on review of the application and staff comments, planning staff recommends 

approval of this request.  Mr. Pina stated that they want to put up a metal building to store parts for this 

company.  Ms. Flaco asked what is the company going to be storing there, is there going to be any 

changes or development of any type of business.  They have two driveways one is facing Old Cavern 

Hwy. and the other is facing East Rose Street which is a dead end street.  How are they going to be 

entering and exiting the property?  Mr. Pina said that they are not going to have any trucking it’s only 

going to be for parts.  Mr. Cornum asked if it was going to be opened for business during the week.  Mr. 

Pina said maybe.  Mr. Cornum asked Mr. Patterson if the zone change is for the entire address of the 

property.  Mr. Patterson said this would be a zone change so anything to be allowed in the “C-2” zoning 

would be allowed to go there, it’s a heavier commercial and it allows more types of businesses. Ms. Flaco 

asked where she could get the documents on what’s allowed in “C-2” zoning.  Mr. Patterson said at the 

planning office he could provide that for her.  Ms. Flaco asked if it was going to be used for storage.  

Would there be any fencing going up, or lights 24/7?  Those are her concerns because she lives at 213 E. 

Rose.  Mr. Cornum said those are really good questions and being that it could be “C-2” yes there could 

technically be commercial lighting and it does open the door for a lot more range on things to do.  Mr. 

Cornum asked Mr. Pina if he could explain in more detail on what their plans are in regards to parking, 

fencing, and lighting.  Mr. Pina said they want to do a metal building for tires and lights for the big 

trucks.  Mr. Cornum asked if there’s going to be any fencing up for privacy.  Mr. Patterson stated that it 

would be required to put up for fencing and provide landscaping buffer between their property and the 

residential property.  Any lights being installed will have to be pointed away from neighboring properties 

so they wouldn’t obstruct the residential properties.  That is in City requirements.  Ms. Flaco asked if the 

fencing had to be chain link.  Mr. Patterson said it has to be solid fencing.  Mr. Pina said they can do 

whatever that is required to accommodate the residents and the ordinance.  Mr. Salcido came to the 

podium and said that he lives 3207 Old Cavern Hwy. caddy corner to the property that’s in question.  His 

concern is what’s going to be stored there, is it a parts place, is there going to be any chemicals stored?  Is 

it going to be a work shop are they going to be hearing drills and air compressors, any types of noise to 

him it’s not a really big concern, but he was curious.  Mr. Pina said that it was not going to be a shop.  

Mr. Salcido said his concern is the lighting, because over on Rose Street when Mr. Brininstool purchased 

the property across the street and had it changed to “C-2”, they had an issue with the lighting.  It was 

lighting up his backyard and bedroom window and they took care of it with no problem.  Those LED 

lights were over kill and where ever they are pointing it’s disturbing and it hurt the eyes.  Same as the 

Brewer store with their lights.  It lit up his front yard.  He went over there and talked to them and it took 

them a couple of weeks to take care of the problem.  His concern is their going to have LED light then it’s 

going to light up his front yard.  Mr. Pina said whatever they have to do to accommodate everyone.  Mr. 

Cornum stated to Mr. Salcido that when they change this property to “C-2” it does open the door to more 

commercial business and they can’t restrict what goes on there.  Mr. Patterson said they can’t condition 

or restrict a zone change like that so whatever would be allowed in “C-2” would be allowed to locate here 

unless the zone would be changed again.  Even though this current applicant says that they’re going to do 

one thing if they sell the property or it has a new ownership they can do whatever is allowed in “C-2”.   

 

Ms. Wilson made a motion for approval; Mr. Nesser seconded the motion. The vote was as follows: Yes-

-Mr. Nesser, Mr. Cornum, Ms. Wilson. No— None. Absent—Mr. McCormick, Ms. Branson. 

Abstained—None. The motion carried. 

 

 

0:41:57  11. Consider a recommendation to the City Council regarding a request for a 

Zoning Change from “R-2” Residential 2 District to “C-2’ Commercial 2 District for an 

approximately 0.35 acre property located at 502 N. Sixth St., legal description attached.  

 

The applicant’s representative, Felipe Lucero, comes to the podium. Mr. Patterson explains this is a 

request for a change of zoning from “R-2” Residential 2 District to “C-2” Commercial 2 District for 

approximately 0.35 acres, located at 502 N. Sixth St.  The properties to the north & east are zoned “R-2” 

Residential 2 District; the properties to the south & west are zoned “R-1” Residential 1 District. This will 

create a spot zone.  Based on review of the application and staff comments, planning staff recommends 



 

 

denial of this request.  Mr. Lucero stated that the property owners own 502 and 510 N. Sixth Street.  It 

has two shops that are separated.  He said that he grew up on 408 N. Sixth St. just next to this property 

and for years this location was always an eyesore.  Mr. Lucero said that he built a house behind the 

property that’s next to the Women’s Battered Shelter.  It has always been a problem.  It’s been vacant.  

Other people have tried to do something and it hasn’t succeeded.  He understands that if there was a 

business that respects the neighborhood or noise, he is just trying to do tint and detailing there.  He’s 

renting the place right now and in the future he wants to purchase it.  Everyone in the neighborhood can 

see that he’s cleaned up the properties and because he knows to respect the neighborhood.  Mr. 

Hernandez said that he lives across the street at 505 N. Sixth Street.  He said that he’s against it because 

if Mr. Lucero doesn’t purchase it then something else can go there.  His neighbor that lives next door is 

retired and disabled.  There’s the Women’s Battered Shelter behind it and if they approve it then there’s 

nothing that they can do to change it, anything is allowed.  Mr. Hernandez said he’s about to retire and 

he’s been living at that house for almost 30 years.  He’ll have 2 years left then he’ll retire and his wife is 

disabled.  If Mr. Lucero said that he’s going to be doing detailing and tinting, if he decides to move then 

an oilfield company can move their business to that location.  Mr. Hernandez stated that a few years ago 

the City Council approved a mechanic shop there and the noise that was made at any time of the day was 

annoying and he doesn’t want that noise in the neighborhood.  It’s a quiet neighborhood.  They still have 

traffic with Hillcrest School, but if they change the zone to “C-2” then it’ll be more noise and more 

traffic.  Mr. Lucero said he understands if it changes hands and that’s not what the plan is.  He’s in the 

process in purchasing the property right now and he’s planning on keeping it and not trying to disrespect 

the neighbors and have all kinds of traffic with no big trucks in and out of there.  He’ll have a time to stop 

work at a reasonable hour.  His parents live at 408 N. Sixth St., so he’s not going to be making all kinds 

of noise.  It seems to him that being vacant is more of a problem than being occupied by him and his 

business.  It’s been a problem before it being vacant and no one is taking care of the property.  He is 

seeing weeds grow and living right next to the property is an eyesore and they’re all affected by it.  Mr. 

Cornum asked Mr. Lucero if his main intent is to have a window tint shop.  Mr. Lucero said yes.  Mr. 

Cornum asked if his business needs to fall under “C-2”.  Mr. Patterson said yes any kind of work like 

that falls under “C-2”.  Ms. Wilson stated her concern that there are no “C-2” properties along that street 

and it can limit to what people can do.  The biggest concern is not you having it changed, it’s the concern 

when you sell it and change ownership later on down the road they can do anything they want that’s the 

bad part.  Mr. Lucero said he understands and there were a couple of other commercial properties further 

down the street.     

 

Mr. Nesser made a motion for denial; Ms. Wilson seconded the motion. The vote was as follows: Yes--

Mr. Nesser, Mr. Cornum, Ms. Wilson. No— None. Absent—Mr. McCormick, Ms. Branson. 

Abstained—None. The motion for denial carried. 

 

0:50:55  12. Consider a recommendation to the City Council regarding a request for a 

Zoning Change from “R-2’ Residential 2 District to “C-2” Commercial 2 District for an 

approximately 0.18 acre property located at 510 N. Sixth St., legal description attached.  

 

The applicant’s representative, Felipe Lucero, comes to the podium. Mr. Patterson explains this request 

for a change of zoning from “R-2” Residential 2 District to “C-2” Commercial 2 District for 

approximately 0.35 acres, located at 502 N. Sixth St.  The properties to the north & east are zoned “R-2” 

Residential 2 District; the properties to the south & west are zoned “R-1” Residential 1 District. This will 

create a spot zone.  Based on review of the application and staff comments, planning staff recommends 

denial of this request.  Mr. Cornum explained that this item was contingent to the item #11 just a 

different address with the exact same information.    

 

Mr. Nesser made a motion for denial; Ms. Wilson seconded the motion. The vote was as follows: Yes--

Mr. Nesser, Mr. Cornum, Ms. Wilson. No— None. Absent—Mr. McCormick, Ms. Branson. 

Abstained—None. The motion for denial carried. 

 

0:52:50  13. Report regarding Summary Review Subdivisions 



Mr. Patterson gave a report on the Summary Reviews. Nothing unusual was noted. 

0:53:57 14. Adjourn

Ms. Wilson made a motion to Adjourn; Mr. Nesser seconded the motion. The vote was as follows: Yes--

Mr. Nesser, Mr. Cornum, Ms. Wilson. No— None. Absent—Mr. McCormick, Ms. Branson. 

Abstained—None. The motion carried. 

The meeting was adjourned. 

0:54:09 Stop Recording [5:54:24 PM] 

_____________________________________ ______________ 
 Chairman   Date 



Zoning Change Application 

Receipt 0Jte Stamp 

Page 3 of7 

CITY OF CARLSBAD 
Planning, Engineering, and 

Regulation Department 
PO Box 1569, Carlsbad, NM 88221 

P hone (575) 885-1185 
Fax (575) 628-8379 

ZONING CHANGE APPLICATION 
Sec. 56-150(b) 

A li . D 2-"2. . 1.oZ.3 pp catl.on ate: -=--c.J-=----- Fee Paid ($100.00): ___ _ 
Existing Zoning: _R_-R ___ _ Proposed Zoning: _c_-2 ___ _ 

APPLICANT INFORMATION: 

Carlsbad Family Health Center 2013 San Jose Blvd. 
N.\ME ADDRESS 

Carlsbad NM 88220 (575) 887-2455 patrick.dyer@pmsnm.org 
CITY STATE Z IP PHONE EMAlL 

PROPERTY OWNER INFORMATION (attach separate sheet for multiple owners): 

Presbyterian Medical Services PO Box 2267 
NAME ADDRESS 

Santa Fe NM 87504-2267 (505) 795-1399 patrick.dyer@pmsnm.org 
CITY STATE ZIP PHONE EMML 

*A signed affidavit from the property owner(s), consenting to submittal of the application, must be 
included with the application. 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION AND/OR STREET ADDRESS OF PROPERTY (INCLUDEAMEETSANDBOUNDS 

DESCRIPTION FOR UNPLATtED LAND, ATTACH SEPARATE SHEET, IF NECESSARY): 

2013 San Jose Blvd Tract 4, Old Rose Farm #3 
ADDRESS LOT BLOCK SUBDIVISION 

11-15-16 



Zoning Change Application Page4of7 

REASON FOR THE REQUEST 
An amendment to the Official Zoning Map or to the Text of the Zoning Ordinance must be justified by one or 
more of the following. Check all that apply: 

~ The proposed amendment will not adversely impact the public health, safety or general welfare and 
will or will not promote the original purposes of the Zoning Ordinance. 

D The proposed amendment responds to changed conditions, such as changes in public capital 
investments, road locations or functional classification, population trends, density, use or further 
studies that have been completed since adoption of the Zoning Ordinance. 

D The proposed amendment is necessary in order to respond to State and/or Federal legislation. 

0 The proposed amendment provides additional flexibility in meeting the objectives of this Zoning 
Ordinance without lowering the standards of the Zoning Ordinance. 

D The proposed amendment is in substantial compliance with the City's Comprehensive Plan or other 
City Master Plan. 

13' The proposed amendment will not adversely affect the implementation of the goals and policies of the 
City's Comprehensive Plan or other City Master Plan. 

0 The proposed amendment will correct a mistake in the Official Zoning Map or the text of the Zoning 
Ordinance. 

D The proposed amendment is justified in order to respond to changes in the City's Comprehensive Plan 
or other City Master Plan including, but not limited to, changes in land use assumptions, surrounding 
uses, population forecasts, rates of land consumption, anticipated community needs or other factors. 

FOR OFFICIAL USE ONLY: 

Required prior to P & Z: 
Complete Application Including: D Map 0 Fee D Letter D Notification D Sign Agreement 

Required prior to City Council: 
Council Hearing Date:--------- Publication Date:----------

Property Owner Notification Sent (within 100' minimum.): ------

0 ABM 0 Staff Comments D Application Packet D Draft Ordinance D P&Z Minutes 

Council Action: D Approved 0 Denied D Other Ordinance No.: 

11-15-16 



Zoning Change Application 

CITY OF CARLSBAD 
AFFIDAVIT BY PROPERTY OWNER(S) 

PageS of7 

IF AN APPLICATION IS MADE BY SOMEONE OTHER THAN THE PROPERTY OWNER 
TillS FORM MUST ACCOMPANY THE APPLICATION MATERIALS. 
APPLICATION TYPE: 

liZONING CHANGE 0CONDITIONAL USE OV ARIANCE 0TEMPORARY USE 

STATE OF NEW MEXICO) 
) ss 

COUNTY OF EDDY ) 

I (WE) HEREBY CERTIFY that I am (we are) the owners of record of the property described as follows: 

ADoREssoFPROPERTY:2013 San Jose Blvd., Carlsbad, NM 88220 
STREET ADDRESS 

LEGAL oEsscRPTioN: Old Rose Farm #3, Tract 4 
SUBDMSION BLOCK W T ORTRACf 

I {WE) HAVE AUTHORIZED the following individuals to act as my (our) agent with regard to this application. 

AGENT: _P_a_t_ric_k_ D...:..y_e_r ___ --:-=- ------ -
NAME 

(505) 820-34 71 
PHONE 

PO Box 2267, Santa Fe, NM 87504-2267 

I (WE) UNDERSTAND, CONCUR AND AFFIRM: 

That this application may be approved, approved with conditions or denied and that, as the property 
owner, it is my responsibility to ensure that any conditions are complied with and to ensure that the 
property is maintained in a condition so as not to jeopardize the health, safety or welfare of others and 
that compliance with all applicable City ordinances is required, and 

I (WE) HEREBY EXECUTE THIS AFFIDAVIT in support of the proposed application as presented: 

_!!WNER~ -~ 

BY:~2~ -=-. 
SJGNATURE 

BY: Patrick Dyer 
PRINTED NAME 

(ADDITIONAL OWNERS: 
ATTACH SEPARATE SHEETS 

AS NECESSARY) 

11-15-16 

ACKNOWLEDGED, SUBSCRIBED, AND SWORN 

to before me this j rd day of h bo1 a r f , 
20 .n_, by '£c,.cr «-4~--:--t::>-1 efL-.. . 

Notary Public ~or 61,r;{;, t" 2 

f 
My commission expires: Mo rj J], 2 f):l 5 

--
JANA£ MARTINEZ ~ 

Notary Publ~ • Stat~ of New Mexico ~ 
Commtufon # f134556 

• My Comm. Expires May 27, 2025 



Zomng Change Applicatton 

NOTIFICATION SIGN 
POSTING AGREEMENT 

Notification ofPublic Hearings before the City of Carlsbad Planning and Zoning 
Commission is required pursuant to Sec. 56-140(i). 

• Signs shall be posted a minimum of 5 days prior to and shall be removed a 
maximum of 5 days after the public hearing. 

Page 6 of7 

• If the sign is not posted as required, the application will be delayed and will not be 
considered at the public hearing as scheduled. 

• The sign shall be posted at the street side property line with a secure stake provided 
by the applicant. 

I have read and understand these requirements. I understand where the sign is to be 
located and my obligation to post the sign prior to the public hearing and remove it 
afterwards. 

~ 
Sign issued by:--------

Staff Member 

Notification Agreement Rev 10/11 

11-15-16 

DATE 



Zoning Change Application Page 7 of7 

Date: 21212o23 

Dear Property Owner, 

This letter serves as legal notification of a pending action before the City of Carlsbad Planning and 
Zoning Commission in accordance with Code of Ordinances Sec. 56-140(i). You are being notified 
because you are a property owner within one-hundred feet (1 00') of the subject site. 

Applicant: Presbyterian Medical Servi~;es PO Box 2267, Santa Fe, NM 87504-2267 (505) 982-5565 

Name Address Phone 

Subject Site Location: 2013 San Jose Blvd., Carlsbad, NM 88220 

The proposed action is a: 
!! Zoning Change from _R_-R ____ to c-2 in accordance with Sec. 56-150(b ). 

D Variance/Appeal from Sec. ________ in accordance with Sec. 56-I 50( c). 
The purpose of the variance/appeal is: 

D Conditional Use Permit in accordance with Sec. 56-ISO(f). The purpose of the permit is for a: 
D Home Occupation: __________ _ 

D Other Use:-------------

The Planning and Zoning Commission will consider this request at a Public Hearing on: 
Date: March 6, 2023 

Time: 5:00pm 
Place: City Annex Planning Room 

114 S. Halagueno St. 
Carlsbad, NM 88220 

The Code of Ordinances can be found on the City's website www.cityofcarlsbadnm.com. 
For details about this request contact the applicant OR contact the City Planner at 
575-885-1185 or via email at jepatterson@cityofcarlsbadnm.com. 

Sincerely. 

~---------

11-15-16 



Zoning Change Application Page I of7 

CITY OF CARLSBAD 
Planning, Engineering, and Regulation Department 

PO Box 1569, Carlsbad, NM 88221 
Phone (575) 885-1185 

Fax (575) 628-8379 

ZONING CHANGE APPLICATION 
Sec. 56-150(b) 

PROCESS FOR ACCEPTANCE AND REVIEW 
OF PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION MA TIERS 

1. The Planning and Zoning Commission's regularly scheduled meetings are on the FIRST MONDAY 
OF THE MONTH. Applicant should obtain an Application Packet for the particular type of 
request (Zone Change, Subdivision, Variance, Annexation, Conditional Use, etc.) from the City of 
Carlsbad, Planning, Engineering, and Regulation Office. 

2. Applicant must submit a completed Application to the Planning, Engineering. and 
Regulation Office on. or before. the FIRST FRIDAY OF THE MONTH prior to the 
desired Commission meeting. The minimum application packet submittal is one (1) copy of the 
Application with original signatures and all required supporting documents. A letter of explanation 
or clarification may also be provided. The required non-refundable application fee is due with 
submittal of the application. 

The desired maximum size for all documents is 11"x17". However, if the applicant wishes to 
support his or her application with larger size documents, an original and eight (8) copies 
need to be provided. Separate arrangements for copying these large documents may be possible, 
but will incur additional costs. 

3. The Planning, Engineering, and Regulation Office will give the Application an initial cursory review. 
If deficiencies or questions are noted, the Applicant will be advised and provided an opportunity to 
supplement the Application. If the Applicant fails to complete and resubmit the application prior to 
the above deadline, the matter will not be heard until the next subsequent Commission meeting. The 
original application fee will be retained and will suffice for the specific original application for a 
period of 90-days from the date of the original application. 

4. Applications appearing complete will be set for full evaluation by City Staff prior to the Commission 
meeting. The purpose of this evaluation is to develop and provide a full briefing report for the 
Commission. Applicants will be advised of deficiencies noted during this review and will be afforded 
opportunity to supplement their application during their presentation to the Commission, if they so 
desire. 

11-15-16 



Zoning Change Application Page 2 of7 

ADDITIONAL PROCEDURAL REQUIREMENTS FOR ZONING 
CHANGES: 

1) PRESENCE AT MEETING: The Planning and Zoning Commission will vote to recommend 
to the City Council approval or denial of request. Applicant or his/her representative must be 
present to address any questions that Planning and Zoning Commissioners may have. 

2) CITY COUNCIL SETS A HEARING DATE: After the Planning and Zoning Commission 
has made a recommendation on the request, the City Council (at their next regular meeting) will 
set a date for a public hearing. The date will be set for a regularly scheduled City Council 
meeting a minimum of 30 days from that date. A "notice of public hearing" is published in the 
Current Argus at least 30 days prior to the hearing. 

3) NOTIFICATION: The applicant shall mail notice ofthe Planning and Zoning Commission 
meeting, via certified mail, to all property owners within one-hundred feet (100' ) ofthe subject 
site. Evidence of such notification shall be provided with the application. In addition, the 
applicant shall post a sign, provided by the City, at the property at least 5 days prior to the public 
hearing. At least fifteen (15) days prior to the City Council hearing, the City will notify adjacent 
property owners within 100' of the subject property via first-class mail for properties greater than 
one (1) block in size, or via certified mail for properties one (1) block or less in size. The 
notification will include a description of the request, applicant's information, legal description of 
subject property, and the date of the hearing. 

4) PUBLIC HEARING: The Public Hearing will be held during a regularly scheduled City 
Council meeting, and the applicant or his/her representative MUST BE PRESENT to address 
any questions that the Mayor or Council members may have. 

5) ZONING CHANGE IS FINAL: If the City Council approves the zone change, the ordinance is 
published in the Current Argus. The change is considered final five (5) days after publication. 

11 -15-16 



• ·• PMS ~~ ~-~ PRESBYTERIAN MED IC AL SERVICES 

February 2, 2023 

VIA EMAIL: paortiz@cityofcarlsbadnm.com 

Trysha Ortiz 

Deputy Director of Planning & Regulation 

114 S. Halagueno St. 

Carlsbad, NM 88220 

575-885-1185 

Re: Zoning Change Application PMS Carlsbad Family Health Center 

Dear Mrs. Ortiz, 

PMS Carlsbad Family Health Center located at 2013 San Jose BLVD Carlsbad New Mexico 88220 and is 
currently operating an outpatient community health center within Eddy County since 2005. We have received 
federal funding to expand our clinic for purposes of increasing access to safety net medical and behavioral 
health services. Then we need to describe the scope of the expansion/remodel. 

Eddy County, located in the southeast corner of the state, is a Medically Underserved Area (MUA) and Health 
Professional Shortage Area (HPSA). Presbyterian Medical Services {PMS) has been providing primary 
healthcare in the city of Carlsbad for 30 years. PMS Carlsbad Family Health Center (FHC) has experienced 
double-digit increases in patient visits since 2016, and there is a continuing need for additional primary care 
services in the community. The expansion of Carlsbad FHC will add 8 exam rooms, capacity to add behavioral 
health services, and create a more efficient medical support workstation. The additional clinical space will 
improve patient flow and provider efficiency. The expanded clinic will have space to add 2 medical providers 
and 1 behavioral health provider to its clinical team and open access to care for 3200 additional patients. 

PMS will use Congressionally Designated Spending (CDS) funds to expand the existing footprint of the 
Carlsbad FHC facility from its current 9,088 square feet to 12,688 square feet- an increase of 3,600 square 
feet. The expansion will include an additional eight (8) exam rooms, Behavioral Health office and group room, 
Medical Assistant workstation, expanded pharmacy space with admin office, new restrooms, and an extended 
file room. The project will also reconfigure approximately 740 square feet of the existing facility to provide an 
expanded lab space and revamped space for a provider work room. 

This project addresses the unmet need for services in Eddy County by improving access to primary care, 
especially those who have experienced difficulty finding a medical home due to costs, lack of transportation, 
distance barriers and ability to pay. PMS is the only primary care provider that offers a sliding fee scale in Eddy 
County. 



PMS has developed partnerships with local hospitals, public health departments, city and county governments 
and local providers to offer complete wrap-around services to patients. The city of Carlsbad looks to PMS to 
provide critical services to the uninsured and underserved. The community expects the health center to be able 
to meet health care needs as they continue to grow and change. 

Throughout the construction and implementation of the project, PMS will boost employment opportunities and 
financial resources into the community. The additional services created from the expansion will improve the 
lives of patients and the overall health of the community. 

Should you have further questions, please feel free to reach out to me at any time. I can be reached at 
patrick.dyer@pmsnm.org or via phone at (505) 982-5565. 

General Services Director 

PMSNM.ORG 
Presbyterian Medical Services 

PO Box 2267 Santa Fe, NM 87504 
1422 Paseo de Peralta Santa Fe, NM 87501 

PHONE: 505.982-5565 



SU.t''·z ·sr ~T'S .,U£5 . , . ., it 

--

L 

SENDER: COMPLETE THIS SECTION 

i • Complete items 1 I 21 and 3. 
l • Print your name and address on the reverse 
I so that we can return the card to you. 
I • Attach this card to the back of the mailpiecel 
1 or on the front if space permits. 
l 1. Article Addressed to: 

:r~ ~~ i/Jll ~ 
/)56 ~V-~\S~~ 

COMPLETE THIS SECTION ON DELIVERY 

D Agent 
D Addressee X 

B. Received by (Printed Name) I C. Date of Delivery 

D. Is delivery address different from Item 1? D Yes 
If YES, enter delivery address below: 0 No 

~\tu.L\ w. ~L.U< NY'ft ~VJb~)~;::::======= 
111111111111111111111 1111111111111111111111111 i55~Delv.y gi?:r~ 

9590 9402 6570 1 028 7671 84 0 Certified Mail Reslrlcted 01111\wy 0 Signature Confirmation"' 
---=--=-~-:-:----:~-=-----------10 Collect on Delvery 0 SlgnatureConlmlatlon 

2. Article Number (fransfer from service label) 0 Collect on Delivery Reetrlcted Delvely Restricted Oellv«y 
0 lnaured Mal 

7003 1010 0004 9458 9982 [J~~~aiRuttlcte<lo.llvery 
L__-------;1 ~PS~F~orm~3~80.1~14~~J~ul~y~20=2=o~~~N~7~~o-~~~-~ooo~~~o~~----L-~~~-------~--c-R-m-um-R_ec_e_l~-: 

I 

SENDER: COMPLETE THIS SECTION 

• Complete Items 1, 21 and 3. 
• Print your name and address on the reverse 

so that we can return the card to you. 
• Attach this card to the back of the mall piece, 

· or on the front If space permits . 

1. Artlcle Addressed to: 

: &ov7Ftw-5r JJH\ ~~ftJ /fqM w.p. 
! ,q l s- SN-t jse ] c..vp . 
l ~~M I tJfrl ~2:2-o 
I 

I 111111111111111111111 11 11111111111111111111111 
9590 9402 6570 1028 7671 77 

COMPLETE THIS SECTION ON DELIVERY 

A. Signature 

0 Agent 
0 Addressee 

1 X 
B. Received by (Printed Name) I C. Date of Delivery 

D. Is delivery address different from Item 1? 0 Yes 
If YES, enter deliV&lY addless below: 0 No 

3. Service 'JYpe 
0 Adult SlgnalUIII 
0 Ad\At Slgnatunt Restricted Delivery 
~~~ .... 

0 Priority Mall Express4D 
D Regilllaled MaD"' : 
0 ~Mall Reslrlcted: 

0 Certified Mill Restricted Dallvay 
CJ Collect on DllllYely 

-, -=-2.-Artl:-:-:-c-=-re-=-N:-um-ber:---=rrrans=---:-,e-,-=--from_se_rvtce-:--/a:-:bel),.....-:-----1 CJ Collect on o.nv.y ResiJfoted DeiMIIy 
0 lnsurad Mill 

7003 1010 0004 9458 9975 o~:::,~ ReetrlctedDellvery 

o Signature Conl!nnatlon,.. I 
0 Signature Confirmation 

Restrlded Oelvery 

f PS Form 3811 1 July 2020 ~ 7530·02.000-9053 Domestic Retlm Receipt j 

I • Attach this card to the back of the mallplecel 
I or on the front if space permits. 

E~~~~--r~------~------------

i OM/I'D ; Wf#N6 /Y71rL~ 
I ~ 

: ?o ~ot 51Cf 
! r- L .. u rt?,A-/.)/ ,V M Z'8 Z 1.../ 
1 Vfl fA<1 3. Service Type 

• 1. Article Addressed t.o: 
D. Is delivery ada'ess dfferent from item 1? Cl Yes 

H YES, enter delivery address below: Cl No 

111111111111111111111111111111111111111111 1111 ~=RestrlctedOel~ 
0 Priority Mill~ 
0 Registered~ 
0 ~Mal Restricted . 

0 Signalunl Conllrmallon"' 
0 Signature C<inftrmatlon 9590 9402 65701028 7671 60 g=:-'~Oelvery 

! 2. Article Number (rransfer from service labeQ !.:! ~:: o,:;al~llvery Restricted DeiVery 

7003 1010 0004 9458 9968 Un!d MallRestrfctedDellvery 
/lf$500) 

R8lltrfc:ted DeHvely 

1 PS Form 3811
1 
July 2020 PSN 7530-02-000·9053 Domestic Return Receipt : 

I 

I 

_j 



U'J 
("
n
n-

.::r 
Cl 
Cl 
Cl 

Cl 
r=l 
Cl 
r=l 

U.S. Postal Servicer .. 
CERTIFIED MAIL,.. RECEIPT 
{Domestic Mall Only; No lnsursnce Coverage Provided) 

~· · ' . :. .. , , 

l 0 F • 
or-11 ·~ ..j I..!= 

Postage $ 

CartlfledFee 

Return Reclept Fee Postmark 
(Endorsement Required) Here 

Restricted Delvety Fee 
(Endorsement Required) 

l 

co 
..D 
a
n-

co 
U'J 
.::r 
n-

.::r 
Cl 
Cl 
Cl 

Cl 
...=t 
Cl 
r:f 

I . . ostal Servicer .. 
CERTIFIED MAIL .. RECEIPT 
(Domestic Mall Only; No Insurance Coverage Provided) 

' ' ' t • : 

I 
·· - . 

.., I ' l ~ 

- 1: 

POSiage $ 

Cellllied Fee 

Return Reclept Fee Poetmark 
(Endorsement Required) Here 

Restricted DeUvery Fee 
(Endorsement Required) 

Total Postage & Fees $ 
Total Postage & Fees 

tT1 
CJ 'Ill 0 

$ 
:;g~rro-:~-;:--.-;-:---=--:--------. 
Cl 
("-~ -sirie¥--J¥f!)J(!!l.f...l:!.I.O .... ~tlltb.Y~!.l.f!j_!.~q!._~ ... ?J,'ff. . . 

;~:.-~pj:il~--M.tY..d.!?ff!: ___ ~-~~-~-=----··-····-··--
cM t...I N ;n 8'21..6 : tt 

: t t 

U.S. Postal Service, .. 
ru 
co 
I]"" 
I]"" 

CERTIFIED MAIL .. RECEIPT 

co 
U'J 
.::r 
n-
.:::1"' 
Cl 
Cl 
Cl 

Cl 
...=t 
Cl 
r..l! 

I 

(Domestic Mail Only; No Insurance Coverage Provided) 

. ' 
, , . . 

- l F _, I .. -l L -
Postage $ 

CertlfledFGe 

Retoot Reclept Fee 
Poslmark 

(Endorsement Required) Hem 

Restricted Dellvely Fee 
(Endorsement Requinld) 

Total Postage & Fees $ 

I 



~·~~ PMS •• 1.11 PRESBYTERI AN MED ICAL SERVICES 

February 2. 2023 

Tom Benavides 
2515 Harris Rd. SW 
Albuquerque, NM 87105 

Dear Property Owner: 

I am writing today on behalf of Presbyterian Medical Services ("PMS") to clarify our intent 
regarding the enclosed notice of pending zoning action. 

As you know, PMS has long operated an outpatient community health center (Carlsbad Family 
Health Center) located at 2013 San Jose Blvd., Carlsbad, NM 88220. This clinic provides 
comprehensive outpatient medical services to residents of the Carlsbad service area, regardless 
of insurance status or ability to pay. The Carlsbad Family Health Center is an important part of 
the healthcare safety net of Eddy County, serving thousands of patients each year. 

To accommodate increased community need for our services, PMS is seeking to expand our 
current clinic facility by approximately 3,500 square feet. While the planned remodel will only 
marginally expand the footprint of the existing clinic facility, we have been infonned by the City 
of Carlsbad that a zoning change will be required. The planned construction/remodel will include 
the addition of9 medical exam rooms, medical assistant area, pharmacy, lab, and improvements 
with mechanical equipment, flooring and overall lighting. Approximately 1 ,060 sf of the existing 
building will be remodeled to create a more open work area for physicians, pharmacy, and 
additional sta:ffrestrooms. Existing flooring will be replaced through much of the facility. 

PMS is proud to serve and provide high quality healthcare to the Carlsbad community. We are 
sensitive to the fact that our neighbors may have some concerns pertaining to our remodeL 
Please feel free to reach out to General Services Director, Pat Dyer, at any time. He can be 
reached at patrick.dver1a!pmsnm.org or via phone at (505) 982-5565. 

Rrt;{)f 
Don L. Daniel 
Vice President of Business Development & General Counsel 

1 



Zon.ng Change Application Page7 of7 

Date: 0210212023 

Dear Property Owner, 

This letter serves as legal notification of a pending action before the City of Carlsbad Planning and 
Zoning Commission in accordance with Code of Ordinances Sec. 56-140(i). You are being notified 
because you are a property owner within one-hundred feet (I 00') of the subject site. 

Applicant: Presbyterian Medical Slti'Vices 
Name Address Phone 

Subject Site Location: 2013 San Jose Blvd., Carlsbad. NM 88220 

The proposed action is a: 
1!1 Zoning Change from _R_-R _ _ _ to e-2 in accordance with Sec. 56-150(b ). 

0 Variance/Appeal from Sec.-~----- in accordance with Sec. 56-ISO(c). 
The purpose of the variance/appeal is: 

0 Conditional Use Permit in accordance with Sec. 56-ISO(f). The purpose of the permit is for a: 
0 Home Occupation:----------
0 Other Use: - -------------------

Tbe Planning and Zoning Commission will consider tbis request at a Publie Hearing on: 
Date: Match s. 2023 

Time: 5:00pm 
Place: City Annex Planning Room 

114 S. Halagueno St. 
Carlsbad, NM 88220 

The Code of Ordinances can be found on the City' s website www.cityofcarlsbadnm.com. 
For details about this request contact the applicant QR contact the City Planner at 
575-885-1185 or via email at jepatterson@cityofcarlsbadnm.com. 

~· 
Applicant/ Agent 

11 - 15-16 



..,.~ PMS 
-~ a.~ PRESBYTERI AN MED ICAL SE RVICES 

February 2, 2023 

David & Laverne Maley 
PO Box 519 
Carlsbad. NM 88221 

Dear Property Owner: 

I am writing today on behalf of Presbyterian Medical Services ("PMS") to clarify our intent 
regarding the enclosed notice of pending zoning action. 

As you know. PMS has long operated an outpatient conununity health center (Carlsbad Family 
Health Center) located at 2013 San Jose Blvd., Carlsbad, NM 88220. This clinic provides 
comprehensive outpatient medical services to residents of the Carlsbad service area, regardless 
of insurance status or ability to pay. The Carlsbad Family Health Center is an important part of 
the healthcare safety net ofEddy County, serving thousands of patients each year. 

To accommodate increased community need for our services, PMS is seeking to expand our 
current clinic facility by approximately 3,500 square feet. While the planned remodel will only 
marginally expand the footprint of the existing clinic facility, we have been informed by the City 
of Carlsbad that a zoning change will be required. The planned construction/remodel will include 
the addition of 9 medical exam rooms, medical assistant area, phannacy, lab, and improvements 
with mechanical equipment, flooring and overall lighting. Approximately 1,060 sf of the existing 
building will be remodeled to create a more open work area for physicians, pharmacy, and 
additional staffrestrooms. Existing flooring will be replaced through much of the facility. 

PMS is proud to serve and provide high quality healthcare to the Carlsbad community. We are 
sensitive to the fact that our neighbors may have some concerns pertaining to our remodel . 
Please feel free to reach out to General Services Director, Pat Dyer, at any time. He can be 
reached at patrick.dyerlatpmsnm.org or via phone at (505) 982-5565. 

1 



Zoning Change Application Paae7of7 

Date: 0210212023 

Dear Property Owner, 

This letter serves as legal notification of a pending action before the City of Carlsbad Planning and 
Zoning Commission in accordance with Code of Ordinances Sec. 56-140(i). You are being notified 
because you are a property owner within one-hundred feet (100') of the subject site. 

Applicant: Presbyterian Medical SllfVices 
Name Addn:ss Phone 

Subject Site Location: 2013 san Jose Blvd., cartsbad. NM 88220 

The proposed action is a: 
ii Zoning Change from _R_.R ___ to c-2 in accordance with Sec. 56-I SO(b ). 

D Variance/Appeal from Sec.------- in accordance with Sec. 56-lSO(c). 
The purpose of the variance/appeal is: 

D Conditional Use Pennit in accordance with Sec. 56-150(t). The purpose ofthe pennit is for a: 
D Home Occupation:----------
0 Other Use:-------------

The Planning and Zoning Commissioa will consider this request at a Public Bearing on: 
Date: March 6. 2023 

Time: 5:00pm 
Place: City Annex Planning Room 

114 S. Halagueno St. 
Carlsbad, NM 88220 

The Code of Ordinances can be found on the City's website www.cityofcarlsbadnm.com. 
For details about this request contact the applicant OR contact the City Planner at 
575-885-1185 or vja email at jepatterson@cityofcarlsbadnm.com. 

ll-15-16 



PRE SBYTER IAN MEDI CAL SERVICES 

February 2, 2023 

Southeast NM Community Action Corp. 
1915 San Jose Blvd. 
Carlsbad, NM 882~0 

Dear Property Owner: 

I am writing today on behalf of Presbyterian Medical Services ("PMS") to clarify our intent 
regarding the enclosed notice of pending zoning action. 

As you know, PMS has long operated an outpatient community health center (Carlsbad Family 
Health Center) located at 2013 San Jose Blvd., Carlsbad, NM 88220. This clinic provides 
comprehensive outpatient medical services to residents of the Carlsbad service area, regardless 
of insurance status or ability to pay. The Carlsbad Family Health Center is an important part of 
the healthcare safety net of Eddy Cmmty, serving thousands of patients each year. 

To accommodate increased community need for our services, PMS is seeking to expand our 
current clinic facility by approximately 3,500 square feet. While the planned remodel will only 
marginally expand the footprint of the existing clinic facility. we have been informed by the City 
of Carlsbad that a zoning change will be required. The planned construction/remodel will include 
the addition of9 medical exam rooms, medical assistant area, pharmacy, lab, and improvements 
with mechanical equipment, flooring and overall lighting. Approximately 1,060 sf of the existing 
building will be remodeled to create a more open work area for physicians, pharmacy, and 
additional staff restrooms. Existing flooring will be replaced through much of the facility. 

PMS is proud to serve and provide high quality healthcare to the Carlsbad community. We are 
sensitive to the fact that our neighbors may have some concerns pertaining to our remodel. 
Please feel free to reach out to General Services Director, Pat Dyer, at any time. He can be 
reached at patrick.dyerrammsnrn.org or via phone at (505) 982-5565. 

(/Pb 
Don L. Daniel 
Vice President of Business Development & General Counsel 

1 



Zoning Change Applicatim Page7of7 

Date: 0210212023 

Dear Property Owner, 

This letter serves as legal notification of a pending action before the City of Carlsbad Planning and 
Zoning Commission in accordance with Code of Ordinances Sec. 56-140(i). You are being notified 
because you are a property owner within one-hundred feet (100') of the subject site. 

Applicant: Presbyterian Meclieal Services 
Name Address Phone 

Subject Site Location: 2013 San Jose BJW .• Carlsbad. NM 88220 

The proposed action is a: 
il Zoning Change from _R_-R ___ to C-2 in accordance with Sec. 56-150(b ). 

0 Variance/Appeal from Sec. -------in accordance with Sec. 56-150( c). 
The purpose of the variance/appeal is: 

0 Conditional Use Pcnnit in accordance with Sec. 56-150(f). The purpose ofthe pcnnit is for a: 
D Home Occupation:----------
0 Other Use:------------

The Planning and Zoaing Commission will ~nsider this request at a Public Hearing on: 
Date: March 6, 2023 

Time: 5:00pm 
Place: City Annex Planning Room 

114 S. Halagueno St. 
Carlsbad, NM 88220 

The Code of Ordinances can be found on the City's website www.cityofcarJsbadnm.com. 
For details about this request contact the applicant OR contact the City Planner at 
575-885-1185 or via email at jepatterson@cityofcarlsbadnm.com. 

Applicant/ Agent 

I 1·15-16 



Zone Change Map # 2755_ed01

IMPORTANT: Maps, products and 
data are NOT surveyor quality and 
are only to be used as a reference.

!(
2013

SA
N  

JO
SE

 B
LV

D

1:840

!( Carlsbad Address
Water Main
Sewer Main
Roads
Parcel

0 70 14035
Feet

1 inch = 70 feet Date: 2/15/2023

N

S



Zone Change Map # 2755_ed02

IMPORTANT: Maps, products and 
data are NOT surveyor quality and 
are only to be used as a reference.

!(
2013

SA
N  

JO
SE

 B
LV

D

HA RP E R  S T

W W O O D AVE

1:1,680

!( Carlsbad Address
Water Main
Sewer Main
Roads
Parcel

Zoning
C-2
R-2
R-R

0 140 28070
Feet

1 inch = 140 feet Date: 2/15/2023

N

S



CITY OF CARLSBAD 

AGENDA BRIEFING MEMORANDUM 

Council Meeting Date: May 9. 2023 

DEPARTMENT: Legal I BY: Denise Madrid Boyea 9<9 I DATE: April27, 2023 

SUBJECT: 
Proposed Resolution requiring the removal of the ruined , damaged or dilapidated building or structure, 
ruins, rubbish , wreckage, weeds and debris at 2311 & 2313 Jackson St. 

BACKGROUND, ANALYSIS AND IMPACT: (Safety and Welfare/Financial/Personnel/ Infrastructure/etc.) 

The property commonly known as 2311 & 2313 Jackson St. is in a residential neighborhood near the 
intersection of Texas and 6th St. There appears to be a fire-damaged structure on the property and rubbish , 
debris and weeds. 

The Eddy County Assessor's Office lists Judy Kay Einkauf as owning or having an interest in the property. 
The Assessor's records lists Judy Kay Einkauf's address as 501 Y2 S. Elm, Carlsbad, NM 88220. 

The property appears to be vacant and unsecured. Code enforcement has been to the property. A Notice 
of Violation was mailed by certified mail to the owners on February 28, 2023, but no one has claimed the letter. 
A fire erupted at the property on January 5, 2023. The Fire Department was on scene shortly after the fire started. 
The property has been inspected by the City Code Enforcement Office, the Building Inspector and the Fire Chief. 
They found that the property remains out of compliance with applicable codes. The fire-damaged , ru ined or 
dilapidated structure remains on the property and the property is not secured. The Fire Chief found that the 
property presents an extreme fire hazard for responding firefighters and emergency personnel and recommends 
the buildings be demolished, the property be cleaned and the weeds and debris be removed . 

A resolution has been prepared which , if adopted , would require the property owner to remove all ru ins, 
dilapidated structure, rubbish , wreckage, debris and weeds from the property within thirty days of the service of 
the resolution . 

On April 27, 2023, a certified letter was sent to Judy Kay Einkauf at the address on the records of the 
County, which invited her to attend the meeting and speak with Council about the property. 

DEPARTMENT RECOMMENDATION: 
Adopt the proposed resolution . 

BOARD/COMMISSION/COMMITTEE ACTION: N/A 

0 P&Z 0 Lodgers Tax Board 0 Cemetery Board }0 APPROVED 

0 Museum Board 0 San Jose Board 0 Water Board 
} 
} 0 DISAPPROVED 

0 Library Board 0 North Mesa Board 0 Committee 

Reviewed by: 
City Administrator ___________________ Date: _____ _ 

A TT ACHMENT(S) : 
Proposed Resolution with Attachments 
Photographs 
Letter to Judy Kay Einkauf, dated April , 27, 2023 

oeramirez
Typewriter
/s/John Lowe

oeramirez
Typewriter
05/04/2023



1 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-____ 
 
   A RESOLUTION FINDING THE BUILDINGS 

OR STRUCTURES AT THE PROPERTY 
COMMONLY KNOWN AS 2311 & 2313 
JACKSON STREET TO BE RUINED, 
DAMAGED, AND DILAPIDATED AND 
FINDING THE PREMISES TO BE COVERED 
WITH RUINS, RUBBISH, WRECKAGE, 
WEEDS, DEBRIS; AND REQUIRING THE 
REMOVAL OF THE BUILDINGS, 
STRUCTURES, RUINS, RUBBISH, 
WRECKAGE, WEEDS, AND DEBRIS  

 
 
 WHEREAS, the records of the Eddy County Assessor's Office show Judy Kay 
Einkauf to be the owner of or to have an interest in the property commonly known as 
2311 & 2313 Jackson Street, Carlsbad, Eddy County, New Mexico, and more 
particularly described as: 

 
Subd: JACKSON Lot: 6 Block: A S: 2 T: 22S R: 26E 

 
Subd: JACKSON Lot: 7 Block: A Quarter: NE S: 2 T: 22S R: 26E 

 
 
hereinafter referred to as “Property”, and 
  
 WHEREAS, the Property has been inspected by the Carlsbad Code Enforcement 
Officer, the Fire Marshal and the Certified Building Official; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Carlsbad Code Enforcement Officer, the Fire Marshal and the 
Certified Building Official found that the Property has not been adequately maintained; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Property contains a large amount of ruins, rubbish, wreckage, 
and/or debris, and some weeds; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Property is in an unsafe condition and constitutes a hazard to the 
surrounding properties, residents and passersby; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Carlsbad Code Enforcement Officer found that the specific 
violations, under Code of Ordinances of the City of Carlsbad, at the Property include, but 
are not limited to those listed on the attached Exhibit “A”; and 
 

oeramirez
Typewriter
22



2 
 

 WHEREAS, the City Fire Marshal has inspected the Property and found that the 
specific violations at the Property under Fire Code include, but are not limited to those 
listed on the attached Exhibit “B”; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the specific Building Code violations include, but are not limited to 
those listed on the attached Exhibit “C;” and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Property and all structures, ruins, rubbish, wreckage, debris, and 
weeds are a menace to the public comfort, health, peace, and safety and require removal 
forthwith.   
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Governing Body of the City of 
Carlsbad, Eddy County, New Mexico that: 
 
 1. A copy of this Resolution shall be served on the record owners, as shown 
by the real estate records of the County Clerk, occupants, or agents in charge of the 
Property.  Such service shall be in person if such a person can be found within the City 
of Carlsbad, New Mexico after a reasonable search. 
 
 2. If a record owners, occupant, or agent in charge of the Property cannot be 
located within the City of Carlsbad, New Mexico, notice shall be by posting at the Property 
and by publishing this Resolution one time in a newspaper in general circulation in the 
City of Carlsbad. 
 
 3. Within ten days of either the receipt of a copy of this Resolution or the 
posting and publishing of this Resolution, the owner, occupant, or agent in charge of the 
Property shall either: 

A.  Commence removing all ruins, rubbish, wreckage, debris, and weeds from the 
premises; or 
B.  File a written objection with the Carlsbad Municipal Clerk at 101 N. Halagueno, 
Carlsbad, New Mexico 88220 and request a hearing before the City Council. 

  
 4. If a written objection is filed as required, the City Council shall proceed as 
directed by Chapter 22, Article II of the Code of Ordinances, City of Carlsbad, New 
Mexico.   
 
 5. The removal of the structure, ruins, rubbish, wreckage, debris, and 
weeds shall: 
  A. Begin immediately; 
  B. Proceed properly and with diligence; and 
  C. Be completed in a timely manner;  
  D. BUT IN NO CASE SHALL SUCH WORK TAKE LONGER THAN 

THIRTY (30) DAYS FROM THE DATE THE RESOLUTION WAS 
SERVED UNLESS THE CARLSBAD CITY COUNCIL CONSENTS 
IN WRITING TO AN EXTENSION. 

 



3 
 

 6. Any removal of the structures, ruins, rubbish, wreckage, debris, or weeds 
shall leave the property from which the materials have been removed in a clean, level, 
and safe condition, suitable for further occupancy or construction and with all excavations 
filled. 
 
 7. If the owner, occupant, or agent in charge does not commence the removal 
of the stated items, and if no written objection is filed as required, or if the removal of the 
stated items is not completed in a timely manner, the City may remove the structures, 
ruins, rubbish, wreckage, debris, and/or weeds at the cost and expense of the owner. 
 
 8. The reasonable cost of such a removal shall constitute a lien against the 
structures, ruins, rubbish, wreckage, debris, and/or weeds so removed and against the 
lot or parcel of land from which it was removed. 
 
 9. The City Clerk shall make out, sign, attest, file, and record in the office of 
the Eddy County Clerk’s Office, a claim of lien upon the described premises. 
 
 10. The lien shall bear interest at the rate of twelve percent (12%) per annum 
from the date of filing until paid, together with reasonable attorney’s fees for the 
foreclosure of the same.  The lien shall be foreclosed in any manner proved by an 
applicable state lien foreclosure law. 
  
 INTRODUCED, PASSED, ADOPTED, AND APPROVED this 9th day of May, 2023. 
 
       
_____________________ 
DALE JANWAY, MAYOR 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_____________________                                                   
NADINE MIRELES, CITY CLERK         



legalsecretary
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT A































legalsecretary
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT B





legalsecretary
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT C





































Post Office Box 1569 
Carlsbad, NM 88221-1569 
(575) 887-1191 
1-800-658-2 713 
www. cityofcarlsbadnm. com 

Judy Kay Einkauf 
501 % S. Elm St. 
Carlsbad , NM 88220 

April 27, 2023 

DALEJANWAY 
MAYOR 

JOHN N. LOWE 
CITY ADMINISTRATOR 

RE: Dangerous Premises at the property known as 2311 & 2313 Jackson St. , Carlsbad , 
NM 

Dear Ms. Einkauf: 

According to the records of the Eddy County Assessor's Office, you are the owner or 
have an interest in the property commonly known as 2311 & 2313 Jackson St., 
Carlsbad, NM. The property has been inspected by the City Code Enforcement Office, 
the Building Inspector and the Fire Chief. They have found the property to be in 
violation of a number of health , safety, and building laws. 

Because of the condition of the property, a Resolution has been prepared requiring the 
removal of the structure and cleaning of the property. The Carlsbad City Council will 
consider passing that Resolution at its meeting on Tuesday, May 9, 2023 at 6:00 PM. 
That meeting will be held in the Council Chambers in the Janell Whitlock Municipal 
Complex at 114 S. Halagueno St. , Carlsbad , NM. You are encouraged to come to the 
meeting and speak with Council about the property. A draft of the Resolution is 
included with this letter. 

If the Council adopts the Resolution , you must begin removing the structure, ruins, 
rubbish , wreckage, debris, and weeds from the property within ten days and complete 
the work within sixty days. The property must be left in a clean , level , and safe 
condition , suitable for further occupancy or construction and with all excavations filled. 
If the work is not done, the City may do the work itself or hire someone to do the work. 
All reasonable costs to the City for such work will become a lien against the property. 
The City may then foreclose the lien as allowed by law. 

If you have any questions regarding this matter, please contact me at (575) 887-1191 , 
or at the Municipal Building , 101 N. Halagueno, Carlsbad , NM 88220. 

Wardl 
EDDIE T. RODRIGUEZ 

Ward 2 
JEFF FORREST 

CHAVEZ 

Sincerely, 

Denise Madrid Boyea 

COUNCILORS 
Ward3 

KARLA NIEMEIER 
JUDI WATERS 

Ward4 
MARK WALTERSCHEID 



CITY OF CARLSBAD 

AGENDA BRIEFING MEMORANDUM 

Council Meeting Date: May 9. 2023 

DEPARTMENT: Legal I BY: Denise Madrid Boyea p \3 I DATE: May 3, 2023 

SUBJECT: 
Proposed Resolution requiring the removal of the ruined, damaged or dilapidated buildings or 
structures, ruins, rubbish , wreckage, and debris at 806 Irvin St. 

BACKGROUND, ANALYSIS AND IMPACT: (Safety and Welfare/Financial/Personnel/Infrastructure/etc.) 
The property commonly known as 806 Irvin St. is in a residential neighborhood near the intersection of 

Boyd and Lea. There appears to be dilapidated structures on the property and a large amount of rubbish, debris 
and weeds. 

The Eddy County Assessor's Office lists Liborio Morales and Belia Morales as owning or having an 
interest in the property. The Assessor's records lists Liborio Morales and Belia Morales' address as 806 Irvin 
St. , Carlsbad , NM 88220. Upon information and belief, the owners are deceased but a probate of their estate 
has not been filed. 

The property appears to be vacant and unsecured. Code enforcement has been to the property and the 
structures were red-tagged numerous times by the Building Department starting in 2015 and there was a fire in 
2017. The red tags have been removed by unknown persons and the police have been called to the property 
often. The electric and water utilities have been disconnected. The buildings continue to degrade and the property 
attracts transients that present a danger to surrounding properties. A Notice of Violation was mailed to the owner 
on 11 October, 2022. The property has been inspected by the City Code Enforcement Office, the Building 
Inspector and the Fire Chief. They found that the property remains out of compliance with applicable codes. The 
ruined or dilapidated structures remain on the property and the property is not secured. The Fire Chief found 
that the property presents an extreme fire hazard for responding firefighters and emergency personnel and 
recommends the buildings be demolished, the property be cleaned and the debris be removed . 

A resolution has been prepared which , if adopted, would require the property owner to remove all ruins, 
dilapidated structures, rubbish, wreckage, debris and weeds from the property within thirty days of the service of 
the resolution . 

On May 3, 2023, a certified letter was sent to Liborio Morales and Belia Morales at the address on the 
records of the County, which invited them to attend the meeting and speak with Counci l about the property. 

DEPARTMENT RECOMMENDATION: 
Adopt the proposed resolution . 

BOARD/COMMISSION/COMMITTEE ACTION: N/A 

D P&Z 
D Museum Board 
D Library Board 

Reviewed by: 

D Lodgers Tax Board 
D San Jose Board 
D North Mesa Board 

D Cemetery Board 
D Water Board 
D Committee 

} D APPROVED 
} 
} D DISAPPROVED 

City Administrator ___________________ Date: _____ _ 

ATTACHMENT(S): 
Proposed Resolution with Attachments 
Photographs 
Letter to Liborio Morales and Belia Morales dated May 3, 2023 

oeramirez
Typewriter
/s/John Lowe

oeramirez
Typewriter
05/04/2023



1 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-____ 
 
   A RESOLUTION FINDING THE BUILDINGS 

OR STRUCTURES AT THE PROPERTY 
COMMONLY KNOWN AS 806 IRVIN STREET 
TO BE RUINED, DAMAGED, AND 
DILAPIDATED AND FINDING THE 
PREMISES TO BE COVERED WITH RUINS, 
RUBBISH, WRECKAGE, WEEDS, DEBRIS; 
AND REQUIRING THE REMOVAL OF THE 
BUILDINGS, STRUCTURES, RUINS, 
RUBBISH, WRECKAGE, WEEDS, AND 
DEBRIS  

 
 
 WHEREAS, the records of the Eddy County Assessor's Office show Liborio & 
Belia Morales to be the owners of or to have an interest in the property commonly known 
as 806 Irvin Street, Carlsbad, Eddy County, New Mexico, and more particularly 
described as: 

 
Subd: OSBORNE 2ND Lot: 52 Block: 189 Quarter: NW S: 07 T: 22S R: 27E 

 
hereinafter referred to as “Property”, and 
  
 WHEREAS, the Property has been inspected by the Carlsbad Code Enforcement 
Officer, the Fire Chief and the Certified Building Official; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Carlsbad Code Enforcement Officer, the Fire Chief and the 
Certified Building Official found that the Property has not been adequately maintained; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Property contains a large amount of ruins, rubbish, wreckage, 
and/or debris, and some weeds; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Property is in an unsafe condition and constitutes a hazard to the 
surrounding properties, residents and passersby; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Carlsbad Code Enforcement Officer found that the specific 
violations, under Code of Ordinances of the City of Carlsbad, at the Property include, but 
are not limited to those listed on the attached Exhibit “A”; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Fire Chief has inspected the Property and found that the 
specific violations at the Property under Fire Code include, but are not limited to those 
listed on the attached Exhibit “B”; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the specific Building Code violations include, but are not limited to 
those listed on the attached Exhibit “C;” and 

oeramirez
Typewriter
23



2 
 

 
 WHEREAS, the Property and all structures, ruins, rubbish, wreckage, debris, and 
weeds are a menace to the public comfort, health, peace, and safety and require removal 
forthwith.   
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Governing Body of the City of 
Carlsbad, Eddy County, New Mexico that: 
 
 1. A copy of this Resolution shall be served on the record owners, as shown 
by the real estate records of the County Clerk, occupants, or agents in charge of the 
Property.  Such service shall be in person if such a person can be found within the City 
of Carlsbad, New Mexico after a reasonable search. 
 
 2. If a record owners, occupant, or agent in charge of the Property cannot be 
located within the City of Carlsbad, New Mexico, notice shall be by posting at the Property 
and by publishing this Resolution one time in a newspaper in general circulation in the 
City of Carlsbad. 
 
 3. Within ten days of either the receipt of a copy of this Resolution or the 
posting and publishing of this Resolution, the owner, occupant, or agent in charge of the 
Property shall either: 

A.  Commence removing all ruins, rubbish, wreckage, debris, and weeds from the 
premises; or 
B.  File a written objection with the Carlsbad Municipal Clerk at 101 N. Halagueno, 
Carlsbad, New Mexico 88220 and request a hearing before the City Council. 

  
 4. If a written objection is filed as required, the City Council shall proceed as 
directed by Chapter 22, Article II of the Code of Ordinances, City of Carlsbad, New 
Mexico.   
 
 5. The removal of the structure, ruins, rubbish, wreckage, debris, and 
weeds shall: 
  A. Begin immediately; 
  B. Proceed properly and with diligence; and 
  C. Be completed in a timely manner;  
  D. BUT IN NO CASE SHALL SUCH WORK TAKE LONGER THAN 

THIRTY (30) DAYS FROM THE DATE THE RESOLUTION WAS 
SERVED UNLESS THE CARLSBAD CITY COUNCIL CONSENTS 
IN WRITING TO AN EXTENSION. 

 
 6. Any removal of the structures, ruins, rubbish, wreckage, debris, or weeds 
shall leave the property from which the materials have been removed in a clean, level, 
and safe condition, suitable for further occupancy or construction and with all excavations 
filled. 
 



3 
 

 7. If the owner, occupant, or agent in charge does not commence the removal 
of the stated items, and if no written objection is filed as required, or if the removal of the 
stated items is not completed in a timely manner, the City may remove the structures, 
ruins, rubbish, wreckage, debris, and/or weeds at the cost and expense of the owner. 
 
 8. The reasonable cost of such a removal shall constitute a lien against the 
structures, ruins, rubbish, wreckage, debris, and/or weeds so removed and against the 
lot or parcel of land from which it was removed. 
 
 9. The City Clerk shall make out, sign, attest, file, and record in the office of 
the Eddy County Clerk’s Office, a claim of lien upon the described premises. 
 
 10. The lien shall bear interest at the rate of twelve percent (12%) per annum 
from the date of filing until paid, together with reasonable attorney’s fees for the 
foreclosure of the same.  The lien shall be foreclosed in any manner proved by an 
applicable state lien foreclosure law. 
  
 INTRODUCED, PASSED, ADOPTED, AND APPROVED this 9th day of May, 2023. 
 
       
_____________________ 
DALE JANWAY, MAYOR 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_____________________                                                   
NADINE MIRELES, CITY CLERK         



legalsecretary
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT A























































legalsecretary
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT B







legalsecretary
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT C





































Post Office Box 1569 
Carlsbad, NM 88221-1569 
(575) 887-1191 
1-800-658-2 713 
www. cityofcarlsbadnm. com 

Liborio & Belia Morales 
806 Irvin St. 
Carlsbad , NM 88220 

May 3, 2023 

DALEJANWAY 
MAYOR 

JOHNN. LOWE 
CITY ADMINISTRATOR 

RE: Dangerous Premises at the property known as 806 Irvin St. , Carlsbad , NM 

Dear Mr. & Mrs. Morales: 

According to the records of the Eddy County Assessor's Office, you are the owners or 
have an interest in the property commonly known as 806 Irvin St. , Carlsbad, NM. The 
property has been inspected by the City Code Enforcement Office, the Building 
Inspector and the Fire Chief. They have found the property to be in violation of a 
number of health , safety, and building laws. 

Because of the condition of the property, a Resolution has been prepared requiring the 
removal of the structure and cleaning of the property. The Carlsbad City Council will 
consider passing that Resolution at its meeting on Tuesday, May 9. 2023 at 6:00 PM. 
That meeting will be held in the Council Chambers in the Janell Whitlock Municipal 
Complex at 114 S. Halagueno St. , Carlsbad , NM. You are encouraged to come to the 
meeting and speak with Council about the property. A draft of the Resolution is 
included with this letter. 

If the Council adopts the Resolution , you must begin removing the structure, ruins, 
rubbish , wreckage, debris, and weeds from the property within ten days and complete 
the work within thirty days. The property must be left in a clean , level , and safe 
condition, suitable for further occupancy or construction and with all excavations filled . 
If the work is not done, the City may do the work itself or hire someone to do the work. 
All reasonable costs to the City for such work will become a lien against the property. 
The City may then foreclose the lien as allowed by law. 

If you have any questions regarding this matter, please contact me at (575) 887-1191 , 
or at the Municipal Building, 101 N. Halagueno, Carlsbad , NM 88220. 

Enclosure 

Wardl 
EDDm T. RODRIGUEZ 

Ward2 
JEFF FORREST 

CHAVEZ 

Sincerely, 

~Y\1\~B~ 
Denise Madrid Boyea 
City Attorney 

COUNCILORS 
Ward3 

KARLA NIEMEmR 
JUDI WA..l.IW!I-0) 

Ward4 
MARK WALTERSCHEID 

WESLEY A...,..,~~..,·~ 



Committee Reports



Adjourn


	05-09-2023 CC Agenda
	2.Res 2023-21 Budget Adjustments-April
	3.A.Minutes 04-25-2023 Draft Council Regular
	3.B.Minutes 04-28-2023 Draft Council Special
	3.C.Personnel Report
	3.D.1.Invite to bid Re-roof Library Museum
	3.D.2.Invite RFP Aquatic Management Golf Course
	3.D.3.Invite RFP EMS Billing Services
	3.E.1.AGT BLM Airport Ground Lease 2023 (1)
	3.F.1.Mthly Rpt Human Resources April
	3.F.2.Mthly Rpt Utilities March
	3.G.Board Appointments
	3.H.1.Set the Date Ord 2023-XX 2021 W. Texas St zone change
	3.H.2.Set the Date Ord 2023-XX 2003 Standpipe Rd zone change
	3.H.3.Set the Date Ord 2023-XX 609 W. Fox zone change
	4.EAS Contract Advanced Air
	5.Ambulance Donation
	6.OCL Request Turkey Track Ranch
	7.Milton's  Alcohol sales 3rd Thursday
	8.MainStreet CavernFest  Alcohol sales
	9.Ord 2023-08 Zone Change206 E. Rose St
	10.Ord 2023-09 Zone Change 2013 San Jose
	11.Res 2023-22  Weed n Debris- 2311 & 2313 Jackson St.
	12.Res 2023-23 Weed n Debris 806 Irvin
	13.Council Committee Reports
	14.Adjourn

